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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of SMIT
Holdings Limited (“SMIT"” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am
pleased to announce the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The year of 2020 was affected by the global COVID-19
pandemic, changes in the world’s new landscape have
facilitated the structural reforms in the integrated circuit
industry in both local and overseas markets. Under the
new landscape, the Group has adhered to the diversified
development strategy with integrated circuit design as its
core, and strived to stabilize the market share of conventional
business while actively pushing forward the marketization
process of new business. The Group recorded USD37.8 million
of revenue in 2020 (2019: USD38.1 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 0.8%. Gross profit for the year
decreased by 12.9% to USD13.3 million. Basic loss per share
for the year were USD1.2 cents (2019: basic earnings per share
were USD3.3 cents). To reciprocate shareholders’ support for
the Group, the Board has proposed a final dividend payment of
USDO.1 cent with a total dividend payout of USD411,405.

During the year, by leveraging its advantages in the industry,
the Group fully deployed various types of industrial resources
to actively form the layout of proprietary research and
development in integrated circuit smart technology and
technological cooperation for the gradual development of the
two main new business lines of cloud service and integrated
circuit (“1C") solutions. Moreover, the Group also made
capital deployment to deepen the direction of overall strategic
development in integrated circuit smart technology.
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In January 2021, SMIT Group Limited (“SMIT Shenzhen”) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), Shenzhen Hongtai
Guowei Share Investment Management Limited* (3118 Z=E
HR R E BB AR /A7) ("Hongtai Guowei”) (a connected
person of the Company), Huang Xueliang (an executive
Director and controlling shareholder of the Company) and
Shenzhen Angel Investment Guide Fund Limited* (&YIITHA
FRES|EELERAR]) (“Shenzhen Angel Investment”)
(an independent third party) entered into a partnership
agreement in relation to the establishment and management
of a fund. The fund will be registered in the PRC as a limited
partnership with the primary objective of engaging in angel
investments in early stage companies operating in innovative
technology sectors in Shenzhen, the PRC, including but not
limited to integrated circuits, artificial intelligence, smart
hardware, 5G communications, internet of things, internet,
power semiconductors, electronics-related new materials and
advanced manufacturing.

The fund established is a project led by the Finance Bureau of
Shenzhen, aiming to further promote the growth of ecosystem
for high-tech enterprises in Shenzhen through the specific
scope of investment and management experience provided by
the fund. As an important member of the high-tech industry
in Shenzhen, the Group will exert comprehensive efforts
in the development of high-tech industries in Shenzhen.
Through investment in the fund, not only the Group can make
contribution to this mission, but will also create opportunities
for the Group to establish connections with various types
of high-tech startups, and to explore potential cooperation
projects. In addition, as a limited partner of the fund, the
Group will be able to share the long-term income brought by
the growth and success of high-tech enterprises invested by
the fund.

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue adhering to the diversified
development orientation with integrated circuit design as its
core, ensure a stable but rising market share in conventional
business, and further promote a wider and deeper layout for
integrated circuit smart technology in government resources,
in capital market and in the industry. Multi-business lines will
continue to develop, and channels for growth of operating
revenue will be widened to ensure the stable development of
the Group.
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For the CAM business, the Group will continue to develop new
platforms on the basis of research and development on high
performance, by using the driving force of new standards as
the cut-in point, the policies of different product standards
and their implementation in all major regions will be closely
monitored, new products will be planned in a timely and
effective manner to seek new market opportunities. In response
to the impact of the second outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, we will continue to improve the warning mechanism
and actively adopt responsive measures to safeguard our
production capacity, we will adjust our sales strategy flexibly
to ensure the retention of our existing customers, and try our
best to secure new customers and increase the volume of our
orders.

For cloud service business, the Group will continue to enhance
the performance of existing teams, tackle various technical
issues in the project proactively in a timely manner, ensure
the customers’ satisfaction and the service quality of our
orders. Everything will use our project and customers as the
starting point, continuous improvement will be made to the
management system of ancillary facilities in all aspects before
and after sales, the execution capabilities for customer support
tasks will be enhanced, and the operation and maintenance of
core equipment of the cloud platform will be ensured.

For the business of IC solutions, the Group will continue to
strengthen team building and management, the standards
of proprietary research and development will be enhanced
continuously through means such as investment in talent
resources and patent reserves. Development of projects
under research will be pushed forward continuously based on
market-oriented and practical standards to achieve quantifiable
research and development results. Meanwhile, joint
development will be sought with excellent integrated circuit
design enterprises within the industry that have synergies
with the Group's business, by integrating resources from
government, enterprises and schools, the Group’s proprietary
research and development capabilities in integrated circuit
smart technology will be enhanced continuously and the
overall layout of the semiconductor sector will be improved
persistently.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading security devices provider globally for
pay-TV broadcasting access. It designs, develops and markets
security devices primarily for the pay TV industry worldwide
through sales of conditional access modules, or CAMs,
products which provide end users with access to pay-TV
content.

The Group obtained approval to undertake the national
key science and technology project of “Development and
Application of Full Process Electronic Design Automation
("EDA") System for Chip Design” in 2018 and duly launched
the research and development of EDA system, and then
further penetrate into the semi-conductor IC smart technology
business.

CAM

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately USD23.5 million from CAM, around
16.1% less than last year, and accounted for around 62.2%
of the Group’s total revenue. The European market (excluding
Russia) remained the largest market for the Group’s CAM sales
business, and made up around 58.2% of total CAM sales,
which was approximately 6.9% less than the previous year.
The share of revenue from Russia accounts for about 21.8%
of CAM'’s total sales, which increases about 16.4% year on
year. Other emerging markets, accounted for approximately
11.1% of its total CAM sales, reported a year-on-year decrease
of around 36.5%. The Mainland China market contributed
approximately 9.8% of its total CAM sales, representing an
decrease of around 54.0% year-on-year.
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Being the largest market for CAM products, the European region
generated growth mainly from major operator customers in the
western European and northern European markets. As product
delivery from the competitors was affected by the pandemic,
while the Group was striving to secure its existing market share
in the region, additional orders from old operator customers
were also gained from the competitors. Market activities were
halted by the pandemic in Eastern Europe, sales to major
customers were lower than expected, resulting in a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 6.9% in overall sales to the European
region. The growth in the Russian region was benefited from
steady customer orders and the year-on-year growth in the sales
to a key customer MTS. Sales to emerging markets decreased
year-on-year mainly due to less CAM products were purchased
by the operators under the pandemic. Sales to the Indian
market, African region and Uzbekistan decreased year-on-year.
Sales in the domestic market decreased by approximately
54.0% year-on-year, which was mainly due to the adoption
of program IP by the operators as the major product planning,
resulting in market promotions for USB-based products were
below expectation, together with the factor of lower demand
caused by the pandemic and the regulated markets, the sales of
Professional CAM decreased significantly year-on-year.

Despite the promotions of new products, such as DVB Cl Plus
2.0 CAM, were affected by the pandemic, the Group made
various forms of efforts through multiple channels to maintain
its leading position of 60% market share in the global market,
and penetrated into a CA of a competitor group, indicating the
global layout of 6 major CA companies was fully completed
and laying the foundation for subsequent growth.

Cloud Services

Based on the deployment for development of the Group's
semi-conductor integrated circuits smart technology business,
the Group launched an users-oriented verification cloud service
platform focused on efficient back-end design verification
tools for integrated circuit design. Platform core calculation
devices are characterised with high performance, huge
capacity, scalability, low cost and are maintenance free. The
Group completed the development, production, deployment
of and online service for verification cloud service platform,
which has achieved certain scale of calculation capability, and
received service orders from customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from the
Group's cloud services was approximately USD2.8 million,
representing approximately 7.5% of the total revenue.

IC Solutions

The Group has fully utilised the skills on secure chip design
accumulated internally in the past years and external customer
channels, vigorously commenced chip design related services,
and promoted the research and development projects and the
implementation of other new business. The Group integrated
and utilised internal and external resources, and in combination
of self-developed projects, improved the establishment of the
research and development platform and core technical support.
In terms of academic and enterprise cooperation, the Group
initiated various technological cooperation projects and realised
the achievement results, joint research and development bases
and talent cultivation grounds were established with various
universities to introduce high caliber talents. The awareness
of the Group in the industry was enhanced by synchronizing
the publicity efforts through industry exhibitions, forums and
publication series.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from the
Group's IC solutions was approximately USD11.5 million,
representing approximately 30.3% of the total revenue.
Research and development expenses were approximately
USD20.1 million, representing approximately 53.1% of the
total revenue.

In the future, the Group will continue to increase investment
efforts in the research and development of the IC solutions, and
fully drive forward the marketization progress of new business
for revenue growth.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group generated
revenue of USD37.8 million, representing a decrease of around
0.8% compared with 2019. The slight decrease in revenue is
mainly attributable to the deemed disposal of our subsidiaries
engaged in the sales of rapid verification systems and software

LB R PR B R A EEF AT R B ESIE kL o Wzkig in 2019 and decrease in sales of the CAM segment, whilst
EBHBAFAT the sales from our new business segments cloud services and
IC solutions bought new sources of revenue to the Group
and was about to fully recover the loss in revenue from the
rapid verification systems and software and CAM segments.
The following table shows revenue breakdown by business
segments:
BEt+t-HA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December
—B-EHF —B-hEF
2020 2019
BEZET % BT % ZEE S
USD million % USD million % Change in %
BER CAM 23,5 62.2 28.0 73.5 -16.1
ERRE Cloud services 2.8 7.5 = = =
SRERIRATTE  IC solutions 11.5 30.3 - - —
RIRERTE R Rapid verification
ERER {4 systems and software = 10.1 26.5 =
37.8 100 38.1 100 -0.8
ERREFZ

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—ALFENEFAE133EEE
T fx T—NEMD129%  EXTEHRIEEALEEHHR
B EMERIS2% - BETE4.9%  FEHRAEEFE
BOEMERTERRE - EEFERRIENFEME -

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit amounted to USD13.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease of
12.9% compared with 2019 mainly due to change in our
sales combination. Gross profit margin decreased by 4.9%
year-on-year to 35.2%, which was mainly attributable to the
impact of the lower gross profit margin of the Group’s new
business segments, which were still in the initial exploration
period.
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Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses mainly include salaries
and benefits of the Group's research and development staff,
rental and office expenses, CA certification fees, professional
service fees and transportation and lodging. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, research and development expenses
grew from USD9.6 million to USD23.0 million, mainly due to
increased expenditure of the IC smart technology research and
development projects.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly include salaries and
benefits of sales and marketing staff, marketing, training and
promotion expenses, travel and entertainment and rental and
office expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2020, sales
and distribution expenses were USD1.6 million, decreased by
60.2% compared with 2019, which was mainly attributable
to absence of such expenses relating to the rapid verification
systems business and software in 2020 as compared to in
2019, following the deemed disposal of our subsidiaries
engaged in the sales of rapid verification systems and software
at the end of 2019.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses mainly include salaries
and benefits of management, administrative and finance staff,
professional service fees, rental and office expenses, provision
for doubtful debts, and travel and entertainment. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, general and administrative
expenses amounted to USD9.2 million, representing an
decrease of 24.0% compared to 2019. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the cost control of the Group's general
and administrative expenses and the deemed disposal of our
subsidiaries engaged in the sales of rapid verification systems
and software in 2019.
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Income Tax Credit

Income tax credit mainly consists of PRC corporate income
tax and Hong Kong profits tax for the PRC and Hong Kong
subsidiaries of the Group. Income tax credit increased from
USDO0.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
USD1.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, mainly
due to increase of deferred income tax arising from tax losses.

Loss for the Year

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
USD3.4 million, representing a decrease of 127.9% when
compared with 2019. It was mainly attributable to an one-off
gain on deemed disposal of our subsidiaries engaged in rapid
verification systems and software and the increase in R&D
expenditure of the IC smart technology business was recorded
in 2019.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Debt Structure

The Group maintains prudent treasury policy and financial risk
management, sufficient banking facilities and bank balances
are available to meet the cash needs of the Group's operations
and research and development activities. Liquidity and cashflow
needs of Group are regularly and timely reviewed by the
financial department and management.

The Group continued to maintain a sound liquidity position.
As at 31 December 2020, total cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to USD46.5 million (as at 31 December
2019: USD70.9 million) and were mainly denominated in RMB
and US dollars, respectively. The Group recorded net current
assets amounting to USD28.8 million (as at 31 December
2019: USD58.6 million). The Group's current ratio, calculated
by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities, was
146.6% (as at 31 December 2019: 228.5%).
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings were
USD38.1 million (2019: nil) and lease liabilities were USD0.7
million (2019: USD 1.1 million). All of the Group’s bank
borrowings had fixed interest rates, of which USD2.9 million
and USD35.2 million were denominated in US dollars and
Renminbi respectively. No restricted bank deposit had been
pledged for the bank borrowings (2019: nil). No hedging
activity had been carried out by the Group. Gearing ratio of
the Group, as calculated by dividing total bank borrowings
by total equity, was 30.2% (2019: nil) as at 31 December
2020. Apart from the above bank borrowings, the Group had
unutilised banking facilities of RMB101.1 million (equivalent to
USD15.5 million) (2019: RMB7.9 million (equivalent to USD1.1
million)) and USD15 million (2019: USD15 million) in Mainland
China and Hong Kong respectively. Save as disclosed, the
Group did not have any other outstanding indebtedness or
any outstanding or authorised but unissued debt securities,
term loans, other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of
borrowings, acceptance credits, hire purchase commitments,
mortgages and charges, contingent liabilities or guarantees
outstanding.

Use of Net Proceeds from Listing

The aggregate net proceeds raised by the Company from
the Listing through the issue of an aggregate of 75,000,000
new shares (the “Offer Shares”) at the final offer price of
HK$3.78 per Offer Share pursuant to the global offering (the
"Global Offering”) referred to in the prospectus issued by
the Company on 16 March 2016 (the “Prospectus”), after
deduction of underwriting commissions and expenses directly
attributable to the Global Offering, were approximately
HK$251.6 million. Based on the net proceeds derived from
the Global Offering, proposed application of net proceeds as
stated in the Prospectus had been adjusted according to the
principles as specified in the section headed “Future Plans and
Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.
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During the period from 30 March 2016 (the “Listing Date”,
being the date on which dealings in the shares of the Company
first commenced in the Stock Exchange), to the date of this
annual report, the net proceeds raised from the Listing had
been applied as follows:
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The unused net proceeds have been placed as interest bearing
deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong and Mainland
China in accordance with the intention of the Board as
disclosed in the Prospectus. The Company has not utilised and
will not utilise any net proceeds for purposes other than those
disclosed in the Prospectus.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding unutilised proceeds
were approximately HK$3.52 million. Such unutilised proceeds
on sales and marketing expenditures are expected to be utilised
by end of 2021.
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Capital Commitments

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has no
capital commitments (2019: USD2.4 million) contracted, but
not provided for, and did not have any authorised but not
contracted for capital commitments (2019: nil).

Significant Investment, Material Acquisition and
Disposal of Subsidiaries and Associates and Future Plan
for Material Investments or Acquisition of Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had equity securities
investments as financial assets in a total of five (2019: five)
unlisted companies and had interest in an unlisted fund with
an aggregate fair value of approximately USD11.7 million (2019:
USD14.6 million).

For further information on the Group’s equity securities
investment as financial assets, please refer to Note 21 of the
consolidated financial statement.

Details of the Group’s material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associates effected during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set below:

On 31 January 2020, SMIT Shenzhen entered into a capital
injection agreement with Shenzhen Giga Hongtai Hongxin
Share Investment Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership)
("HTHX Fund”), pursuant to which SMIT Shenzhen made a
capital injection of RMB90 million (equivalent to approximately
USD13 million) in Shenzhen Giga Design Automation Co.,
Ltd. (“Giga"). Immediately prior to the capital injection, Giga
was held as to 99.01% by the HTHX Fund and 0.99% by
SMIT Shenzhen respectively. Upon completion of the capital
injection, Giga was held as to 90.91% by the HTHX Fund and
9.09% by SMIT Shenzhen, and Giga became an associate of
the Group. For further information on the investment, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 31 January 2020.

On 31 March 2020, SMIT Shenzhen (as the vendor), Ms.
Feng Yuanyuan (f5#EEE) (Investor A) * Mr. Shi Haiyong (/8
B) (Investor B) and Mr. Chen Haiyuan (B&Z) (Investor C)
entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which
SMIT Shenzhen would transfer 28%, 20% and 3% equity
interest of SMIT Xinxin to Investor A, Investor B and Investor C
respectively. The consideration for the disposal of the Equity

Transfer is RMB51,000,000 (the “Acquisition”).
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SMIT Xinxin is intended to be a platform for the Group
to explore and invest in new semiconductor research and
development projects. The introduction of the Investors
through the equity transfer agreement allows SMIT Xinxin to
bring in valuable semiconductor management and research
experience, semiconductor investment experience and
corporate management and strategic experience to the project.
Further, as semiconductor research and development projects
require substantial investment, the equity transfer will also
allow the Investors to contribute investment capital to SMIT
Xinxin. For further information on the Acquisition, please refer
to the Company's announcement dated 31 March 2020.

On 31 August 2020, S2C Limited (previously named as S2C
Shanghai Co., Ltd.) ("S2C Shanghai”) entered into a capital
injection agreement with certain independent investors which
agreed to contribute a total of RMB522,911,000 (equivalent to
approximately USD76,221,000) into S2C Shanghai. Upon the
completion of the transaction on 31 August 2020, the Group’s
equity interest in S2C Shanghai decreased from 49.19% to
29.75%. An amount of USD5,472,414 resulting from gain on
deemed disposal of the Group’s equity interest in S2C Shanghai
was recognised in the consolidated income statement of the
Group and an amount of USD305,172 previously recognised in
other comprehensive income was reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group will continue to search for prospective targets for
investment and business cooperation. There were no material
investments or capital assets authorised by the Board at the
date of this annual report.

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no
other significant investments held as at 31 December 2020,
nor were there material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

Currency Risk and Management

The Group’s sales are primarily made in Europe, in
US dollar-denominated transactions and the PRC, in
RMB-denominated transactions. Sales of CAM were
predominantly denominated in US dollars while sales of IC
smart technology was predominantly denominated in RMB
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s costs of production are
predominantly denominated in RMB.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not
enter into any foreign currency forward contracts or use any
derivative contracts to hedge against the risk arisen from its
currency exposure. The Group manages its currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of foreign currency rates and
may consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group employed
about 312 employees (as at 31 December 2019: 290
employees), of whom 299 were based in Mainland China,
11 in Hong Kong and 2 in other countries around the world.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, staff costs (including
salaries, social insurance, provident funds and share incentive
plan) amounted to USD14.5 million in aggregate, representing
38.4% of the total revenue of the Group.
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The Group has entered into employment agreements with
all of its full-time employees. In addition, certain senior
management and key research and development personnel
have signed confidentiality agreements and non-competition
agreements with the Group. Each senior executive officer
has agreed to hold, both during the effective period and a
certain period thereafter of his or her employment agreement,
in strict confidence and not to use, except as required in the
performance of his or her employment duties, any confidential
information, trade secrets or know-how of the Group or the
confidential information of any third party received by the
Group. Additionally, each senior executive officer has agreed to
be bound by non-competition restrictions for a period of two
years following the expiry of his or her term of employment.

The Group's success depends on its ability to attract, retain and
motivate qualified personnel. The Group’s remuneration policy
and packages for its employees were periodically reviewed.
The Group is also dedicated to the training and development
of employees. Towards that end, the Group leverages on the
resources of its research and development centre, research
laboratories and project management team to ensure that
each employee maintains a current skill-set through continuous
training on topics ranging from technologies, solutions and
services to clients, markets and the industry. The Group
provides introductory training and orientation for all new
employees, as well as on-the-job training to continuously
improve employees’ technical, professional and management
skills.
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OUTLOOK

In 2020, the landscape of the global integrated circuit industry
changed dramatically, the influence of China and the urgency
of self-development in the industry were increasingly prominent.
During the first half of the year, when the conditions of the
pandemic were stabilised, work and production resumed
efficiently and rapidly, and driven by the new policy on
integrated circuit promulgated by the State Council in August,
the progress of domestic production of integrated circuit
was accelerated. Driven by the favorable national policy, the
production output of integrated circuit in China continued
to grow, the market size expanded rapidly, the structure of
the industry continued optimizing, and the ecosystem was
further improved. During the year, the Group also responded
to the national policy, followed the trend of market demand,
enhanced our own research and development standards
continuously, and deepened the development of integrated
circuit smart technology area through multiple channels.
Traditional business was rooted steadily and stable, while
efforts were made to drive progress in the marketization of
new businesses.

In the aspect of CAM business, the Group will continue to
pay attention to the market impact of the second outbreak
of the pandemic, research and development performance
will be improved through technological enhancement and
cost control, a new hardware platform for CAM with higher
functional competitiveness will be introduced to develop new
operator customers. By leveraging the compulsory terminal
policy of the new standards in the two major regions of
Europe and India, marketization of products including Cl+1.4
HbbTV ECP CAM and DVB CI+2.0 CAM, will be promoted.
The application opportunities of USB Dongle products in
domestic hotel ProCAM projects and terrestrial operator mobile
broadcasting in emerging markets will be further developed.

In respect of cloud services business, the Group will continue
to utilize its efficient teams to make proactive response to
customers’ feedback on various technical problems, secure
orders and ensure the quality of its after-sales service.
Meanwhile, the Group will improve the complementary pre-
sales and after-sales management protocol to provide an
outstanding services on customers support and maintenance
and safety of the cloud platform core equipments.
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In respect of IC solutions business, the Group will persistently
improve management of internally and externally for research
and development and sales and enhance measures on risks
control in the course of providing chip design supporting
services. Cooperation of resources from existing high education
institutions will be deepened, more scientific research and
talent resources will be deployed and invested to facilitate
more cooperation with high education institutions and
scientific research institutes. Internal and external relevant
resources will be further developed and actively integrated to
promote the realization and completion of more projects. In
the aspect of our own research and development, initiated
projects are further proceeded to achieve the market standards
and strive to achieve quantifiable relevant results. Meanwhile,
team management standards will be enhanced continuously
to facilitate optimization of team building. External publicity
of the Group will be strengthened to consolidate the branding
position of the Group in the semi-conductors industry.

In future, under the new development landscape of focusing on
big domestic circulation as the core and mutual reinforcement
between both domestic and international circulations,
consolidation within the integrated circuit industry will still be
the main trend, enterprises will also face new development
opportunities. The Group will make use of its own advantages
and position in the industry to generate internal circulation
through close cooperation among the government, enterprises,
academic institutions and research institutions, while using
market operation means at the same time to achieve synergetic
development with excellent integrated circuit design enterprises
through capital operation or technological development,
further promoted a wider and deeper layout of the Group’s
integrated circuits smart technology business not only in
government resources, and high education institutions, but
also in the capital market and in the industry. The diversified
development trends of concentrating on integrated circuit
design as the core will be persisted, based on the stable market
share in traditional business, the marketization progress of
new business will be driven continuously. While enhancing
the Group's integrated strengths and its reputation in the
industry, we shall strive to create better quality capital value for
shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to achieving a high level of corporate governance.
The Company has been in compliance with the principles and
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices ("CG Code”) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2020 up to the date of
this report, except the following deviation therefrom:

Code Provision A.2.1

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (CEO) should be separated
and performed by different individuals. During the period from
the Listing Date to the date of this report, the duties of the
Company's Chairman and CEO were not separated from each
other. Mr. Huang Xueliang has been serving as the Company's
Chairman and CEO during the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report.

The Company believes that Mr. Huang Xueliang serving as both
the Chairman and CEO will guarantee us strong and stable
leadership to perform planning and management of the Group
more effectively. In view of his extensive experience in the
industry, personal credentials and key roles in the Group and its
historical development, the Board believes that it is favorable to
the business prospects of the Group for Mr. Huang Xueliang to
serve as our Chairman and CEO on a continuous basis.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. As at the date of this report,
the Board consists of seven directors (“Directors”) of the
Company, including three executive Directors, a non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors. Their
biographical details and relationships amongst them (if any) are
set out on pages 55 to 63 of this annual report.



FF3RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

24

TERERRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERTEEEARE  AEGRREAS @ LRBRHRS
HT{E -%ﬂfﬁﬂﬁﬁij:é%;k%égf- BRIARARMEBE - &
AHEIARFERBRERERE  GIRIARRIREN AT R - B
BRI AR M EAIER T 5 -

HAERSE  FAERLARTHREEFEEE - KO
—R - EHAR 'TF%HEEI¥&‘ fﬁ'ﬁ‘iiRZQ{ﬁ/E?EsiZQ*k
c RBEFHEETONTORZBHANERTHES
cEREROEge TR e T RaEER -
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ TRINEE c MEANEESNESS
2EME  ARFRFRSEHAIEBEAN - HEBHMTE
k&ﬁﬁé%AKﬁ VWEIEBTEEERES
S 2ERAMN =KX - WEREFHERRHREN
BRXMHEADERBLESS - WESHAZBEKRERELFE
g3 AIREEEERS THRNEEMNEHEEFRAEHE X
SEXEAARENER -

3 Al

.

(L

=11

‘—H— \ﬂﬂﬂ
W 1B 1) 4 Bk R 4R W

m@ B M@ E@

WO R0 E
oW

}H\

B N ERe R R RN eR BN ECHRESS
NERELZEEMEBNEREMTERNRE a%é%hﬁ
MEAEE SEFECRNEFEREGTANTRCRE
BAg RengdzfTRNaERBATE m§$’u
HEFRHER ESeeanN R REMEESRE
B o

A
m

\

The Board shall perform the duties of corporate governance,
and its responsibilities are to convene the general meetings
and report its work to the shareholders; to implement the
resolutions of general meetings; to formulate the Company's
business plans, investment plans and annual budget and final
accounts; to prepare the Company's profit distribution plan,
loss recovery plan and proposals for increase or reduction of
registered capital.

The Board should meet regularly and board meetings should
be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals to review the Company’s historical financial reports
and operating conditions and approve the Company’s budgets
and overall strategies. Notices of no less than fourteen days
are given for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors
with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for a regular meeting. Additional meetings should
be held whenever the Board deems necessary. For other
board meetings and board Committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given by the Company. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors
or committee members at least three days before the board
meetings or board committee meetings to ensure that the
Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings or board committee
meetings. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the Chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and board committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered
by the Board and the board committees and the decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each board meeting and board committee
meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for comments within
a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
The minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by
the Directors.



BEFRB2NARFZERE - RARS AN EFTEXEM
BRARBEERBE—Z-_TF+ - A=+—HALEFRHEAR
AEHRNBERAT

FF$RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

25

TRERRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Directors actively participated in the meetings of the
Company. The members of the Board as at the date of this
report and their participation in the meetings of the Company

during the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

REZEEE] FHEEE FHRZEEE ERESS
=E =k =k = RERRE
Nomination Remuneration Audit Regular
EEMA Committee Committee Committee Board General
Name of Director meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
BER 171 TEFA TE 4/4 1/1
Huang Xueliang N/A N/A
HEER TEF 11 212 4/4 171
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen N/A
SR TERA 171 212 4/4 1/1
Zhang Junjie N/A
FAZIR 171 TEA 2/2 4/4 171
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond N/A
TEE 11 11 TEMA 4/4 11
Jin Yufeng N/A
BhALF NEA TEA NEA 4/4 171
Shuai Hongyu N/A N/A N/A
RESUBA TNEA TNEA TEA 4/4 171
Loong, Manfred Man-Tsun N/A N/A N/A
BE(RZE_TF=A-T+tHEE) TEf TE TNE 212 TEA
Gao Songtao (Resigned on 27 March 2020) N/A N/A N/A N/A
g W -_TF=A_+tRHEZER TER NEA NE A 2/2 1/1
MR-T-_—F=A-+HBEHE)

Liu Yang (Appointed on 27 March 2020 and resigned N/A N/A N/A

on 25 March 2021)

Fai T EFE+ A=+ —BUIEE  EESLRTMOAE
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The Board held four meetings during the year ended

31 December 2020. The Company is obliged to comply with

the CG Code and will take appropriate arrangements for
holding at least 4 regular Board meetings in the forthcoming
year. General meeting has been held once during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/connected relationship
among the Directors.
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Committees of the Board

The Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee under the Board assist in the full performance
of corporate governance duties. Each Board committee has the
right to obtain any complete and reliable information required
by it from the management. The committees shall, if necessary,
seek independent professional advice to perform their duties at
the expense of the Company.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its own decision all major matters
of the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors have the recourse
to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to
access and to consult with the Company’s senior management
independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions being entered into by the management.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, number of members and composition (including
skillsets, knowledge, experience and qualifications) of the
Board, providing recommendations to the Board on candidates
for any directorship and senior management membership,
determining the policy for the nomination of directors, assess
the Board diversity policy, and assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee will assess a candidate or incumbent based on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be
put to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee held a meeting to conduct annual review of the
structure, number of members and composition of the Board,
assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and discuss the Board diversity policy.

Nomination Policy
7 Objective

1.1 The Nomination Committee shall nominate
suitable candidates to the Board for it to consider
and make recommendations to Shareholders
for election as Directors at general meetings or
appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

1.2 The Nomination Committee may, as it considers
appropriate, nominate such number of candidates
to be appointed or re-appointed at a general
meeting, or the number of casual vacancies to be
filled.
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Selection Criteria

2.1

The factors listed below would be used as
reference by the Nomination Committee in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

(a

reputation for integrity;

experience in the industry and/or business
strategy, management, legal and financial
aspects;

whether the proposed candidate is able to
assist the Board in effective performance of
the responsibilities;

the perspectives and skills that the proposed
candidate is expected to bring to the Board;

commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

diversity in all its aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service; and

in the case of selection for independent
non-executive Directors, the independence
of the proposed candidate.

These factors are for reference only, and not

meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The

Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.



22 REANBEUBREBRIIEZAFTHOMEAER - A
ERERFAEE  ZRTRABRZE/ES  UEA
BEMX S ERAEGE T RE2EEE Rl
ZIEREMEEMARKELEAER

23 REZESGURR/ALE  AIUBERREARZH
BINE R AF

HEEET

31 REZEeNE((ZEERE AREEARRES
ZEegd BHEFENERBAZE(WE) -
HEESRGREZE - RFE - REZ BRI
EERZ D HEZIRIR R

32 m%ﬁﬁ§$AhFﬁﬁ REZEREHRBA

1§$A%FHME MEHBREATERE

ANE CREBEZEEANEFERE  HES
A%FI%%&TEAQL

33 HERAFEBHBRBRA  BREBATHERAD

EREZSHBERRAESE -

FF$RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

29

TEERKRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

2.2

2.3

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information in a prescribed
form, together with their written consent to
be appointed as a Director and to the public
disclosure of their personal data on any documents
or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in
relation to their standing for election as a Director.

The Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

3 Nomination Procedures

3.1

3.2

3.3

The secretary of the Nomination Committee
(the "Secretary”) shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior
to its meeting. Alternatively, such nomination may
be approved by the Committee by way of written
resolutions.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board's consideration and approval. For proposing
candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.

Until the issue of the Shareholder circular, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they
have been proposed by the Board to stand for
election at the general meeting.
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3.4 Subject to and pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company, any one or more
Shareholder can serve a notice of its intention to
propose a resolution to elect a certain person as a
Director, without the Board’s recommendation or
the Nomination Committee’s nomination.

3.5 The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of
candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

4 Confidentiality

Unless required by law or any regulatory authority, under
no circumstances shall a member of the Nomination
Committee or a staff member of the Company disclose
any information to or entertain any enquiries from the
public with regard to any nomination or candidature
before the circular to Shareholders, as the case may
be, is issued. Following the issue of the circular, the
Nomination Committee or the company secretary of
the Company or other staff member of the Company
approved by the Nomination Committee may answer
enquiries from the regulatory authorities or the public
but confidential information regarding nominations and
candidates should not be disclosed.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for
advising on the remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management members of the Company;
assessing performance of executive Directors and approving
terms of executive Directors’ service contracts; and developing a
set of standardised and transparent procedures for developing
the remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for determining the remuneration packages of
certain executive Directors and senior management members.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held a meeting to review the Group’s remuneration
policy and structure and determine the annual remuneration
of the Directors and senior management members as well as
other related matters.
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Audit Committee
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity under applicable standards, and to assess
the efficacy of their audit procedures;

3. to review the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports, accounts and interim reports,
and to review the significant opinions in relation to the
financial reporting contained therein;

4. to supervise the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems, assist the Board in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems, and advise the Board on matters
relating to corporate governance; and

5. to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with
its whistleblowing policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee held two meetings to fulfill the above duties.

Directors Training

Any newly appointed Director would be provided with the
necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
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All Directors participated in continuous processional

development to develop and update their knowledge and skills.

According to the records provided by the Directors, the training
programmes received by each Director during the year ended

31 December 2020 are as follows:

HERHEHR
Ht {73558
Seminars or
EEHA EERY other industry
Name of Director Director title events attended
BER IRE - PTESRARNTE \
Huang Xueliang Chairman, executive Director & CEO
EE EHITES v
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen Non-executive Director
SR & BYIERTESR V
Zhang Junjie Independent non-executive Director
ER BYFNTES v
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond Independent non-executive Director
vEg B ITES v
Jin Yufeng Independent non-executive Director
BIALF HITESE V
Shuai Hongyu Executive Director
BECEL HITESE \
Loong, Manfred Man-Tsun Executive Director
=B (RZETF=A =+t HFE) EMITES v
Gao Songtao (Resigned on 27 March 2020) Non-executive Director
B (M_Z-_TF=A-++HEZRER
RZZEZ—F=A=-+HBEHE) EMITES y

Liu Yang (Appointed on 27 March 2020 and
resigned on 25 March 2021)

IEREREHTE
RBE-B-FET-A=+—ALFERRAREAY &

BRECFRETFMERNTERS - AEANEEEERER
AREEREEEEE -

Non-executive Director

CHAIRMAN AND CEO

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and as at the date
of this report, Mr. Huang Xueliang served as the Chairman and
CEO to take charge of the Group’s overall strategic planning

and supervise the overall management of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) empower the Board with extensive industry
knowledge and experience, financial expertise and independent
judgments. They make effective recommendations on the
Company's strategies and policies through engagement in
committees of the Board, participation in Board meetings and
review of the Company'’s relevant reports.

During the year, the Board had at least three independent non-
executive Directors, one of whom has appropriate accounting
or related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has provided with
the Company an annual confirmation of his independence. The
Company considers that Mr. Zhang Junjie, Mr. Jin Yufeng and
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond are independent in compliance
with the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELATED INDIVIDUALS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors (“Code of Conduct”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standards under the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. After specific inquiries, it is confirmed that all the
Directors fully complied with the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The Code of Conduct applies to all the individuals who may
have access to inside information about the Company or its
securities as a result of their respective positions or duties as
defined by the CG Code, including employees of the Company
or directors or employees of the Company’s subsidiaries or
parent company.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee has received a letter from the Company’s
current auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers confirming its
independence and objectivity. The remuneration paid for the
services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliates (if
any) is as follows:

—E-EF —ZT-NF
2020 2019
F=r F=ET
BRHEE Nature of service USD’ 000 UsD’ 000
=22 REHRS Audit and review services 471 506
ERZBIRT (B IR bR RT Ak K Non-audit services (including risk assessment
RERIE I R AR and internal control consulting services, legal,
AR BT BIBEREERS financial, tax due diligence services, transactional
RS Z IR KA EBEERS) support services and legal retainer services) 26 83
497 594

EEHENZEQLNRE T - BRSNS
BT—HER - EFEW T HBRERBHEH AR EREL
LRENBREAFEZEMHHERZEATHBRE -

EERMBHRRAAEZERE

EEWREFAIRSEVRFERBGEMBHRE - UEE
DI EAREE 2 AN - EFIW AFEE A BRI A BELAR
NRARFBR SRR EB L ENR N EEERNEENEF K
HHEATEEAE EEECAEFSREVENREELE
o BEFSHRHRE TEFTSHENAR RPN HHRRETH
BHRHE - AAREMEFTE BN BRHEABAAFRR
AREBIRE AR ER

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, dismissal or removal
of the external auditor. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or situations which
may have material impact on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements for each financial year to
give a true and fair view of the conditions of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company
provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on
the Company's performance, position and prospects.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Directors consider that in preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has applied appropriate
accounting policies consistently and has followed all applicable
accounting standards.

ACCOUNTING RECORDS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
the financial position of the Group and enable the Group to
prepare consolidated financial statements in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board believes that a comprehensive set of risk
management and internal control systems plays an essential
role in achieving the Company’s strategic goals and has
therefore acknowledged its responsibilities annually to maintain
such systems, as well as review their effectiveness to protect
the investment of shareholders and safeguard the assets of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company'’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems, while the
management is accountable for setting up and maintaining
those systems as well as providing a confirmation on their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

With an aim to improve the Company’s risk management
system while enhancing its controls of risks and the ability to
mitigate risks, the Board established its own organizational
structure, and is continuously improving risk management
system and maintains risk management structure. The risk
management organizational structure is a 3-tier framework,
comprising of the Board and its Audit Committee, Risk
Management Committee, as well as Risk Management
Executives. The Company has also defined the direct
management responsibility of each tier and the reporting lines
between them.

Risk Management Structure

Board

Audit Committee

Q)
o
3
°
by
S
<
-
™
<
@

Risk Management Risk Management
Committee Coordinator

Department Head
Business Process
Principal
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TRETREREEERASERMEENAER Roles performed by parties at all levels within the risk

management structure are set out in the tables below:

BExg
Board
v AR EIE T RS
Approve plans and reports on risk management
\ HETERNOARNARER - SRFEMERBRREIRHRE - WEEEmLHE RS &
Conduct risk management of material decisions, including approving related risk management reports
and determining effective controls to the risks; and
\ sERBREEULRIFE
Strengthen the cultivation of risk management culture
EREE"
Audit Committee
v BAEREEZESNERE BERTEBEXRHE &
Review the setup of the Risk Management Committee and its job description, as well as the fundamental
management policies; and
v HHEARRAARERSERARERRE
Review assessment reports on material risks and various risk management reports
EREEZES

Risk Management Committee

\/

HBDRBEERNER  BEARERASHUERERABE

Promote the formulation of risk management system and define the structure and responsibilities of risk
management organisation

EHERARRERERAEMOECR - tIENESEMBER

Regularly review the risk management policies and procedures and oversee implementation
RERORRREHEARERER  FRURIERNORRNERERRE RERELHHEE &

Provide risk management suggestions on material decisions by reviewing and submitting risk
management reports and risk response; and

BEERNRIEBEAREEVLNIEER

Oversee the cultivation of the Company’s general risk management culture
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[ B T

Risk Management Coordinator

v

HERAPIFRERRBRBANMFELE  ERZIERRERRS - VIR TRREREZESS
Promote risk identification and evaluation on department level, formulate risk management reports and
submit them to the Risk Management Committee

5 HARRERZEERaREREHLREENRBETHER - fHE - REATEHERRRE
B RAERATE I

Coordinate the Risk Management Committee and senior management to conduct risk identification and
evaluation on the Company level, propose countermeasures to material risks

#Bh ~ BEEERERRITABRRORRERTERERBELS

Assist and monitor the risk management executives to perform risk management work and review
relevant results

AERREEERNEI - HZRERRERBMMEKETA

Organise trainings and share knowledge and best practices about risk management
EEAREERESEANMERRERERITIEZ TRBEEZEGRERELZES

Summarise the risk management results of both the Company level and business level and submit them
to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee

BEEE EBEREAEA

Department Head/Business Process Principal

\/

Il & s E R EIRE TR X RREARRRE RN IIE

Coordinate with risk management coordinator in performing risk management of their own businesses
EHE B RS ERBE

Regularly update the risk lists of their own businesses

AR R AR B EBZENREREM M - A6 BB ERFIEEHEAA R EITAE

Assess the impact and likelihood of the identified risks on the Company'’s businesses along with
characteristics of specific businesses

HEAREBNERRARESE TR YEREHTR 88 ABRREBEENIEENER

Prepare and implement risk responses for the relevant specific business risks; Take responsibility for
communicating and implementing the specific risk management measures
HARBESOSERBH#ETERE - REARRERERS 0 &

Monitor and report various risks that specific businesses are facing to the risk management coordinator; and
FRE R B IR 8 E b AERE T (F

Execute other work relevant to risk management
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Risk Management Process

The Company improves its management capability and
adaptability, and further ensures the realisation of business
objectives and sustainable growth through active and
systematic identification, assessment and response to risk
issues occurring in the operation process. The Company
has formulated and defined risk management process and
evaluation criteria in the Risk Management Manual. Risk
evaluation is carried out annually on the Company level
to determine the nature and extent of the risk and the
sufficiency of existing control measures through systematic
risk management procedures, which are four steps including
risk identification, evaluation, mitigation and reporting.
The Company prioritises risks based on the likelihood and
the impact on the Company’s businesses, and develops risk
responses and control measures and report on annual risk
assessment results, impact of material risks and best practices
of the industry to keep the risks at an acceptable level.

Internal Control System

The Company’s internal control system was constructed based
on the internal control framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisation of the Treadway Commission, and
considered the five components of internal control: control
environment, risk assessment, control activities, information
and communication and monitoring activities. The Company
designs control activities to address the risk of each key
business process, e.g. sales and receivables, purchase and
payables, inventory and research & development (R&D),
investment and acquisition etc., and monitors the operating
effectiveness of those controls to achieve the control objectives
of internal control system.

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness and adequacy
of the internal control system on an annual basis. If any
deficiency of internal control is identified, the Company
addresses it by communicating with the management internally
and ordering remediation to be taken. Any material deficiency
identified in the control procedures or polices will be reported
to the Board directly for communication and discussion.
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The Company'’s internal audit work is carried out by the
internal audit team, whose responsibilities have been defined
in the Internal Audit Charter. In 2020, our internal audit
personnel, together with members of an external consulting
firm appointed by the Company working as a team to
independently conduct internal control reviews on the
effectiveness of the key processes, and reported directly to the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee then oversees the
effectiveness of the internal controls system by reviewing and
approving the internal audit assessment plan and reports.

Inside Information

For the management of inside information, the Company has
formulated the Inside Information Disclosure Management
Policy to clarify the definition of such information and
procedures to handle and release them. The Company discloses
information to the public generally and non-exclusively
through channels including websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, aiming to achieve fair and timely
disclosure of information.

Review on the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems in 2020

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has, together
with the Audit Committee, reviewed the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems and considered
them to be effective and adequate. The review has covered
the year ended 31 December 2020 and all material controls,
including, operational, financial and compliance controls and
considered the changes in the nature and extent of significant
risks as well as the Company’s ability to respond to changes in
its business and the external environment. The Board and the
Audit Committee consider such systems to be effective and
adequate.

The Board and Audit Committee have also reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of its accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions this year, and considered
the same to be adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric has served as the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) during the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Company Secretary reports to
the Chairman of the Board, and the appointment and removal
of the Company Secretary are determined by all the members
of the Board.

The Company Secretary is responsible for assisting the
Chairman of the Board and the chairmen of its committees in
developing meeting agendas, preparing meeting minutes in a
timely manner and sending them to the Directors and members
of the committees; for ensuring that all the Directors comply
with the Board's policies and procedures and all applicable
regulations and rules; and for ensuring accurate recording of
the meeting procedures, discussions and decisions of meetings
of the Board/its committees.

Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric had received more than 15 hours of
professional training during the year in accordance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules. His biographical details are set out in
page 63 of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
direct communication between shareholders and the Board.
Shareholders are welcome to make enquiries to the Board or
the management thereat, and the Chairman of the Board,
or in his absence, an executive Director, and chairmen of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, other members of the
committees, will normally be present and available to answer
questions. Shareholders may also send their written enquiries
to the Company Secretary.
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The Company is committed to enhancing its communication
and relationship with its investors. To this end, the
Board endeavors to provide shareholders with clear and
comprehensive information on the Group through different
media and official website. In addition to the circulars, notices
and financial reports dispatched to shareholders, they may
also visit the Group’s website (www.smit.com.cn) for more
information.

Procedure for Making Proposals at Annual General
Meetings

Shareholders may make proposals or motions at annual general
meetings in accordance with the Company’s memorandum of
association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
the relevant provisions.

Procedures for Requisitioning an Extraordinary General
Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of submission of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of
the Company may, by serving at any time a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for the handling of
the matters specified in the requisition.

Dividend Policy
1 Objective

1.1 The Board endeavours to maintain a balance
between meeting Shareholders' expectations and
prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).

1.2 Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group
is profitable and without affecting the normal
operations of the Group, the Company may
declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders.

1.3 The Dividend Policy aims to allow the Shareholders
to participate in the Company's profit and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.
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2 Criteria

2.1

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall
also take into account, inter alia:—

(a

the Company and the Group's actual and
expected financial performance;

retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members
of the Group;

the level of the Group's debts to equity
ratio, return on equity and the relevant
financial covenants;

any restrictions on payment of dividends
that may be imposed by the Group's
lenders;

the Group's expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans
and prospects;

general economic and financial conditions,
business cycle of the Group's business and
other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company;
and

any other factors that the Board deem
appropriate.
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Procedures for Dividend Declaration and Payment

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

The Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or
payment of future dividends under the Dividend
Policy are subject to the Board's continuing
determination that the Dividend Policy and
the declaration and/or payment of dividends
would be in the best interests of the Group and
Shareholders, and are in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company.

Any dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by an ordinary resolution of Shareholders
at an annual general meeting and must not exceed
the amount recommended by the Board.

The Board may from time to time pay to the
Shareholders such interim dividends or special
dividends as appear to the directors to be justified
by the profits of the Group.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of
the Board. There is no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

Review of the Dividend Policy

4.1

The Board will continually review the Dividend
Policy and reserves the right in its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/
or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time, and the
Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company in respect
of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.
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CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no
changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.

By order of the Board
Huang Xueliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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We are a leading security devices provider for pay TV
broadcasting access worldwide. We have also entered into
Rapid Verification Systems and Software business. Pursuant
to the relevant requirements of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group will continue to disclose an
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)
on an annual basis. Set out below are the important contents
of such report closely related to the Group’s businesses:

ENVIRONMENT
Emissions

The Group's policy is to ensure compliance with applicable
environmental laws and regulations and to reduce
environmental footprints through efficient use of resources and
application of environment-friendly technologies.

The Group is committed to promoting environmental
awareness among its employees. The Group believes that
raising environmental awareness is the key to environmental
protection and the promotion of public health.

In view of the nature of the Group’s business, the Company
believes that the direct impact of its business operations on the
environment and natural resources is very insignificant.

Sewage Discharge

The Group has no industrial sewage discharge, and its
domestic water, meeting relevant discharge standards, is
discharged into a municipal pipeline through the pipe network
of the industrial zone, which is in compliance with the relevant
provisions under the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution, the Detailed Rules for the Law of
the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution,
and the Measures on the Supervision of Sewage Treatment
Facilities for Environmental Protection. The Company operates
in accordance with the requirements on clean production and
in compliance with the relevant requirements under the Law of
the PRC on Promoting Clean Production.
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Noise Emissions

All departments have conscientiously implemented noise
prevention measures and performed noise reduction processing
for noise-producing equipment without working at night,
which meets the relevant standards of the Emission Standard
for Industrial Plant Noise at Boundary and which, coupled
with the fact that there is no residential area in the proximity
of the Company, is in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations such as the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Noise Pollution.

Exhaust Emissions

As the Company is in a high-tech park in terms of ambient
air function zoning, the Company implements the medium-
level standards for environmental air quality as provided under
the Ambient Air Quality Standards (GB3095-96). Currently,
all our emission indicators meet the relevant requirements.
Our test and production process virtually produces no exhaust
gas, which is in compliance with the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution and meets the
standards under the Integrated Emission Standards for Air
Pollutants. There is no leakage of Freon generated from
air conditioning, which is in compliance with the relevant
provisions of the Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete
the Ozone Layer.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste Management

Due to our business nature, our operation does not produce
any significant hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste.
After self-inspections conducted by all departments, it is
confirmed that the hazardous waste of each department,
including waste batteries, toner cartridges and ink cartridges,
has been classified and put into separate dustbins in a timely
manner, and all waste fluorescent lamps have to be returned
in exchange for new ones. All hazardous waste is collected
centrally for disposal. The production and domestic waste of
the Company has been disposed of as required in a timely
manner, which is in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations such as the Law of the PRC on Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste.



FF3RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

48

B HERERHKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

fL2ERmAKE  Bh  HEERERR

AEBBRMERSRIEEmOERRERE -

RERBRRARERYT  ARERARETEMLTIFAREN

BWSRAM - THRRABRSFEDRER &Xﬁfﬂﬂ%&%f*ﬁ
A RBE—T_TF+_A=1+—BLFE  IREAR
BEPRHRERR 752 UKBERTEHNME -

BEREH

AEBABARNFIREEHELEANK BAE R#BE R
BHERER  SE(PEARRMBEESHOERE) A BR
E o AEEBEERETERKERD - AHSEESEBRE K
REIRREE ©

RBE_ZF_FTEFT_A=T-HLEFE AKEER

1,025,735[Z % + 1,869 /5 K/KF19.6MB B EEM L (4555) -

RIERRAER

REFEEARL RERFURBBRAEREXZE - B
RR(PE AR AMBIRITREE) FLERIT o

Procurement, Transport, Storage and Preservation of
Hazardous Chemicals

The Group is not presently involved in any use and
management of chemicals.

In an effort to strictly follow environmental protection
requirements, the Group regularly hands out labor protection
supplies to staff in positions with hidden danger, arranges for
staff to take annual physical examination, and affords them
occupational disease detection. There is no occurrence of
environmental, safety and occupational disease issues resulting
from the Company’s operations during the year ended 31
December 2020.

Resource Utilisation

All of the Group’s departments and entities have specific
control measures for consumption of domestic water, office
electricity and paper, which satisfy the relevant requirements
of the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC. The Group
vigorously implements advice solicitation activities to encourage
employees to contribute to cost reduction and efficiency
improvement ideas.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
consumed 1,025,735 kWh of electricity, 1,869 m* of water
and 9.6 tonnes in packaging materials (cartons).

Environment and Natural Resources
Since its inception, the Group has never compromised the

environment and natural resources in any way and has strictly
complied with the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC.
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SOCIETY
Employment and Labor Practices

The Group's success relies on its ability to attract, retain and
motivate qualified personnel. The Group is generally able
to attract and retain qualified personnel and maintain a
stable core management team. The Group is committed to
the training and development of its employees. The Group
engages its R&D center, research laboratories and project
management team in ensuring that each employee receives
continuous training on subjects from techniques, solutions
and services to the Group's clients, the markets and industries
where it operates, so as to maintain the employees’ current
skillsets. The Group provides orientation training for all new
employees, and offers on-the-job training to continuously
enhance the technical, professional and managerial capabilities
of its employees.

The Group believes that the Group maintains a good working
relationship with its employees. Since its inception, the Group
has not been involved in any significant labor dispute or other
dispute with the labor authorities of the Chinese government.
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RZZB-ZTF+-_A=+—0 2EER4ER - ERER - F A breakdown of the Group's employees by gender,

BAR R b [E B R B ABE ST ¢ employment type, age group and region as at 31 December
2020 is as follows:

EE#EH ERAER R
Total number of employees Employment type By gender
Bt 7
Male Female
312 2EER - FRBBER 214 98

Full time with a labor contract signed

EEAE (RFERERES) BEAB (RHBEED)
Numbers of Employee (By age group) Numbers of Employee (By region)

144
299

122
31
"
14
N ] :
G = = I
: : AR &% i

1
18-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 >61 China Mainland Hong Kong Overseas
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REE-Z-_TF+-_A=1T—"HILFE - AEERMLH - F During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
H%‘?H/“J‘J&ﬂﬂln:uiﬂ DMEEMAREFN AT - employee turnover rates by gender, age group and region are
as follows:
BRkE BRI RERAR e
Total turnover rate By gender By age group By region
185% — 35— 4B - 515 — 613K
B beg 3 305% 405% 50%% 605% Nt HERS B =) |
Aged
Aged Aged Aged Aged 61and China
Male Female 18-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 above Mainland HongKong  Taiwan
10.58% 12.15% 7.14% 17.36% 4.92% 6.45% . = 11.26% — —
REEEZ R Health and Safety
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EHRE RAIARE BIA R R 20 TIERIE » £ERENRREHR
A BE 2K ER REREEATEERNBRIITE

@
=5k -

=t

AEBEEAEENANBEESREE
L%m?mﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁx%ﬂﬁ%
BIBEREABRANEENEELER
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The Group is required to comply with the Safety Production
Law, the Labor Law of the PRC and other relevant Chinese
laws, administrative regulations, national standards and
industry standards, which stipulate requirements on
maintaining a safe production environment and safeguarding
employees’ occupational health. In accordance with these
requirements, an entity with any facility or equipment failing to
guarantee production safety shall not engage in production and
business operations. Entities operating in China must provide
employees with production safety education and related
training programmes as well as a safe working environment.
The design, manufacturing, installation, use, inspection and
maintenance of production facilities and equipment must meet
applicable national or industry standards.

The Group has implemented safety measures within its
production facilities to ensure compliance with applicable
regulatory requirements and minimise the risk of injury to
employees. The Group regularly examines its operating facilities
to ensure that the Group's production and operations are in
compliance with existing laws and regulations. In addition, the
Group requires new employees to receive job safety training.

In 2020, there was no work-related accident or injury occurred
thanks to the foregoing procedures and measures taken by the
Group. In addition, each new employee is required to produce
a qualified medical certificate, and the Company arranges
health examination for employees annually.
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Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to the improvement
of staff quality and related professional skills, and develops
training programmes for staff members based on the business
needs of each position.

In 2020, all employees of the Group received on average 5.6
hours of training, and the number of training sessions by type
of training are set out below:

hREEE
b2
Training
for senior  HMEIZA < BBEIZI AEEEN  HEIEI
and middle Technical Financial Production Orientation
management training training training training
=HIN = 107 10 11 5

Number of training sessions

TR

S

REE—HRBHREMETASRE BRI HEBEETR
RIS T - REETETREKABRERERNER - KHE
£ #H ERIREERMB TS HAE BB TAEE
& BRIBBETREHST e hBREREBN

BEEE
HEEEE

AEENHEE B (a) A5 B [ E KRB E 5 A A A 8RR
& ROETAEEERNE TEERFONOEH - E-F
“TEE ARAARHEFRBRE D T2RTEER
& IS TR LBUARARE -

Labor Standards

The Group generally recruits talent via recruitment websites,
and never employs child labor or forced labor. The Group also
follows the relevant national laws and regulations to rationalise
labor relations and division of labor by improving relevant
measures and mechanisms, to safeguard the legitimate rights
and interests of employees and to resist child labor or forced
labor, to prevent contraventions.

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT
Supply Chain Management

The Group's suppliers include (a) manufacturers from whom
the Group purchases components for its products and (b)
subcontractors undertaking certain production processes
for the Group’s products. In 2020, the Company's qualified
suppliers were mainly based in Guangdong Province, Jiangsu
Province, Xi'an, Shanghai, and Taiwan, the PRC.
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The Group requires its suppliers to incorporate QP-13
procurement control procedures and QP-14 supplier evaluation
and management control procedures using the Company's ISO
filing system. All suppliers have been managed according to
the system:

1. Access review: set up access requirements for suppliers
and maintain supplier profiles; review each supplier’s
operating conditions, production capacity, quality
assurance system, product quality, delivery period
and other related information to ensure that the
raw materials purchased meet the quality and safety
standards under the national laws, regulations and
standards.

2. Process review: set up procedures for reviewing raw
materials in the utilisation process and a traceability
mechanism to ensure consistent product quality during
the supply process; review the purchase inspection,
for-production utilisation, examination results and
handling of substandard products with regard to the
suppliers’ products.

3. Evaluation management: establish an evaluation system
to conduct comprehensive evaluation of suppliers on
a regular basis; evaluate the product quality, delivery
capacity, technical level and product qualification rate of
each supplier, and weed out or request improvements
from subpar suppliers.

4. On-site review: conduct regular on-site reviews of key
raw material suppliers in terms of production capacity,
production process, quality control, and other metrics.

Product Responsibility

For any product arising from abnormal function due to any
software issues or misuse of the product, the Company may,
if necessary, dispatch a technician to clarify the causes for
the customer face to face, and if possible, to try and resolve
the problem on the spot, otherwise the Unqualified Product
Control Procedures and the Control Procedures for Corrective
and Preventive Measures shall apply.



FF3RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

54

B HERERHKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REBMAEMRBIZB(EEENREF)NT - UREMRAF
BIRAZET ©

1{77 —ZFE - AREREERTARNIRE L 2 MERRHE
@E}\Jéuu °

FEEBH RO EEESRER) RSB ENREUR
FERAPR LIRS -

REBER R B s B E A B AV BT RIS Em -
FEXIE RE G RERR] RE AR -

AEENESBERTOERE R - WERB THFFRE
W% - AR TARTEARERENE TREERNES - &
fl AR B AN A R AR 1R IR B SR A AN EE R AR AR AT

RES

AEEB TFMEBEEEN S ERZT BB RES - B
VIR tARIL T BRIREPAE - AR DR A BPEIEHS - R
BARBRFSE KR - BB SHRSBEREL -

E_ZT_FFE  BARFRE
MESRE ZRREN

F AEEREEBWEESE

&
NEBIRE

AEE-EHEERBEITESET  BELSFHER  EALE
EL%EMEEHﬁo$¢lt¢ﬂﬁ§tﬁal%ﬁ&%%

B2EE) - DEEIH ORI - BN NEEFFEIEHMN
mmﬁ ERERM - AR -

The Group follows the Quality Control Procedures and applies
a product recall process to guarantee the specifications of all its
products.

In 2020, none of the products sold by the Group were returned
due to safety or health problems.

The Group strictly abides by the Law on Protection of the
Rights and Interests of Consumers to safeguard the rights and
interests of consumers and their privacy.

The Group shall agree on certain confidentiality clauses or
sign a confidentiality agreement with any entity which is
commissioned by, or works with, the Group to develop new
technologies or new products.

The Group also incorporates confidentiality clauses into labor
contracts and has signed a confidentiality agreement with
each employee to make it clear that the employees have the
obligation to keep confidential certain information relating to
the Group. As for other relevant intellectual property rights, the
national intellectual property protection standards are strictly
followed.

Anti-corruption

The Group's employee handbook and cooperation agreements
with suppliers all contain anti-corruption and bribery provisions,
and a whistle-blowing mailbox has been set up to strengthen
the Company's internal control mechanism, so as to safeguard
the Company'’s interests and prevent corruption and fraud.

In 2020, neither the Group nor, to the Company's knowledge,
its employees were involved in any legal proceedings relating
to corruption.

COMMUNITY
Community Investment

The Group has been actively living up to its responsibility to
promote harmonious development of society as an important
direction for its long-term development. Each year, the Group
sponsors physical examination for employees, and organises
various group activities to entertain employees. In addition, the
Group also pays urban maintenance and construction tax for
urban construction on an annual basis.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Xueliang (Z22R), aged 58, is the chairman,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of our
Company and the Founder of our Group. He was appointed as
the chairman, executive Director and the chief executive officer
of our Company with effect from 20 September 2015. He
is also a director of SMIT Hong Kong. Mr. Huang is primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning and overseeing
the general management of our Group. He has over 40 years
of working experience in the IC design industry.

From March 1989 to December 1991, Mr. Huang worked in
the China National Electronic Devices Corp., Shenzhen branch
(P B E T2 RIFEIIAR]), a company primarily engaged
in distributing and selling computer related components and
other electronic components. From January 1992 to February
1993, Mr. Huang worked as the vice manager in Shenzhen
Xianke Mechatronics Corporation (RYIT1 5 BHER E T2 7)),
a company engaged in the processing of various electronic
modules and components. Mr. Huang is the Board Chairman
of Shenzhen State Micro Science and Technology Co. Ltd. (&
JITEBEREBR A F]), a company engaged in the research
and development of integrated circuit design, since 1993.
Mr. Huang served as a non-independent director of Nationz
Technologies Inc. (BT AR E]), a leading provider
of secure IC products and services between May 2018 and
April 2020. He has served as Board Chairman of Shenzhen
Smart Device Technology Co.,LTD (#IITH 48 3= Z B lg %
3B RA7]), a high-tech company focus on smart screen
and machine intelligence, since September 5, 2015. He was
appointed as Board Chairman of S2C Limited (/8 B/ B 8/
FAMTALAD B R A F))(Formerly named as S2C Shanghai Co., Ltd
(BET (L8) ERRKBERAQF]) from November 5, 2018.
He has served as the deputy director of China Semiconductor
Industry Association IC Design Branch (Fh B E 2172 & &
KB EFTDE) since November 2005, and deputy director of
The Integrated Circuit Design Industry Technology Innovative
Alliance (525X BB IR IR 712 3 FR T 21T SR Bk BR).

Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor’s degree in semiconductor
from Xidian University (formerly known as North-western
Telecommunications Engineering School (FF1L & T2 23Ft))
in July 1984 and a master’s degree in electrical engineering
from Southeast University in April 1989.
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Mr. Shuai Hongyu (BPAL), aged 60, is an executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Shuai joined the Group on October 2005,
and was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
23 March 2017.

Mr. Shuai is the president and the chief operating officer of
our Company. He is primarily responsible for co-leading, with
Mr. Huang Xueliang, our business operation and overseeing
strategic technologies. Mr. Shuai is also a director of SMIT
Hong Kong and SMIT Shenzhen. Mr. Shuai has more than 21
years of industry experience related to image processing and
digital television technologies.

From 1987 to 1989, Mr. Shuai has been the engineer in
the computer department of the Sichuan Province Remote
Sensing Center (P9)I|& & A OEHEE). From 1989 to 2000,
Mr. Shuai was the vice president of the Southwest Branch
of China Council for the Promotion of Applied Technology
Exchange with Foreign Counties (/B &) & B 17 2 7 12
#EPEEHE). From 2000 to 2001, Mr. Shuai worked as
the vice president of Beijing Zhongshilian Digital System Co.,
Ltd. (tRHP R BT ZRBER Q). Between March 2001
to March 2004, Mr. Shuai was the general manager of DTVIA
Conditional Access System (CHINACRYPT) Co., Ltd. (At 18
G EIR RS AR A R]), a conditional access joint-venture
between Philips Cryptoworks (China) Limited and China Digital
TV Holding Co., Ltd. Between July 2004 and October 2005,
Mr. Shuai worked as the general manager of Beijing Pu'aode
Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (3L FURRISEE AR A 7)),
a company engaged in the design and development of digital
television system.

Mr. Shuai obtained a bachelor’s degree in wireless
communication in July 1982 and a master’ s degree in
engineering in January 1987 from Xidian University (formerly
known as North-western Telecommunications Engineering
School (FEIL B T2,
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Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun (€3 %), aged 66, is an
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Loong joined the
Group on July 2013, and was appointed as an executive
Director of our Company with effect from 23 March 2017.

Mr. Loong is the executive vice president and chief financial
officer of our Company. Mr. Loong is primarily responsible for
the management of the overall financial and accounting affairs
of our Group.

Mr. Loong has extensive experience in accounting and related
financial management. Prior to 2006, Mr. Loong had extensive
experience working at Lucent Technologies (China) Co., Ltd.
Between April 2006 and July 2009, he served as the chief
financial officer and chief operating officer at UTStarcom
Telecom Co., Ltd., the subsidiary of UTStarcom Holdings Corp.
(NASDAQ: UTSI), a global telecom infrastructure provider,
focused on delivering innovative carrier-class broadband
transport and access (both Wi-Fi and fixed line) products and
solutions, optimised for mobile backhaul, metro aggregation,
broadband access and Wi-Fi data offloading. Between January
2010 to May 2012, Mr. Loong was the chief financial officer of
China Ming Yang Wind Power Group Ltd. (NYSE: MY), a wind
turbine manufacturer in China, listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, focusing on designing, manufacturing, selling and
servicing megawatt-class wind turbines.

Mr. Loong graduated from the University of Washington with
a Bachelor of Arts degree in business administration in June
1978 and was qualified as a certified public accountant in New
Jersey in the United States in February 1990.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen (B#E &), aged 63, is a
non- executive Director of our Company. Mr. Kwan joined
our Group in September 2015 and was appointed as a
non- executive Director of our Company with effect from
20 September 2015. Mr. Kwan has been a director of SMIT
Corporation since February 2008.

He served as the regional vice president and managing
director of North Asia from July 2001 to January 2006 and
the vice president from January 2006 to April 2007 in Yahoo!
International. Mr. Kwan has been a venture partner of Oak
Management Corporation, a venture capital firm which is an
affiliate of Oak Investment Partners X, L.P., since April 2007.
He has served as a director since November 2008 and was a
member of the audit committee for NeoPhotonics Corporation
(NYSE: NPTN), a designer and manufacturer of photonic
integrated circuit based modules listed in the New York Stock
Exchange until November 2015.

Mr. Kwan obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical
engineering from the University of British Columbia in May
1982, a master of business administration degree from the
Wharton School of University of Pennsylvania in May 1987, and
a Master of Arts degree from the University of Pennsylvania in
May 1987.

Mr. Gao Songtao (&#7%), aged 51, was a non-executive
Director of our Company. Mr. Gao joined the Group on 23
March 2017 when he was appointed as a non-executive
Director of our Company. Mr. Gao resigned from the Group on
27 March 2020.

Mr. Gao graduated from the University of Electronic Science
and Technology of China with a bachelor degree in July 1991,
and he received a master’s degree in economics from the
Renmin University of China in June 2006 and an IMBA degree
jointly from the Fudan University and the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Gao was the vice president of Sino-IC Capital Ltd.
(ELREEEEREMAR]), the general partner of China
Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. (B
EXNEBREXZREEZSKMARATF) (“China IC Fund”).
China IC Fund indirectly holds the entire share capital of Xinxin
(Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited (/% (&/8) I EBR A7),
one of our cornerstone investors during the global offering of
the Shares in 2016.
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Mr. Liu Yang (25¥), aged 40, was a non-executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Liu joined our Group as a non-executive
Director on 27 March 2020.

Mr. Liu graduated from the Peking University with a dual-
bachelor degree in physics and economics in July 2003 and
received a master’s degree in physics from the University of
Notre Dame in May 2006. Mr. Liu was the general manager in
the Second Investment Department of Sino-IC Capital Ltd. (£
SR EBEFREMLAR), the fund manager of the China IC
Fund. China IC Fund indirectly holds the entire share capital
of Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited (ZBN(HB)HEHE
fRZ27]), one of the cornerstone investors during the global
offering of the shares of the Company in 2016 and an existing
shareholder of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Junjie (3Rf&#E), aged 51, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Zhang joined
the Group on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from 6 March 2016.

Mr. Zhang has over 11 years of experience in the investment
banking industry. From May 2001 to December 2004, Mr.
Zhang worked in Dapeng Securities Company (KIS A5 BRE
fE/A&]) . From February 2005 to May 2017 , he worked as the
general manager in the business department of the investment
bank, Guosen Securities Company Limited (B{E& 5N B
fRZ2F]). Mr. Zhang has served as the general manager of
Shenzhen Qianhai Huigiao Investment Management Ltd (%
YT R BEBIREEEEMRAR])since June 2017 ° Since
October 2017, Mr. Zhang has been director of Suzhou Xinrui
Alloy Tools Co., Ltd (BJNFTEiE € TAKRMKHBRAF) and
Hubei W-OIf Photoelectric Technology Co.,Ltd. G4t T 77 %%
BAXH BBRAR]) (stock code:002962) (a high-tech enterprise
specializing in research, development, production and sales
of precision photoelectric thin film components). Mr. Zhang
has served as independent director of Shenzhen Landray
Software Co.,Ltd. ORINTIEE Z B AR AR 2 7)) which is
a professional digital OA & service provider since December
2018. He joined Proitav Technology Limited CFEII BRI BB
[R/27]), a national high-tech enterprise focusing on research,
development and production of audio and video products as
director since April 2019.

Mr. Zhang received a bachelor’s degree in oil development and
drilling engineering from the Jianghan Petroleum University
(now known as Yangtze University) in June 1992. He received
a master’s degree in industrial economics from Wuhan
University of Technology in June 1999. Mr. Zhang also received
an executive master of business administration degree from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in October 2012.
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Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (# X #), aged 52, is an
independent non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Woo
joined the Group on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from 6 March 2016.

Mr. Woo has over 21 years of experience in the accounting
and financial services industry. He began his career at Arthur
Andersen & Co (BBREEGFIAMEBFT) where he
qualified. From November 1997 to March 2004, Mr. Woo
served as a vice president of capital markets advisory M&A
execution, investment banking division of ING Bank H.V.. From
June 2006 to August 2006, Mr. Woo served as managing
director and head of finance corporate at CITIC Securities
(HK) Company Limited (F{E:&% (F8) ER A F]). From
August 2007 to June 2010, Mr. Woo served as a director in
the investment banking department of Credit Suisse (Hong
Kong) Limited, a leading financial services company. Mr. Woo
joined IRC Limited (BE)IIREHBRAF) (HKSE: 1029), an
industrial commodities producer listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange as an executive director between June
2010 to March 2015 and he has since then been re-designated
as a non-executive director of IRC Limited (#;TIREHERE Q7))
and was appointed as an independent non-executive director
since January 2018. Mr. Woo has served as an independent
non-executive director of Yuanda China Holdings Limited (&
AFRBZER AR AR (HKSE: 2789), a company principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of curtain walls listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since April 2011.

Mr. Woo received a bachelor’s degree of commerce in the
University of New South Wales, Australia in April 1992. Mr.
Woo became a certified practising accountant of the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants in November 1996,
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in April 2005.
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Mr. Jin Yufeng (& %), aged 60, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Jin joined the Group
on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of our Company with effect from 6 March
2016.

Mr. Jin has over 31 years of research experience in the
electronic engineering industry. From April 1985 to March
1999, Mr. Jin worked as an engineer and senior engineer in
the 55th Research Institute of China Electronics Technology
Group Corporation (FEEFRIEFEEERRZE R TAMRE
FIT), which is specialised in the research and development on
electronic components. From April 1999 to February 2001,
Mr. Jin was a post-doctoral research fellow in the Institute of
Microelectronics, Peking University (At SR E214 & T E2 47 555,
November 2001 to October 2004, Mr. Jin served as a senior
research engineer of Singapore Institute of Manufacturing
Technology. He has been a professor in the School of
Electronics Engineering and Computer Science ({5 2RI,
{iTE2B) in Peking University since August 2006. Mr. Jin was a
consultant of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute Company Limited (& & FRHAT 55
BRR A A from August 2007 to November 2007. Mr. Jin has
served as an independent director of Shanghai Belling Co.,
Ltd (/8 B 485 BBRAE]) (SHSE: 600171), an IC designer
and application developer listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, from December 2013 to November 2019. He has
served as independent Director of Hwatsing Co., Limited. (2
EBRDERZAR]), a high-end semiconductor equipment
manufacturer with core independent intellectual property
rights, since November 2020.

Mr. Jin received his bachelor’s degree and master’s degree in
electronic engineering from Southeast University (previously
known as Nanjing Institute of Technology (F 5= T &%) in
July 1982 and July 1985 respectively. He received his doctorate
degree in physics and electronics from Southeast University in
March 1999.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric (B8E1Z), aged 37, is the company
secretary of our Company. Mr. Cheng has approximately
15 years of experience in accounting and related financial
management. Mr. Cheng worked in the audit department
of Kreston CAC CPA Limited (previously named as Chan and
Chan) from September 2006 and left the firm as an assistant
audit supervisor in May 2011. Between May 2011 and August
2012, he worked as a senior accountant and subsequently
as a finance manager in Icicle Production Company Limited.
Between October 2012 and March 2013, he served as an
audit manager of L & P CPA Limited. From May 2013 to July
2014, Mr. Cheng served as an assistant accounting manager
of ASR Logistics Holdings Limited (HKSE: 1803), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheng
obtained a bachelor of commerce degree in accounting from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong
Shue Yan University) in July 2006. Mr. Cheng received a
master of professional accounting degree from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2012. He has been registered
as a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since May 2010.
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Directors are pleased to present their reports and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS

The Group is a leading security devices provider globally for
pay TV broadcasting access and for mobile point-of-sales, or
mPOS, payment systems in China. The Group designs, develops
and markets security devices primarily for the pay TV industry
worldwide through sales of conditional access module, or
CAM, products which provide end users with access to pay
TV content. The Group obtained requisite approval from
the PRC Central Government for the implementation of the
national science and technology project of “Development
and Application of Full Process Electronic Design Automation
System for Chip Design” in 2018 and duly launched the
research and development of EDA system, and then further
penetrate into the semi-conductor IC smart technology
business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in the section head “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 5 to 22 of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

For the details of the results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 and the financial condition of the Group at
that date, please refer to the consolidated financial statements
on page 97 to 239.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK1 cent (equivalent to approximately USDO.1 cents) per share,
totaling USD411,405.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the Company’s distributable reserves as at 31
December 2020 are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had no
donation (2019: nil) to charitable organisations.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital for
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

To recognise and acknowledge the contributions made by
certain of its employees, directors and consultants to the
growth of SMIT Corporation, SMIT Corporation adopted a
share incentive plan on 21 February 2008 (the “2008 Share
Plan”). As part of the reorganisation in preparation for the
listing of the Company, the Company assumed the 2008
Share Plan as the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) by resolutions in writing of
the sole shareholder passed on 15 September 2015, and
assumed all the rights and obligations under options granted
by SMIT Corporation under the 2008 Share Plan, and all share
option agreements entered into between SMIT Corporation
and the holders of such options, to the intent and effect that
all such share options granted under, and such share option
agreements entered, under the 2008 Share Plan will be valid,
binding and enforceable against the Company in accordance
with their terms, as if such options had been granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.



FF3RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

66

EEEHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BRAFEERBRE SIS AN BB S - TIARERR
RARBRBEAL (EERTX) ELXAREELHART
BB R - BRAREERBRESINENERS
BRFALTIREERE - BBBEARRRMNNARRRRKIIE
RIS P R R S IE ML Fheas o

BRAARBEENMBRETINSERZEAL (RBIEEK
2HEAL]) BEATAL  VARA] - BEERERBSHEDMA
MEARNES  (NYEFAAREENAAREZENE :
(i) AAE - EEARRRSREEANBARNER -

FEERERRDARREE X AR ERIERE I ER
FERARNEOSE AN BRERN B H - BIRERZEAE
FTBAMRIR &R AR B AT BB AR M AT 8 ) SRR AR B AR Y
R REEMBERT - ZHRHTSE@EBBERE A AR 10
F o BT TE(B JY R SMIT CorporationZE HEEE ©

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the Eligible Participants (as defined below)
have or may have made to the Company. The purpose of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to offer selected persons an
opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the success
of the Company, or to increase such interest, by purchasing
Shares of the Company.

The eligible participants (collectively the “Eligible
Participants”) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme include
any individual who is (i) an employee of the Company, any of
its parent companies or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) a member of
the board of directors of the Company who is not an employee
of the Company; or (iii) a consultant to the Company, any of its
parent companies or any of its subsidiaries.

Each share option agreement shall specify the date on
which all or any instalment of the option shall be granted to
each grantee under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The
term of options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be specified in the share option
agreement and, in any case, shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant. The exercise price of the options were
determined by the directors of SMIT Corporation.
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No further options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme on or after the Listing Date.

Set out below are details of the outstanding options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as 31 December 2020:

i 1
-B-H 8588
RuEne EORREH N-S-REE RC3CREE WORREE tIAST-R
REARH/ 14 EERAEE etifidd fikE EREH HHE METSNHE fifig ¥ fixa WAGE
Number of Weighted
Share average
underlying closing price Outstanding
the options before the Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asof
Category/ granted as at Exercise Expiration exerdse  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 December
Name of Grantee 1 January 2020 Date of Grant Price Vesting Date Date dates year 2020 year 2020 year 2020 020
]
Directors
E2R L5808 Z3-FEAA-A 045 CEBEAR-R CRCRENAZTR - = - 458 =
Huang Xueliang 01092010 USD0.54 01092014 31/08/2020
2372008 “F-28-R 10657 “3-1£=5-H 52528 . - - - 2372,008
01032011 USD1.06 01032015 010312021
B4 ZE-TERASTR 0%t E-RERASTR ZE-ZEMAZTER — = = = 731841
300092012 USDa.62 300092016 250042022
738,067 Z2-2E\R-A 0567 T5HENA-A ZECEEEACT-R - = - = 738,067
01/082013 USD0.56 01/082017 31007203
BEgo 15538 ZF-FENA-R 0k ZE-BEAA-RE CECREMIZT-R = = — 1518 158138
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen” 01/092010 USD0.54 01/092014 311082020
285,787 “T—-£2R-A 106570 “T-152R-A “R-£2R- - - - e 285,787
01/032011 USD1.06 01/0312015 01/032021
wis 11818 ZEF-EENA-R 0451 ZE-BEAA-R ZRCRENAST-R = = R AL/ A s N VAL
Shuai Hongyu 01/0972010 USD0.54 01092014 31/08/2020
1800633 25—%-f-A 10657 “E-n%=A-H 3-5-F-A = = = == 1800633
010302011 USD1.06 010302015 010302021
67900 ZF-ZERA=TA 06ET 5 ~ENAZTE ZE-CERACTEA = = - = 679,022
300092012 USD0.62 300092016 25042022
B ZE-=EN-B 056%1  ZEFZET-A-B 0 CRCZECAET-R 5 1 = = 730,120
(1/082013 USD0.56 01M72013 3107203
W44 ZE-ZENR-B 067 ETENA-B CRCZEUA=T-R = = = = 590,454
011082013 USD0.56 010802017 31072023
B 65419  Z3-=FNA-A WEL ZEZETA-R CRCZELAETA IR 1209000 = - 5
Loong, Manfred Man-tsun (1/082013 UsD0.14 01mR013 3107203 HK$3.61
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Share average
underlying closing price Qutstanding
the options hefore the Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asof
Category/ granted as at Exercise Expiration exerdse  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 December
Name of Grantee 1 January 2020 Date of Grant Price Vesting Date Date dates year 2020 year 2020 year 2020 020
BEAL
Connected persons
gk 13807 F—5=f-A 10657 “2-1%=A-H 32528 - - - . 13807
Zeng Zhije 01/032011 USD1.06 010312015 01/0312021
BT BT ZF-RETA=T-R 05k ZE-METCAZT-R ZRCRErIAztR = = = B0 =
Bai Yu 311202010 USD0.75 31120014 30122020
BT ZE-ZEAR=1R 00T 3-7EMASTR  Z3-ZERMAZ1ER = = = = 3807
300092012 USD0.62 300092016 25004202
k8 e ZE-RERA-R 047 E-MERA-B CRCEENA=T-R = = - 1060 =
Emplojees 011092010 USD0.54 01092014 3110812020
197210 Z3-RET2A=1-R 05%7 ZE-BETCAZT-B ZRCRETCAZTR < = = 15200 =
311202010 USDO.75 31120014 30122020
548,781 Z2—5-A/\R 05T “Z-15-RA0A “2--5-R)\A - - - 3 548,781
08012011 UsD0.75 08012015 08012021
548,781 5—£5-A 0S4ET F-1%=R-A 3-%#=f-A - = B - 548,781
010312011 USD0.54 01/032015 (1032021
211993 “E2-—-%-5-f 106570 Z2-1%-A-A ZR-E-R-R - - = = 211993
010312011 USD1.06 01/0302015 010312021
2657057 Z3-ZERA=1H 06ET  3EARZTR  Z3-ZEMAZTEA = = = — 2608
300092012 USD0.62 300092016 25042022
230 Z3-ZENA-R 6%t “R-tEM-B ZBCZEUA=T-R = = = - 210
01/08/2013 USD0.56 (1/082017 31072023
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-A-# 85808
RHERE EARRSA R-B-REE WoBSBEE WCECRER foAST-B
REASH/#4 EERAEE RHhA% fTkE EERE HER  METHUTE k3 fiith F&N WA
Number of Weighted
Share average
underlying closing price Qutstanding
the options hefore the Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asof
Category/ granted as at Exercise Expiration exerdse  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 December
Name of Grantee 1 January 2020 Date of Grant Price Vesting Date Date dates year 2020 year 2020 year 2020 020
Efpagiaag 29840 Z5-FE0A-R 0551 ZF-BERA-R ZECBENACT-B = = - 19840 =
(PAEHER RER) 01092010 USD0.54 01092014 311082020
Other elgble participants 819,805 i 106570 Z3-1%=R-A Ro-E2R-R 4B 64,000 = = 754,805
(inclucing former 01032011 USD1.06 010312015 01/032021 HK$34
employees and consufans) 274390 “5-CF=R-H INES “§-7NEZR-A S b = = = = 77439
010032012 Usp1.21 01032016 010032022
BY6  ZE-ZERA1R 06%1  ZEEAASTE CRCIERmAZTER = = = = 73806
30092012 USD0.62 300092016 25042002
119,3% Z2-TE2R-A 06T “T-+E=R-A Z5°=58-A - - = = 119,395
01/032013 USD0.62 0110302017 01/03203
2 ZEZENA-H 06%1  E-tEM-E CRCZECAET-R = = = = 214
(1/082013 USD0.56 01/082017 3107203
W FMEZR-H WEr  5-N\E=f-R ZERmEZR-R = = = = 27439
011032014 150041 011032018 011032024
ait 319,88 3ISET 12300 - 13RI 297338
Total HK$3.51
BIE Notes:
0 S AR IBE R R A BB E AR PR A T 214 AT RS IR 5 1Y (1) Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen is interested in share options granted

RERER AR  BABRMOT  (BEEENBEAZHZEER
# : (i) Cykorp Limited (B £ 2 BB M AR]) 5 BARE -

REBEE-_ZF_FFE+_A=1+—HLFE ARFRXKEE
Hx%%”ﬁ)\ﬁﬁé/ﬂ’&%%é% A A M 32174 2£1,273,000
BBty - REERERRFRENBIAEEITERNE BaRMme
IEF W TER351ETT

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares
which are held as follows: (i) options held in Mr. Kwan'’s personal
capacity, and (i) options held by Cykorp Limited, a company wholly

owned by Mr. Kwan.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a total number of
1,273,000 Shares were issued by the Company upon exercise
of Pre-IPO Share Options by option holders of the Group. The
weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately
before the date on which the Pre-IPO Share Options were
exercised is HK$3.51.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Pre-IPO
Share Options were cancelled.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a total number of
13,536,166 Pre-IPO Share Options had lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, no other Pre-IPO Share options
were exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The number of outstanding Shares subject to the options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the
date of this report was 22,973,388 Shares, exercisable at the
respective exercise price between USDO0.14 per Share and
USD1.21 per Share, representing approximately 7.2% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of
the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company and there is no restriction
against such rights under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the business results and financial position of
the Group for the past five years is set out in page 240.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this Report, our Directors comprised of the following
individuals:

Executive Directors

Huang Xueliang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Shuai Hongyu
Loong, Manfred Man-tsun

Non-executive Directors

Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen

Gao Songtao (resigned on 27 March 2020)

Liu Yang (Appointed on 27 March 2020 and
resigned on 25 March 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Junjie
Jin Yufeng
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Mr. Gao Songtao resigned as non-executive Director on 27
March 2020 due to work adjustments which require him to
devote more time to his other work commitment. Mr. Liu Yang
resigned as non-executive Director on 25 March 2021 due to
his other business and personal engagements, and other work
obligations. Each of Mr. Gao and Mr. Liu has confirmed that
he does not have any disagreement with the Board and there
is no other matter relating to his resignation that needs to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company
or the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As of the date hereof, each of the non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years unless and until it is terminated by not less than three
months’ notice served by the Company to the Director.
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Pursuant to Articles 84 and 85 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, one-third of Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and offer themselves for re-election at annual general
meeting of the Company at least once every three years.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract
with the Group or any member of the Group which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Directors’ and senior management’s biographical details are set
out in pages 55 to 63.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year. The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’
liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for the Directors of the Group.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing
Connected Transaction” in this report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director is or was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
December 2020 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2020, and no contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted
as at 31 December 2020 or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors was interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of remuneration paid to members of the Directors and
senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out below:

A
s E Remuneration band No. of Individuals
100,000 T8 A~ USD 100,000 or below 5
100,0013£7c £ 200,000 7T USD100,001 to USD200,000
200,000 T F More than USD200,000 3

EEME K2 EEERT - BERERBREURAEENEEM
BT - W EEFHAEAARINFMHEZRESF R - EF
FEN T HN R A SRR FE39 -

Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration
is reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company
annually. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in
Note 39 of the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of interests of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

EREHD

B 7 tE(%)

Fris iR 10 81 B W Approximate

EEnE 47} Number of  percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Shares heldNete ! interest (%)
mE R EnBAAN REEEEER 177,026,523 B%B&1n (L) 55.41

Huang Xuelianghete2
corporation

R EERN BEmlEA A
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen™t3 Beneficial owner
DAL e EmEAA
Shuai HongyuMet4 Beneficial owner
BESC RS BB A

Loong, Manfred Man-tsuniete> Beneficial owner

G
1. FEILIRERGTA -

2. RIZTZZFF+_A=+—B ' BERIEL4EN5,043,624 AR 17 1
B EERER RN TR 3,848,122 I AR1A M BE A R A A2 o ﬁ?’:
ENRFRERYANERMIIREBR D AIMNI9% e - RINATEET
REBRA B Ever Expert Holdings Limited$$% 100% 425 ©
it - RZT=ZTF+-A=+—H8 ' ELEENTWE AR HEver
Expert Holdings Limited#8 #168, 134,777 BRI 5 B % -

Beneficial owner/interest in controlled

177,026,523 Shares (L)

1,366,201 &A% 15 (L) 0.43
1,366,201 Shares (L)
5,304,312 %5 (L) 1.66
5,304,312 Shares (L)
5,335,129/% /%1% (L) 1.67

5,335,129 Shares (L)

Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes a long position.
% As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Huang Xueliang was directly interested

in 5,043,624 Shares and was interested in share options to subscribe
for 3,848,122 Shares. Mr. Huang also held a 99% interest in
Shenzhen Qianhai Guowei Investment Co., Ltd. CZRIIIATE B HHIEE
APBR/A 7)), which in turn held a100% interest in Ever Expert Holdings
Limited. Mr. Huang was therefore also deemed to be interested in
the 168,134,777 Shares held by Ever Expert Holdings Limited as at
31 December 2020.



3. RZZZTF+-_A=+—0  BAEREEN223 418K M HE
BrE=E N RE285,787 RN ERIET A - kL
A Cykorp Limited B2 304 % Bt - BESLEWARER Cykorp
Limited 55 #856,996 A% A% 15 i #E % ©

4. R-ZZE-ZTHE+-F=+—8 ' BAIFEAERN1,504,083 R
BiEE - AR FREE 3,800,229 8 Ak 10 KO BB AR A R A RS ©

5. RZTZZTFF+-A=+—H » 8T AER A REES5,335, 129/ A%
DEERRE R A i -

B EXPIIEEN R-ZE_TF+_A=1+—H HBEF
X/ HARRBRBITHRA BRBIRIEE S &S GHI55352 16
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3. As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen was
interested in 223,418 Shares and was interest in share options to
subscribe for 285,787 Shares. Mr. Kwan also held 100% interest in
Cykorp Limited. Mr. Kwan is therefore deemed to be interested in
the 856,996 Shares in which Cykorp Limited had interests.

4. As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Shuai Hongyu was interested in
1,504,083 Shares and was interested in share options to subscribe
for 3,800,229 Shares.

3 As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun was
interested in share options to subscribe for 5,335,129 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors and/or the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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# NGO FE 336 R T ARR R E LM ARSI AR B
0 RARRAR D PR SOR BT

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors
of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders/other persons (other than Directors and chief
executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as

RR#EE EB

Name of shareholder

follows:

gt HEmtE

Capacity/nature of interest

EHEEERERO
Number and
class of securities”

R
BO
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

RTEZ @

Ms. Zhang Shiyun®@

AYNRTE IR E B R AT

Shenzhen Qianhai Guowei
Investment Co., Ltd.®

Ever Expert Holdings Limited?®

(BB REARAA
Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited
2N () KREARAFE
Xunxin (Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd.®
EREKEEREFREESRNER AT
China Integrated Circuit Industry
Investment Fund Co., Ltd.®

BB e

Interest of your spouse
REEEE R R

Interest in controlled corporation

E=EAA

Beneficial owner

BE=EAA

Beneficial owner

RZIEEE RS

Interest in a controlled corporation
REEEE R R

Interest in a controlled corporation

177,026,523 REAZID (L)
177,026,523 Shares (L)
168,134,777 BRAXAD (L)
168,134,777 Shares (L)

168,134,777 RRAX(D (L)
168,134,777 Shares (L)
29,999,000 %15 (L)
29,999,000 Shares (L)
29,999,000 & f& 15 (L)
29,999,000 Shares (L)
29,999,000F% 8% 1% (L)
29,999,000 Shares (L)

55.41%

52.63%

52.63%

9.39%

9.39%

9.39%
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The letter “L" denotes a long position.

As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Huang Xueliang was interested in
5,043,624 Shares and was interested in share options to subscribe for
3,848,122 Shares. Mr. Huang also held a 99% interest in Shenzhen
Qianhai Guowei Investment Co., Ltd. CEYIATEBEMIEEBR A T),
which in turn held a 100% interest in Ever Expert Holdings Limited.
Mr. Huang and Shenzhen Qianhai Guowei Investment Co., Ltd. (&3]
AT/ #I% & B A A]) were therefore also deemed to be interested
in the 168,134,777 Shares held by Ever Expert Holdings Limited. Ms.
Zhang is the spouse of Mr. Huang and was therefore deemed to be
interested in all the Shares Mr. Huang was interested in.

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, China Integrated Circuit
Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. held a 100% interest in Xunxin
(Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd. which in turn held a 100% interest
in Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited. Each of China Integrated
Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. and Xinxin (Shanghai)
Investment Co., Ltd. is therefore deemed to be interested in the
29,999,000 Shares held by Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited as
at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no other

parties were recorded in the register of the Company required

to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as having interests

or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are related party transactions set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements that constitute
connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are
required to be disclosed in this report:

Property Leasing Framework Agreement with Mr. Huang
Xueliang

In light of the Group's business growth and development plan,
on 29 October 2019, the Group (through SMIT Shenzhen)
entered into a property leasing framework agreement (the
“Property Leasing Framework Agreement”) with Mr.
Huang Xueliang. Pursuant to the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement SMIT Shenzhen (or its subsidiaries) may enter
into further tenancy agreements (each for a term of one
year or less) with Shenzhen Digital TV or Shanghai Guo Wei
Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (each a company controlled
by Mr. Huang) for the leasing of certain office premises in
Guoshi Building, Nanshan District, Shenzhen (the “Shenzhen
Property”) and an office building located at No. 2555
Xiupu Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai (the “Shanghai
Property”). The term of the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement is 3 years, from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2022 (both days inclusive).

As Mr. Huang is an executive Director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, he is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Property Leasing
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The terms of the Property Leasing Framework Agreement,
including the applicable rents and management fees payable,
were determined after arm’s length negotiation between the
parties with reference to (i) prevailing market rates for similar
properties (e.g. with respect to floor space and age of the
building) in the vicinity and the potential change in market
value; (ii) prevailing market rates of property management
services for comparable premises; and (iii) the historical amount
of rents and management fees payable under the New Tenancy
Agreement and the New Property Management Agreement.
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During the subsistence of the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement, the maximum aggregate rent and management
fees payable will not exceed (i) RMB23,000,000 for the
financial year ending 31 December 2020; (i) RMB22,000,000
for the financial year ending 31 December 2021; and (iii)
RMB22,000,000 for the financial year ending 31 December
2022. The above caps were determined with reference to (i)
the estimated gross floor area of the relevant premises in the
Shenzhen Property and the Shanghai Property required for
the Group’s operation; (ii) the rent payable in accordance with
the pricing standard under the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement; and (iii) the total estimated management fees
payable in accordance with the pricing standard under the
Property Leasing Framework Agreement.

Further details of the terms of, and annual caps applicable to,
the Property Leasing Framework Agreement are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 29 October 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the independent
non-executive Directors reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed such transactions have
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(i) according to the agreement governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group on pages 78 to 79 of the Annual Report in
accordance with paragraph 14A. 56 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set
out in Note 36 of the consolidated financial statements. None
of these related party transactions constitute a connected
transaction as defined and required to be disclosed under
the Listing Rules, except for those described in this section
headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions”, in respect of which the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save and except for service or employment contracts entered
into with the Directors and the Company’s full time employees,
no contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed as at 31 December
2020.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Set out below are the percentages of sales and purchases for
the year ended 31 December 2020 attributable to the Group’s
major customers and suppliers:

Purchases

— The largest supplier 13.9%
— Five largest suppliers in aggregate 55.4%
Sales

— The largest customer 30.7%
— Five largest customers in aggregate 66.8%

Total sales of CAM to Irdeto B.V., being the Group's largest
customer for the year ended 31 December 2020, which
amounted to approximately USD11.6 million, accounted for
30.7% of Group'’s total sales.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY THE DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the standards set out in the Model
Code as a code of conduct for the trading in securities of
the Company by all Directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, the Company confirmed that
the Directors have complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Directors’ information is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Huang Xueliang, the chairman of the Board, tendered
his resignation as non-independent director of Nationz
Technologies Inc. (BIR M5B AR (SZSE Stock Code:
300077), a large-scaled IC design enterprise for hyperscale IC
projects, since April 2020.

Mr. Jin Yufeng, an independent non-executive director, has
served as an independent director of Huahai Qingke Co.,
Ltd. (BRI AR F]), a high-end semiconductor
equipment manufacturer with core independent intellectual
property rights, since November 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date, the Directors confirm that the Company
has maintained during the year the amount of public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Important events occurred after 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report are set out in note 37 of the
consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has formulated certain policies in accordance with
environmental regulations, including: environmental impact
assessment on various raw materials or machinery before
making any purchasing decisions in the design, research
and development phase; improvement of environmental
awareness of all employees through environmental protection
activities, training courses and promotion; and the appropriate
responsibilities, scope, policies and guidelines developed
by the Group’s top management that played a central role
in establishing clearly defined environmental management
framework and system.

In day-to-day operations, the Group has been closely
monitoring the latest developments in domestic and
international environmental legislation to ensure that its
environmental policies are consistent with domestic and
international standards while ensuring consistency with global
peers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company’s business is principally carried out by the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and China, the shares
of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The establishment and operation of the Group
are subject to the relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong,
China and respective places of incorporation of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In addition, the Company shall comply
with the provisions of the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this report, so far as the Company is aware, the Group is not
involved in any material breach of or irregularity against the
applicable laws and regulations that have a material effect on
the Group's business and operations.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The success of the Group also relies on the support from
key stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers,
regulators and shareholders.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. The Group’s human resource management
is designed to reward and recognise excellent employees by
providing reasonable compensation and benefits. Details of
the Group's remuneration policy are set out in the paragraph
headed “Employees and Remuneration Policies” above in this
report. In addition, the Group develops appropriate training
programmes specific to different posts, duties and titles, and
provides certain opportunities and platforms to assist them in
developing their career and seek promotion within the Group.

Customers

Our CAM customers consist mainly of CA providers,
broadcasting operators, TV manufacturers and distributors. To
a lesser extent, we sell to one-off customers including various
companies and individuals, as well as direct sales to end users
through third-party internet platforms. The Group aims to
provide customers with quality products and services to seek
sustained growth in sales revenue and profitability. The Group
has established various ways to enhance communication
between its customers and the Group, in an effort to provide
superior quality products and services to increase market
penetration and expand various businesses.

Suppliers

The Group maintains good relationship with its suppliers, a
crucial element in the supply chain and when facing business
challenges and regulatory requirements, which can be cost-
effective and promote business interests in the long run. Major
suppliers include raw material suppliers, system and equipment
suppliers, external consultants providing professional services,
suppliers of office supplies or goods and other business
partners providing value-added services to the Group.
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Regulators

The Company is listed in Hong Kong and is regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the State Administration
of Work Safety, the General Administration of Quality
Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of China and other
relevant authorities. The Group expects to keep up-to-date
and ensure compliance with the new rules and regulations.
To enhance corporate value for shareholders is one of the
Group's corporate objectives. The Group promotes business
development to achieve sustainable earnings growth while
taking capital adequacy into account.

Major Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's business operations are affected by changes in
market conditions, the changing industry standards, industry
competition and the ever-changing customer demands. It is
essential that the Group responds in a timely manner to such
changes which may adversely affect the Group's business and
financial results. The Group also faces other financial risks in
the ordinary course of business, such as liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and currency risk. Details of financial risk management
are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTERNATIONAL SANCTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had
CAM sales to customers located in Russia, which accounted
for 12.5% of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2020, as well as sales to customers located in the
Balkans and Ukraine, which in aggregate accounted for 8.5%
of the Group'’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
had no sales to Belarus, Egypt and Lebanon. The percentage
of revenue contribution from relevant customers located in
jurisdictions which are targeted with international sanctions in
the year ended 31 December 2020 increased to 21.0% from
20.1% during the year ended 31 December 2019, mainly
attributable to a decrease in sales from customers located in
certain jurisdictions.
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In the coming year, the Group is expected to continue its sales
to customers located in Russia, the Balkans and Ukraine and
does not expect any significant increase or decrease in the
Group's sales to customers located in those jurisdictions. The
Group also expects no sales or immaterial sales to customers
located in Belarus, Egypt and Lebanon. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group did not, and has no present
or future intention to, enter into any transactions in the
jurisdictions which are targeted with international sanctions or
with persons and entities which are listed on any international
sanctions list that the Group believes would put the Group
or its investors at risk of violating or becoming the target of
international sanctions.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xueliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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To the Shareholders of SMIT Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of SMIT Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on

pages 97 to 239, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

3 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

3 Valuation of unlisted investments
. Impairment assessments of property, plant and

equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible assets
and investments accounted for using the equity method



Key Audit Matter
Valuation of unlisted investments

Refer to Notes 3.3(a), 4.6 and 21 of the consolidated financial
statements.

The unlisted investments of the Group were recognised at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition and requires
subsequent re-measurement at fair value at each period end.
These unlisted investments were measured based on net asset
value, reference to comparable recent arm’s length transactions
or using discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model. Management
performed a fair value assessment of certain unlisted
investments by using the DCF model as the valuation technique
with the assistance of an independent external valuer as these
investments are not quoted in comparable recent arm'’s length
transactions and the net asset values of the investee companies
do not approximate their respective fair values. The fair values
of those unlisted investments were amounted to USD10.2
million as at 31 December 2020.

The key underlying assumptions and estimates of the valuation
include revenue growth rates, discount rates, terminal growth
rates and gross profit margin used in the business plans of the
investees.

We focus on the fair values of unlisted investments determined
using DCF model because it involved significant unobservable
inputs which involve significant management judgements and
assumptions and thus involved a higher degree of uncertainty
in the valuations.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of valuation of unlisted
investments and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors.

We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of the
independent external valuer engaged by management.

We involved our internal valuation specialist in our discussion
with management and the independent external valuer to
understand and assess the appropriateness of the model used
based on industry practice and the assumptions used.

We evaluated the reasonableness of the discount rates by
considering the investees’ weighted average cost of capital and
the risk profile of the investees.

We assessed the reasonableness of the revenue growth rates,
gross profit margin and terminal growth rates by comparing
these assumptions against approved budgets and business
plans, relevant market data and historical experience of the
investees.

Based on the procedures described above, we considered the
key assumptions and estimates used in the valuation of the
Group's unlisted investments are supportable by available
evidence.
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Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible assets
and investments accounted for using the equity method

Refer to Notes 2.8, 4.5, 10, 15, 16 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible assets and
investments accounted for using the equity method amounting
to USD14,755,055, USD488,623, USD32,669,145 and
USD69,176,985, respectively.

These assets are tested for impairment when events or change
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Management performed an impairment
assessment of these assets at the year-end date by assessing
the recoverable amounts of the relevant assets, based on
the higher of the value-in-use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Based on
the impairment assessment, management considered that no
impairment provision for these assets was necessary as at 31
December 2020.

For the purpose of the impairment assessment, management
adopted different impairment approaches, on a case by case
basis, and assets are grouped in separate groups of cash
generating units in carrying out the impairment assessments.

We focused on this area due to the significant judgments
involved in selecting key assumptions, including revenue
growth rates, profit margins and discount rates, to be adopted
in the valuation models, including discounted cash flows, for
the impairment assessments, which are subject to uncertainties.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of impairment of property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible
assets and investments accounted for using the equity method
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors.

We assessed the basis management used to identify separate
groups of cash generating units based on our understanding of
client business.

We assessed the impairment models used in management’s
impairment assessments with the involvement of our valuation
experts.

We evaluated the reasonableness of the discount rates by
considering the weighted average cost of capital and the risk
profile of the investees and the Group.

We assessed other key assumptions adopted including revenue
growth rates and profit margins by examining the approved
financial forecasts and applicable industry/business data
external to the Group.

We checked sensitivity analysis performed around the key
assumptions, to evaluate the extent to which adverse changes,
both individually or in aggregate, in those assumptions
adopted, would indicate that property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, other intangible assets and investments
accounted for using the equity method were impaired.

Based on the procedures described above, in relation to
the Group's impairment assessments of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible assets
and investments accounted for using the equity method,
we considered that the impairment models adopted by
management are appropriate and the key assumptions and
estimates used in the impairment assessments are supportable
by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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o RAMFHERNEFFRERMEBRSVBRRTFES
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Hift - ARAFFEAREY B - BE - ERER - ER
BRat - SORBRAEESZ £ - Bt RERR AT
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

BREMEBIRIN  HPARBEZEZESRB T HEINEEHE - B
RZPE - BAEBERE - BEBMIERHESH A ERES
BRI ERERPE

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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BAEABEZZBEREER  SRARMCHEARBELIEN
HRERERER - YRMMIBRBEIEAEMEARETE
RPBL A EMEMER  AREERNERLT - A
VAR S8 M E A BB V1T BN S ERIN A P 8845 1 ©

HEEEZZESBHENFRT  RFEEWLERAARGE
MBHRENBARAEE - AMBKEREN SR - HAIERX
BRSSP RMELEE  RIPERERT A ARNEGEL
FH RERBFERNERT  MRAEBEHERMHRETE
BREBERNAMRRBBEENRRANE - RIFPRETE
ERETBBLZER °

HEARB Y ZBENRENESRE ABARMES -

BERKESFAEHAT
HEGEHRD

BE T —H=A=+AH

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lam Hiu Yam, Winnie.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE-_T-_TF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

BEt+t-A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

g 33 —E-NEF
2020 2019
FosE ETT E
Note usD Usb
Wzs Revenue 5 37,789,781 38,099,720
SHEE R A Cost of sales 7 (24,478,340) (22,824,996)
EF Gross profit 13,311,441 15,274,724
Hibzs - F8 Other gains, net 6 3,729,132 19,441,664
Hp A Other income 6 16,194,650 2,422,792
e Research and development expenses 7 (22,975,397) (9,598,577)
SHE R iHMY Selling and distribution expenses 7 (1,626,552) (4,083,511)
—MRITHFES General and administrative expenses 7 (9,223,112) (12,132,695)
RN AHEEZRMEFEE  Netimpairment losses on financial and
contract assets 7 (86,391) (19,971)
K (B18),ERl Operating (loss)/profit (676,229) 11,304,426
BMEWA - FFE Finance income, net 9 308,786 583,727
DL EREREARD Share of net losses of investments accounted
B R EIE for using the equity method 10 (4,587,420) (266,833)
BRETISRIAT (B58), B F (Loss)/profit before income tax (4,954,863) 11,621,320
s Income tax credit 12 1,521,092 700,991
FR(BR)&ER (Loss)/profit for the year (3.433,771) 12,322,311
LR & IEESS (B518), %% (Loss)/profit is attributable to:
ViN/NGIETZE N Owners of the Company (3,707,652) 10,602,142
SRR RS Non-controlling interests 273,881 1,720,169
(3,433,771) 12,322,311
RABER ANELEK (Loss)/earnings per share attributable to
(E518),/ &F : owners of the Company:
BREX(EBR),/ Basic (loss)/earnings per share
B (F3ETT) (USD per share) 13 (0.012) 0.033
SRS (B5E),/ Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
aF (g’R=ErT) (USD per share) 13 (0.012) 0.033
bR e Was R e BRI I R —OFB0E - The above consolidated income statement should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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REZERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

BEt+t-ZA=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—B-%F —TNF
2020 2019
s ETT e
Note usD Usb
FAUER)BR  (oss)profitfortheyear  (3433771) 12322311
Hit 2w (5E) - Other comprehensive income/(loss):
BB RBEEF M IEZ 1825498 H  Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
PEH =58 Translation differences 4,261,920 (650,686)
DEEAEREARMIEEM Y  Share of translation differences of
=8 investments accounted for using the
equity method 10 2,431,975
BA B D EZ B E A Items that have been reclassified
to profit or loss
REIEHEFEAERAARAN  Exchange reserve released upon deemed
R E %D RE H disposal of an investment accounted for
using the equity method 10(b) (305,172)
PEEHEKBARERELA  Exchange reserve released upon deemed
(ERREL disposal of subsidiaries 33(g) (27,900) (3,197)
FERHEMEEWE (EHE) Other comprehensive income/(loss)
otk 8 D08 for the L S 6360823 | (653.883)
FREEMBEETE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,927,052 11,668,428
DU & IE A - Attributable to:
ViN/NETEZ 2N Owners of the Company 2,552,107 9,942,125
FEIE IR Non-controlling interests 374,945 1,726,303
2,927,052 11,668,428
AR S 2 U a7 AE BB MY B 5 — OF B o The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZZ-_THF+—-F=+—H Asat 31 December 2020

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
e 32 —ZE-NF
2020 2019
s ETT E
Note usD Usb
BE ASSETS
FEREEE Non-current assets
Wz B RiEiE Property, plant and equipment 15 14,755,055 3,152,061
EREEE Right-of-use assets 16 488,623 1,041,791
HitmpEE Other intangible assets 17 32,669,145 396,294
EES Goodwill 25 6,579,443 6,153,809
HAb fE R IE R FERTRIE Other receivables and prepayments 20 1,493,975 1,174,419
EREDEARNIZE Investments accounted for using the
equity method 10 69,176,985 43,519,749
FEiBEEEATFEARSN Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 21 11,679,240 14,596,569
RIEPTISTE E Deferred income tax assets 24 5,055,497 3,218,233
7777777777777777777 141,897,963 73,252,925
REBEE Current assets
s Inventories 18 5,232,836 13,525,373
H 5 K EAth FE U RIE K. Trade and other receivables and
TESFRIE prepayments 20 38,277,316 14,116,321
BHEE Contract assets 20 320,684 =
BFHEARINER Loan to an associate 36(f) — 5,035,836
AU Bl AT1S T Income tax recoverable 317,791 116,543
SRR HIBITIER Restricted bank deposit 22 — 519,266
BeKREZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 46,482,190 70,902,673
77777777777777777777777777 90,630,817 104,216,012
BWEE Total assets 232,528,780 177,468,937
AR B U 2% HE BB MY B 5 — OF B AE o The above consolidated statement of financial position should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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R-ZZE-_ZTHF+—-F=+—H Asat 31 December 2020

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—ECEHF —E-NF
2020 2019
s ETT E
Note UsbD Uusb
Eakas EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
R Equity
RN Share capital 26 6,390 6,364
BR1D =B Share premium 26 101,642,531 101,505,767
&Pt Merger reserve 27 (48,810,141) (48,810,141)
VARG B B S SR R 1 Share-based payment reserve 27 15,750,615 16,105,925
AR Statutory reserve 27 4,914,429 4,913,464
REEF Retained earnings 44,759,935 48,468,552
EAGEE Capital reserve 27 1,212,543 1,212,543
bE & Exchange reserve 27 4,491,395 (1,768,364)
RNATEB AEEEARR R Capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company 123,967,697 121,634,110
FEFERR A Non-controlling interests 2,342,185 1,967,240
BrEs Total equity 126,309,882 123,601,350
aE Liabilities
FFRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 190,790 658,318
H b fEATRUE Other payable 29 49,810 47,612
EEYA Deferred income 30 30,370,279 7,560,012
RITIER Bank borrowings 31 13,793,314 —
44,404,193 8,265,942

bt B ISR R e BRBE P P R — BRI

The above consolidated statement of financial position should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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R B R IR R R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZZ-_THF+—-F=+—H Asat 31 December 2020

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December

e 32 —ZE-NF

2020 2019

k=g =T B

Note usD Usb

RBEE Current liabilities

B S ENRIEREN R Trade and bills payables 28 2,671,291 9,220,640

FEET B R R EoAth FE AN 5RIE Accruals and other payables 29 6,595,711 8,595,728

aRaE Contract liabilities 29 5,574,074 433,121

RITER Bank borrowings 31 24,356,268 —

RIEWA Deferred income 30 22,106,575 26,730,507

HEARE Lease liabilities 16 510,786 449,178

FERTERISHL Income tax payable — 172,471

777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 61,814,705 45,601,645
wam Totalliabilites HUETEEEE SOE0T 2N

HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 232,528,780 177,468,937
itar A B RS RIR 55 e BABE BT P S — RS o The above consolidated statement of financial position should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

BT E 230 BN AMEREEOR B —EFE=A - +AK The consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to 239 were
BT AETAARE - approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and
were signed on its behalf.

TE BF
Huang Xueliang Loong, Manfred Man-tsun
Chairman Director

=HER BEX B



FF3RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIMIZR AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

102

RERZEDXR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

LIN2 PN

Attributable to owners of the Company

DYl

RERN
BA HAEE  AOEE  GREE ieRRE AARE ENRE  REEA At FERER s

Share-based Non-
Share Share Merger ~ payment  Statutory Capital ~ Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve - eannings Total interests equity
7 7 #7 7 E53 7 ES £ b 7 7
Usp Usp Usp Usp UsD usD usD Usp Usp Usp Usp

Balance at 1 January 2019 6,326 100,982,947

48,810,141) 16955752 4913464 1212543 (1,108347) 37866410 112018954 240,480 112259434

HE-S-NETZA=T-ALLEE  Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

2EkE /(B8 Comprehensive income/(loss)
EREH Profitfor the year = = = = = = — 060,00 10602180 172069 1232311
EfZE Translation differences = = = = = - (656,820) - (656,820) 6,134 (650,686)
REfEHENBARERR Exchange reserve released upon deemed
ERGE disposal of subsidiaries = = = = = = (3,197) = (3197) = (3,197)
ER2E (FE)/ WiHLE Total comprehensive (loss)/income
fortheyear - - - - - —  (@007) 106012 9915 1726303 11668428
REBANRS Transactions with owners
AR AERAEH Share-based compensation = = = 39,742 = = - - 39,742 - 39,742
etk Exercise of share options B 98234 — (849827 = - - - 78,445 - 78445
BiELEHEAR Deemed disposal of subsidiaries = = - (3974 = = — - 394 - (3974
BHIRERNLS Transactions with non-controling interests = = = = = = = = = 457 457
ZE-NFRARNZE-/\ERERS Diidend relating to 2018 paid in May 2019 = (05414 = = = = = — (05419 — (05414
BEBEANRS  ERWVERER Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity B/ 5280 - (849827) i - s - (32699 457 (326,512)
RE-AFT-A=T-BNER Balance at 31 December 2019 6,364 101,505,767 (48810,141) 16105925 4913464 1212543  (1,768,364) 48468552 121,634,110 1,967,240 123,601,350
B Representing:
EX Capital 6,364 s = . e = = - 6,364 = 6,364
g Reserves — 101,095628 (48810,141) 16105925 4913464 1212543  (1768364) 48468552 121,217,607 — 121,217,607
FERER Non-controlling interests = = = = = = = = — 197240 197240
“E-NEESAHRE 2019 final dividend proposed — 40139 = = = .- - — 40,139 — 40139
6,364 101,505,767 (48810,141) 16105925 4913464 1212543  (1,768,364) 48468552 121,634,110 1,967,240 123,601,350
FilisRa s S E) R R EARE PR —PFRIRE - The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GERZEHXR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_T-_TF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

HECR-RETCA=T-HLEE

FRREE AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
Vvl
RERY
BE  RGEE  AURE  ARRE  iERE  EARE  ERRE  REEA A FERER fEs
Share-based Non-
Share Share Merger  payment  Statutory Capital  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ Premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  Reserve  eaings Total interests equity
EyA EA EA EA Ey £y £y 7 EyA EyA £
usp Ush Usb Usb Usb Usb Usb usp usp ush Ush
Balance at 1 January 2020 6,364 101,505,767 (48,810,141) 16,105,925 4913464 1212543  (1,768,364) 48468552 121,634,110 1,967,240 123,601,350

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2 (BR)/ W& Comprehensive (loss)/income
Fn(ER)/ & (Loss)Profit for the year = = = = = = (3,707,652 (3707,652) 273881 (3433,771)
EizE Translation differences = = = = = — 4261920 — 4261920 — 426190
PEERESEAENREELIZE  Share of translation differences of investments

accounted for using the equity method - - - = = = 2316952 — 2316952 115023 2431975
REELERRRREARNEARER bxchange reserve released upon deemed disposal

HENLRE of an investment accounted for using the

equity method — — — - - - (291,213 - (291,213) (13,959 (305,172
REENENBARERRNELREE  Exchange reserve released upon deemed

disposal of a subsiclary = = = = = = (27,900) = (27,900) = (27,900)
ER2ENE /(FE) 88 Total comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year - - - — - — 6259759 (3,707,652) 2,552,107 374,945 2,927,052
REBANRS Transactions with owners
AREEERRE Appropriation to statutory reserve = = = = 965 = = (965) = = =
rigtRE Exercise of share options 2% 5M93 — (395310 = = = — 189,639 — 189,639
ZECTERARAZS-NERERE Dividend relating to 2019 paid in June 2020 — (408,159 = = = = = — (408,159 — (408,159
REFANRS  EENERED Transactions with owners, recognised

directly in equity 26 136,764 — (355310 965 — — (965)  (218,520) = (218,520)
R-E-EE+-R=+-BHEHR Balance at 31 December 2020 6390 101,642,531 (48,810,141) 15750615 4914429 1212543 4491395 44,759,935 123,967,697 2,342,185 126,309,882
) Representing:
EX Capital 6,390 - - - - - - - 6,390 - 6,390
bt Reserves — 101231126 (48,810,141) 15,750,615 4914429 1212543 4,491,395 44,759,935 123,549,902 — 123,549,902
iRiEs Non-controling interests = = = = = = = - — 232,185 2,382,185
“E-TEREAMRS 200 final dividend proposed — 41405 = = = = = — 411405 — 411405

6390 101,642,531 (48,810,141) 15750615 4914429 1212543 4491395 44759935 123,967,697 2,342,185 126,309,882

Fittr A S B R IEEEM I —HE

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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REREMRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

—ECEHF —E-NEF
2020 2019
s ET Z7T
Note UsbD UusbD
RETHMBRENE Cash flows from operating activities
w (FrA),/ FisiRe Cash (used in)/generated from operations 33(a) (5,942,412) 32,110,566
258 Interest paid (185,260) (134,315)
B FER Income tax paid (381,923) (46,259)
LESEE) (FTR), Fi3ER4 %58 Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
,,,,,,,,, activities (6,509,595) 31,929,992
RETHFBRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BRIEHENBRRRS KD Net cash outflow from deemed disposal
FEE of subsidiaries 33(f),(g) (28,100,692) (3,982,778)
BEME - WE MR Purchases of property, plant and equipment (8,921,692) (3,093,304)
HEWE - BFE &R Proceeds from disposal of property,
FriS 5838 plant and equipment 33(b) 13,422 3,277
U B s A ABRRUIZER)  Payment for acquisitions of investments
(NN accounted for using the equity method 10 (12,997,328) (810,239)
2R HISRITIE RO > Decrease in restricted bank deposit 519,266 4,488,391
B2 HFIBIA Interest income received 522,096 730,034
BEHMELEE Purchases of other intangible assets 17 (32,867,648) (199,940)
BEBBESEAFTEARSN  Purchase of financial assets at fair value
THREE through profit or loss 3.3(a) (1,494,328) (1,466,964)
B2 A R)EEE R LB FIER  Proceeds from repayment of loan and
FriSHIA advance to associates 27,512,863 (5,035,836)
KEEEMARSERE Net cash used in investing activities (55,814,041) (9,367,359)
RMETEMERERE Cash flows from financing activities
TRRE Payment for dividend (408,159) (405,414)
SRITIE KPS RIA Proceeds from bank borrowings 43,187,328 1,200,000
BgIRTTEMR Repayment of bank borrowings (7,008,254) (6,540,668)
1T RS AR I Exercise of share options 26(a) 189,639 78,445
HENROEE I D Principal elements of lease payments 33(d) (284,743) (294,597)
BEEBME(FTA) Net cash generated from/(used in)
Re 5 financing activities 35,675,811 (5,962,234)
ReRELEEY (D), Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
EnFEE equivalents (26,647,825) 16,600,399
FYRe MRS FED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 70,902,673 54,962,324
RERMEEBYERES) 2 Effect of exchange rate changes on
e cash and cash equivalents 2,227,342 (660,050)
FRRE MRS EED Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 23 46,482,190 70,902,673
FiliRE RS R 2 R AEEBEMIHT T — OB - The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—RER

BHZERER AR ([ARF]) REMBRR (54
S ) E2RFEATES

- BERURBER([RER]) RBHHERK
(TmPOS]) #RFIZE R IHE - HAI 7 BIRERAS T
ABENENEREERNERBHXARS

\
[

RHERY  BREFERBLEABEIHR
%Rk

- REHEXER(IC)BERTR  BRERAEIIEE
ICEE dn SR AR RE R AT AR -

RARABRHASEHSEMRIREFROBERAR - AR
2B S E it AMaples Corporate Services
Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands * MERPZEARFLMEH
([HRER 1) B3T3 25 B2 iz A AP BRI TR e L 4] P
18015 E RE22%& -

AARRBEBARIABERARZIRET °

BIEREHRA @ REMBRERIAET (X)) IR °

GENERAL INFORMATION

SMIT Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) principally engage in
the following activities:

- development and sales of conditional access
modules (“CAM") and mobile point-of-sales
("mPOS") devices that enable secure distribution
and delivery of digital content to television and
secure mobile payment transactions, respectively;

- provision of cloud services, including cloud
platform services and its related supporting
services; and

- provision of integrated circuit (“IC") solutions,
including development and sales of IC products
and related design services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
and domiciled in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office in the Cayman Islands is Maples
Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its
registered office in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") is 22F, Guoshi Building, No. 1801, Sha He Xi
Avenue, Nanshan, PRC.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States dollars (“USD"), unless otherwise stated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements

are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which
are carried at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
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(a)

(b)

FEERMHBETERBAER

AEECR T _ZTF— A - RARBNFE
WE R A RERA N RERTER MESAE

Z8

BAGHERFE 1R REBSTERIFESHR (BETA)
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendment)

BB ERELEREIGR (IBEFTA)

HKFRS 3 (Amendment)

FRGFTERIE3W - BEVBHREERETHRK
BRMBHREERFE IR (BFTA)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (Amendments)
ZE- N\FYUBRERSER
Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting 2018

RMZELERTER RS ERL B BT
HREERNSRENEATE  REHTE
HEAMSARKARERERZE -

FEEERRAGOH T REETER - 28
KEstiEsl

A TRERBERAR_-Z_ZF—HA—H
B 20 ) B IR B A R B AR R [ 3 R ER AT ER A
HYETE] RAEIERTRR - REREEHES| -

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Amended standards and conceptual
framework adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following
amended standards and conceptual
framework for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January
2020:

BARESR
Definition of Material
EBHER
Definition of a Business

#hgst

Hedge Accounting

RIERTHEREB SIELR

Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting

The adoption of these amended standards
and conceptual framework did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

New and amended standards,
interpretation and accounting guideline
not yet adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards,
interpretation and accounting guideline have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2020 and
have not been early adopted by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards,
interpretation and accounting guideline
not yet adopted by the Group (Continued)

iRl = g e

#HIRm

BHEEEN

Effective for

accounting

year beginning

on or after

BENBEMELER S 165 (BFTAX) COVID-191BE A& &R “E-ZTFRA-H
HKFRS 16 (Amendment) Covid-19- Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
BB GFERE3% - HAMBREEL flxERgs - R —%$—HA—H

**4-?? ERAMBREENE

R

l:l—'—/\

(1/ HEN)
HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
FEBCEEER (BFTA)

TS - BEM
BN BB BREEAE 165

Annual Improvements Project (Amendments)

BRMBRERAEIN BEGHENE 16
FREBGEREITH (BF)

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 (Amendments)

BEHESIE55% (FIE3T)

AG 5 (Revised)

BERGTEMNE IR (B
HKAS 1 (Amendment)
BRI BRERMNE TR
HKFRS 17
BRMBEERRETR (B
HKFRS 17 (Amendment)
BERRBEST (Z222F)

)

AIAS)

HK Int 5 (2020)

BENBRERZ 10 REE G ER
F285% (BFTA)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 1 January 2021

EENBRERINFELE (T2 \FE-B-2F B F-A—H
BE)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 1 January 2022

BREEBENERT e

Narrow-scope Amendments

BB g ESFARER A HNA e

Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations

1 January 2022
“E-—_F—A—H
1 January 2022

BRENBARERIERD “Z-=%-—Hf-H
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
RBEA —Z-=f—-HA—H
Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
BREMBREEAE17ROBET —F-=f%-A-H
Amendments to HKFRS 17 1 January 2023
’5/’5%‘“%5% (ZZ2-ZHF)MBHRERONH/ - ERA —T-=5-H—H

HESMRREREREFNENRERND R (BE
Jﬁ%ﬁﬁsyﬁ (ZZ2FH))

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause (HK Int 5 (2020))

REERHABERARIAECE MEELEITE FE

1 January 2023

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and To be determined

its Associate or Joint Venture
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AR RN KA ER - 28
k&stiEsl (&)

AEIR] MRERTER - BB GRS
Wik - AEBERRRZEFN T REEBTE
A - 2EREHEE| - ARBEC KGR
A _EIRR] RS ERTER - RN gETHES
EENFEYE RS TEHAKRENG
AU BBREREATE -

22 ApffRERSTERENFRA

(a)

WEAF

MBARRASERGEHIRNMEER -
EAREER2EZERNEDMERSKE
BAZEWH - BRI EnENZERNE
NEEZFOHE - AAKEIZFZER
MEBARBENEEREAEEE BREAU
AR WEEHERILESAELLEAHA
B o

o

SEARRERS « B AEEARTRR
HAREHIWEE TINGH - REHBBETE
TUASEE - IMB AR ST BRREENBE
RS - DARERELARSS BRI R — 2K

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards,
interpretation and accounting guideline
not yet adopted by the Group (Continued)

The Group will adopt the new and amended
standards, interpretation and accounting
guideline when they become effective.
The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the related impact of
adopting the above new and amended
standards, interpretation and accounting
guideline, none of which is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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LRI NCIES WS Skl e 3o wadlllN
FAalERK - 2ElER - EREBHRUK
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EASERAEGIER - REERATARE
SRR ARG AN A THEERE
FREEZ NGRS Waa R R - LERARR
IR ERE - RELEAEHMEENRE
Bams - EATFE/VISIREE - 1t
SRR E 2K ERERZ B R ARNE
AERRPNAEECERLEFREES
BENTAARK LA RERRE LA E R

2HEEERANEHREFTOBERA WA
= o
BELQT

BENREASEHEREEATENBE
RIS S RN E TS - —RIER
T REEEFEB20% E50% R - RH
ER AR ERIRR A ERE IR A
SEHENE ©

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated income
statement, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of financial position, respectively.

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. It means the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.
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BAERTIRREMBERELNRER
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AREBREBENRETR RS RS
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o RERBRETUEE  HEERXS5R
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R ARRIRE BRI E R R M7 2.8 ATt I
FORIBRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(c)

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or
loss, and the Group's share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee
in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
2.8.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(d)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because of
a loss of control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified or permitted
by applicable HKFRS.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(d) Changes in ownership interests
(Continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint
venture or an associate is reduced but
joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"), who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the
Company who make strategic decisions.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements is presented in USD,
which is the Company's functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
at foreign currencies at year-end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
the fair value gains or losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(9]

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

o income and expenses for each
income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
is not a reasonable approximation of
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified
to the consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.
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2 EASTHEEHRE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Y% BMERRE(E) 2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

YE - BEMRBTERAERETHE - UK
EEFAIEAFHRADBKRA - 0T

HEMEEE

Leasehold improvements

RE - KB REE

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
=

/1$

Motor vehicles

2 0 ] (8 A IR R BRI
R T AR -

MEENREERNE G ATREEER - BIER
EERNE R E AT @ £ 58 (FifaE2.8) °

& H) s K B 1R 7Y IE B L BT 1S SR F R S AR
BEENRAEETE @ WNERE W RFER o

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

TRERS5E (BT R A%)
Shorter of lease term or 5 years
3ESF

3 -5 years

5E10%

5—10 years

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the net proceeds with the carrying
amounts of the relevant assets, and are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.



118|

)

FF3RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

B AR A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

BERETBEME @)

2.7 EESE

(a)

(b)

5E

[

43

WEMBRRNHEMNAETEE - BET
%Eﬁ‘ﬁ EFEETRENR - KEMK

BN BN A REFAER(E - BIE SRR A
o WA ERTRERERIE - HE
BERnlaERBEREREMNEERARN
AEHAREE -

HESWORERSEE B LUETTRER
# o BRI REMS R BELNER

AP ESNZERCESBVNIREES
BRIARIEL © ﬁuiiuiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂtlﬂ‘ﬁa
BEMMREREEMNKEREX (AIEED
) #Al o

HtnBILEE

Hih BN A E DR EISET KAl A -
HBERRAR R RRERE (1E)
AR - SR AERINES G AIERS
H1E10FANTE -

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of
units are identified at the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating
segments.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets consist of computer
software and licence use rights. They are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment loss, if any. Amortisation
is computed using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of 1 to 10
years.



FF$RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

119

e T RR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EASHEERHEME®W)

27 EBFEE(B)

(c)

WA

MBS BEKAEELRFER/FAX °
AR SR R i O A 38R | B B A AR A ORI R
BEBIEFREKRAEN A A TRERT R
RRBEVEE

()  FEARESRABCE I AR £ 7T

175

(i) EEERTRERMANERAIHEE

oo

ju]

(i) BREHEAHHEER

(iv) BEREEMBUMAELRKAELSE
HA BN 2R

()  HERATM  MEREMERTK
R WHAERSHEEmR &

i) EREABTEEAEEOREZTE
RESER

ERCAER—BHONEERERASEE
SR B A R B

BRERENHMAEREEESL
RHER AR - BIEFER R BRI A
RABBERRREE -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(9]

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities
are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of
identifiable assets controlled by the Group
are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the
product so that it will be available for use;

(i)~ management intends to complete the
product and use or sell it;

(iii)  there is an ability to use or sell the
product;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the
product will generate probable future
economic benefits;

(v)  adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the
product are available; and

(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the
product during its development can
be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised
as part of the product include the product
development employee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do
not meet these criteria are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an
indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

Financial assets
(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI") or
through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.



FF$RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

121

e T RR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EASHEERHEME®W)

(b)

(c)

HRBATEAENSREE  HRENE

BRI ABmSEMRE WS o B0 IERHER
FHER T BRE » HFBURN A EEEY)

%%W%EEWﬁTT@%W\&ﬁﬁE&
NFHER AR EESE ([BRFERA
Hip 2w as ) AR e

HRR A ILTER

ERAIABERMENS
R o X P ARIEAEEAG
BEH - BRDERMEERSRENEND
IR EER EAREC B SREEM
BRLBRMORRLHEH - SREER
LEHERR

BEENR 7 A
EEEANERE

El‘r
il

RNFFER  AEBREMEENRT
ExN(HERMEELIFZAFEFAER
(MEAHERARRD) KEEHEERR
REHNR RN ESREE - WA FER
ABSNEREE 2 R HRANEGA MER
SHH e

EREAARATEIANSREENR S
MERBEXNAZHMNEE - FHTEE
ENEEETEE -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, which
is the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(9]

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are two measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains, net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL
is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains, net
in the period in which it arises.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when
the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in other gains, net
in the consolidated income statement as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 3.1(b)(ii) and 20 for
further details.



BEIMIZR AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

1 24‘ FFEFRE ANNUAL REPORT 2020

mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EARSHEERHEME®W)

2.9

2.10

2.12

ETREE (&)
(d) wEE)

B R R IR S E A FE WO
B2 ERERBRETE -

BT

HHESRMTH

fMiFE—HA ARMITHEANNEHE O ERER
BAERFREESERAREREERFEER
EOEAT  SREERAGTATEE - XA
FEREINABRRMBIRARA - AIRERITHER
TEERNARES  EREEEBBRREPRE
BEERARFHTEYN BEREIXWENS
SR RIATT o

&

TFEARK AT B BFHEMRE P HBREEALR -
PRI D4R AR E - B am IR AR BIE R
o BRST  HthERRARAEAERS (£
REBRERES) - ETBREEFKAE - (JRITRF

EFX °

B 5 BWGRE

BZRUFARRBERFBRETATFHER
fn AR AR T B9 FE YRR B 5 B EoAth B WLk
BEEMRN —FHARNKE - RIBBERRBEE
BRIDBRIFERBEE -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

2.10

2.12

Financial assets (Continued)
(d) Impairment (Continued)

For notes and other receivables, the
impairment provision is determined based
on the 12-month expected credit losses.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the group entities or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted-average method. Cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or
less, they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are classified as non-current assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. See Note 2.9 for
further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade and other receivables and Note 3.1(b)
(i) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or
less.

Restricted bank deposits

Restricted bank deposits represent the amounts of
cash pledged as collateral to banks for the bank
facilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2.17 B 2.17 Borrowings
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Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the
equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting date in the countries where the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.



128

FF3RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIMIZR AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

BERETBEME @)

(b)

IEIEFREH

BEEFFSHERBREZINEERBENTE
HIRENFA M SRR T RE SRR < B
EREHEEEARERE - A - WIELEHE
BERVISERBEMESL @ AT SR -
IEFEFTISTR YR B X5 A HHASMI R S5
MFEREELAE  MEXZHLTTE
SR RERTORNEE - BRI AR
B o RSN RERAZR/ANE
BEMmY RN ERABBELEASHEE
SEERLEMEHARRERNRE (X
RETE -

BB AR EERE AR RERT S A
BRZFEREZRREENBER T T IAE

w7 °

AR BT R E Y B - A%
SRFEA LT RNALAAE - AT
HEHNEIE 2 S AR (E LB 2 1 2 B
EERREEH A ERAE -

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(b)

(0

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax
incentives

Companies within the Group may be
entitled to claim special tax deductions
for investments in qualifying assets or in
relation to qualifying expenditure. The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax
credits, which means that the allowance
reduces income tax payable and current tax
expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised
for unclaimed tax credits that are carried
forward as deferred tax assets.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

In accordance with the rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC based employees of
the Group participate in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under
which the Group and the PRC based
employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired
PRC based employees payable under the
plans described above. Other than the
monthly contributions, the Group has
no further obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post retirement
benefits of its employees. The assets of these
plans are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administrated funds
managed by the provincial governments.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(9]

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

2.21 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share option scheme

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
share options is recognised as an employee
benefits expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, the
Company's share price);

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period
of time).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(Continued)

The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited directly to
equity.

If the terms of an equity-settled award
are modified, at a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. An additional expense
is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee, as measured at
the date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions
among group entities

The grant by the Company of award shares
and options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent entity accounts.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of management’s estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, net of
rebates and discounts. Rebates and discounts
granted to customers are classified as a reduction
of revenue. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below.

(a) Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products
have been shipped to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied.

As receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Provision of services

Revenue from provision of services is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services
are rendered, based on the actual service
provided to the end of the reporting period as
a proportion of the total services to be provided
because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously. Where the contracts
include multiple performance obligations,
the transaction price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on the stand-
alone selling prices. Where these are not
directly observable, they are estimated based
on expected cost-plus margin.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL
is included in the net fair value changes on
these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at
amortised cost calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
finance income, net.

Interest income is presented as finance
income where it is earned from financial
assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied
to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Government grants

2.25

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-
lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate
for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following
lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.
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To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party
financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs; and

O restoration costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25

2.26

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. The Group
does not use any derivative financial instruments
to hedge the risk exposures.

Financial risk management is carried out by the
finance department under the supervision of the
Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") of the Company.
The CEO provides principles for overall risk
management.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the
PRC and Europe, and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Hong Kong dollar
("HK$"), Renminbi (“RMB") and
Euro ("EUR"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions or recognised financial
assets and liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

HK$ is pegged with USD, thus foreign
exchange exposure is considered as
minimal. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group has limited Euro (“EUR")
denominated financial instruments
and the foreign exchange exposure
in respect of EUR is considered as
minimal.

As at 31 December 2020, if USD
had strengthened/weakened by
5% against RMB with all other
variables held constant, the post-tax
loss (2019: profit) would have been
approximately USD348,000 lower/
higher (2019: USD1,233,000 higher/
lower), total equity would have
been approximately higher/lower by
UsD348,000 (2019: USD1,233,000),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of USD
denominated receivables and cash
and cash equivalents in entities whose
functional currency is RMB.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest
rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest bearing assets
and liabilities. As the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets
except for deposits at banks, the
Group's operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates as the Group
has no significant assets and liabilities
which were interest-bearing at
floating rates, except for the deposits
in banks, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 22 to 23. Borrowings
are issued at fixed rates and expose
the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group currently does not
hedge its exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. The Group
analyses its interest rate exposure on
a regular basis and will consider the
interest rate exposure when enter
into any financing, renewal of existing
positions and alternative financing
transactions.

The Group's practice is to manage
its interest income/cost through
monitoring and reviewing interest rate
changes in the market and its impact
to the Group's financial performance.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Price risk

The Group's exposure to equity
securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group
and classified in the consolidated
statement of financial position as
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 21).

The Group manages its price risk by
regularly monitoring equity portfolio
to address any portfolio issues
promptly.

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on a reasonable
expectation of possible valuation
volatility over the next 12 months
(Note 3.3).

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
The credit risk of the Group mainly arises
from cash and cash equivalents (excluding
cash on hand) and deposits with banks,
trade and other receivables and contract
assets. Management has policies in place to
monitor the exposures to these credit risks
on an on-going basis.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(@)

Risk management

As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, for cash and cash equivalents
(excluding cash on hand) and deposits
with banks, they are all deposited
or traded with independently rated
banks with a minimum rating of “A".
The Group has not incurred significant
loss from non-performance by these
parties in the past and management
does not expect so in the future.

As at 31 December 2020, top 3
customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 32% (2019: 16%)
of the trade receivables and contract
assets of the Group. The Group
has set up long-term cooperative
relationship with these customers.
In view of the history of business
dealings with the customers and
the sound collection history of
the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is
no material credit risk inherent in
the Group's outstanding receivable
balance due from these customers.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(@)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability
of trade and other receivables and
contract assets based on historical
payment records, the length of the
overdue period, the financial strength
of the debtors and whether there
are any disputes with the debtors.
The Group's historical experience
in collection of trade and other
receivables and contract assets falls
within the recorded allowances and
the directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible
receivables and contract assets has
been made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial
assets that are subject to the expected
credit loss model:

. trade receivables and contract
assets; and

o deposits, notes and other
receivables and loan to an
associate.

While cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank deposit are also subject
to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment
loss was immaterial.
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3 HMEERBRERE® 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 HEEERZE(E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) ERERRE) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) ZEBEEHRE (E) (i) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
ESERFBRASEE Trade receivables and contract assets

AEBRAEEMBREERF IR
WESE A BRBEREBX - %A
FHMBESRBFAREHNEER
R EEERE -

R EERERERX - EHREFA
RENEEERBEEFPKRAMLE - #
HIERERE LA RAB O -

BT B TR = R

HEFBEANMNY R A Es ke
JE U FRIE B B K &t R A9 FE M B E
FEHESTEBIRTE - LARHRRERE -
N-B-_EE+_A=+—08 " %%
ZEB T ENERREBERELS
#741,997,368F L (ZE—NF :
1,921,520%7T) °

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets
have been grouped based on the
nature of customer accounts, shared
credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

Measurement of expected credit loss
on individual basis

Receivables relating to customers
with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection of
receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment
allowance. As at 31 December 2020,
the balance of loss allowance in
respect of these individually assessed
receivables was USD1,997,368 (2019:
UsD1,921,520).
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract
assets (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss
on collective basis

Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables and contract assets based
on shared credit risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for the
risk of default, taking into account
the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing
category, and applying the expected
credit loss rates to the respective
gross carrying amounts of the trade
receivables and contract assets.

The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical
credit losses and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables
and contract assets.
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3 HMEERBRERE® 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 HEEERZE(E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) ERERRE) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) ZEBEEHRE (E) (i) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
ESERFBERENEE (1B) Trade receivables and contract

assets (Continued)

R R ES SRS A5 % (4B) Measurement of expected credit loss
on collective basis (Continued)

TRV -_Z_TF+_A=+— The following table presents the
BR=ZZE-—NF+-A=+—H8K balances of gross carrying amount
HREESR LG ERFTENE S ER and the loss allowance in respect
HIBEREHNEERNEERME - of the collectively assessed trade

receivables and contract assets as at
31 December 2020 and 31 December

2019:
k] k] k] k] k]
& 1230 31Z60% 61290k 91Z180% 180K L &F
1-30days  31-60days 61-90days  91-180days  Over 180 days
Current past due past due past due past due past due Total
£ £7 7 £ ES E7 E
Usb usb usp Usb usb usp usb
ZESEETAST-B  31December 2020
FEBE-ZHEUGUE  Gross camying amount -
RAaHEE trade receivables and
contract assets 4,570,749 219,028 4,347 52,348 157,105 126,807 5,130,384
EHEER Expected loss rate 0.70% 1.03% 3.20% 3.44% 3.90% 6.64% 0.99%
EiEdE Loss allowance (31,937) (2,258) (139) (1,802) (6,127) (8.417) (50,680)
ZB-AFTZAZT-B  31December 2019
FESE-ZHBYUGE  Gross carrying amount -
trade receivables 4,639,760 973,591 772,082 314,088 543,806 88,390 1336,717
EEEEx Expected loss rate 0.42% 0.42% 051% 0.52% 0.54% 0.68% 0.44%

BiEEE Loss allowance (19,377) (4,043) (3957) (1,639) (2,966) (605) (32,587)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract
assets (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss
on collective basis (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables
and contract assets are presented
as “net impairment losses on
financial and contract assets” in
the consolidated income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Deposits, notes and other
receivables and loan to an associate

Management considers that the credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition with reference
to the counterparty historical default
rate and current financial position. The
impairment provision is determined
based on the 12-month expected
credit loss which is close to zero and
no loss allowance was made as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.



FF$RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

149

e T RR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 BKEREE@

3.1 HEEERZE(E)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(9]

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank
balances, the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities from leading banks and the ability
to close out market position. The Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances, committed
credit lines available and interest bearing
borrowings which enable the Group to
continue its business for the foreseeable
future.

The table below analyses the non-derivative
financial liabilities of the Group into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the consolidated statement of
financial position date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table were the contractual undiscounted
cash flows and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay. Balance within 12
months equal their carrying balances as
impact at discounting is not significant.
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3.1

I REBREE ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

() FHBESER(E) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
P 1228 2E5F Ch
Within Between Between
1year 1and2years 2andS5 years Total
EyA EyA EyA EyA
usD UsD UsD usp
R-B=-Z2F As at 31 December 2020
+=A=+-8
B HENFIER Trade and bills payables
AN 2,671,291 = = 2,671,291
e B R KM Accruals and other payables
JERTFIE 2,919,472 = = 2,919,472
RITRERRENE Bank borrowings and interest
thereon 25,507,541 3,426,718 10,983,336 39,917,595
HESBEREFE Lease liabilities and interest
thereon 527,494 197,328 — 724,822
31,625,798 3,624,046 10,983,336 46,233,180
RZB-NF As at 31 December 2019
+=A=t-AR
B 2ENFIER Trade and bills payables
AN 9,220,640 = = 9,220,640
FEET 2 A K HA Accruals and other payables
JERTHRIE 4,714,754 = = 4,714,754
HEBREREFE Lease liabilities and interest
thereon 488,044 678,719 — 1,166,763
14,423,438 678,719 = 15,102,157
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash
flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total equity. Net debt is calculated as total bank
borrowings and lease liabilities less restricted bank
deposit and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group was in a net cash position as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group's financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs
are categorised into three levels within a fair value
hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

£ E& E=MH a5t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
En E Em E
UsD UsbD UsD UsD
R-E_EF As at 31 December 2020
+=A=+—-H
BE Assets
BRETIEAFE Financial assets at fair value
AR S REE through profit or loss = — 11,679,240 11,679,240
RZE—NF As at 31 December 2019
+=A=+-=
BE Assets
BRETIEAFE Financial assets at fair value
ANERNESREE through profit or loss — — 14,596,569 14,596,569

FAFR  F2REFEIF 2 MM EER (ZF—
NE ) o

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year (2019: Nil).
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3.3 AVEME(E)

(a)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

FEIMMERMIA (a) Financial instruments in level 3
W ERMSEENERIANATET The fair value of financial instruments that are
ERMERAERE - ZEMF A ARE not traded in an active market is determined
A A AT 1S R ] B SR s R R AR T REiRE by using valuation techniques. These
K EEN AR - M—HNZIEERR valuation techniques maximise the use of
ABURWIERENATE R MISEE - AT AR observable market data where it is available
A3 and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If one or more of the significant
inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3.
TREVWFIRIEREBEZ-_T_TFR= The following table presents the changes in

T-NFT=A=+—BILFENED -

level 3 instruments for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

BRBREATE
AN SmEE
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

Y
UsD
R-B-hF-A—-ANENEE Opening balance at 1 January 2019 18,246,807
¢W/4\ Additions for the year 1,466,964
R e W & R R E 18558 (fi5Te) Net losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement (Note 6) (5,036,482)
ErE N = Currency translation difference (80,720)
RZB-AF+=A=+—HWERELEE  Closing balance at 31 December 2019 14,596,569
ﬁﬁ%‘\ Additions for the year 1,494,328
R e W = R R E 18588 (fi5Te) Net losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement (Note 6) (3,018,619)
HEZPRAESEARNRE Transfer to investments accounted for using the equity
method (1,444147)
SEREREHE Currency translation difference 51,109
RZBZZF+=-A=+—HKWERES  Closing balance at 31 December 2020 11,679,240
RERMFEEEFARElER Total losses for the year included in the consolidated
[Efl - 55 B TR FENEEEE income statement for assets held at the end of the
year, under “other gains, net” (3,018,619)
RERFTAREWERNFAREE Changes in net unrealised losses, net for the year
FEENEE 5 included in the consolidated income statement at the
end of the year (3,018,619)




FF3RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

154

mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 BKEREE@ 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 AFEME (B

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) E3%:MEMTE(E) (a)

Financial instruments in level 3
(Continued)

TREMEBANREIRDFEABHEKN
FABRBAZRBNELEFR

The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable
inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements:

R=2=%F
+=A=+-8 FABE
kS WAVE ER L2 PN ¢ HABEEE
Fair value at Range of

31 December unobservable

Description 2020 Valuation technique Unobservable input input
ET
usb
RZE—tE5 1 AKENE LD - BEFE(ME®D) EF NiEHA
Unlisted equity security acquired Net asset value (Note (i) N/A N/A
in May 2017
FrmES 689,748  ZEFAE (MaE()) TR TR
Unlisted fund Net asset value (Note (i) N/A N/A
RZZ—\FZAYERFE LT - AERE () ER NiEA
Unlisted equity security acquired Net asset value (Note (i) N/A N/A
in February 2018
RZE-NERAKENE LT 2,063,938 HRHRSNE BT = 14%
BAES ([REBALRE]) Pre-tax discount rate
GED) BERERERE
Unlisted equity security acquired Discounted cash flow Compound annual growth 12%
in June 2019 ("DCF") (Note (ii)) rate
RERERE 3%
Terminal growth rate
RIZ-N\F+—AREHHEL 8,159,259 AiERENE TRAIBER & 20%
MRAES (FIzE (i) Pre-tax discount rate
Unlisted equity security acquired DCF (Note (jii)) BAEEEERER 196%
in November 2018 Compound annual growth
rate
BREERE 4%

Terminal growth rate
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3.3
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(a)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

EIRMEMTE (E) (@) Financial instruments in level 3
(Continued)
R-BZZE
TELE=E FABER
il NAFE EERN TAEZRAHE BABEEE
Fair value at Range of
31 December unobservable
Description 2020 Valuation technique Unobservable input input
ES7
Usb
RZZ-ZF+— AR 766,295 2RAHTLEATLRS NER NEH
I FHRAE S (BitzE(v))
Unlisted equity security acquired Reference to comparable N/A N/A
in November 2020 recent arm'’s length
transactions (Note (iv))
11,679,240

0] AEERR  RREHR  EEEFER
FETERSRERDAIR-B—LFRAR
ZE- N\FZRRBOELTRAESZHD
FERE -

(i) HERREATHI%(ZFE—NF  1%) -
REEBEB(ZT—NF : &5HM) BRIH
157,000 7T (ZZF— L4 : $£)1367,0003%
7L) - MR ERAR - RIAFERERBIE
BERFRE S BE - MEKRENER
FEEERATHI% (ZFE—NF  1%)
REEBEB(ZT—NF : G5H) FHEML
151,000 7T (ZF— N4 : TF178,0003%
7o) o WaEMEAFREREXER - AIRTE
REkERERSafRE B o

(ii)

The Group has determined that the reported
net asset value approximates fair value of the
unlisted fund investment and the unlisted
equity securities acquired in May 2017 and
February 2018, respectively, at the end of the

reporting period.

If the discount rate shifted downward by
1% (2019: 1%), the post-tax loss (2019:
profit) would be approximately USD157,000
lower (2019: USD367,000 higher). The
higher the pre-tax discount rate the lower
the fair value and the higher/lower post-tax
loss/profit. If the compound annual growth
rate in revenue shifted downward by 1%
(2019: 1%), the post-tax loss (2019: profit)
would be approximately USD151,000 higher
(2019: USD178,000 lower). The higher the
compound annual growth rate in revenue,
the higher the fair value and the lower/higher
post-tax loss/profit.
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(iv) AEERR PRREPR AHATLRITF
RZHBIREAIE EMRAFHFH A FERE -

REBERATENEREERBEZATE

AEBRBDEREE (BRESH REMEK
FR R RRSEEY  ZRHIRTE
RERTHEABTNER) MR eraE
(BREEZRNFARENRE  EFER
REMBNTIE HEBBNMRITER W
FRE(ERNEIREE N BE A HERSE - 3F
B EL bR URIR - Bt TR - HER
BRRITERNOEIEEELENRRRER
EfFTNRFERS °

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments in level 3

(Continued)

(iii) If the discount rate shifted downward by 1%
(2019: Nil), the post-tax loss (2019: profit)
would be approximately USD549,000 lower
(2019:Nil). The higher the pre-tax discount rate
the lower the fair value and the higher/lower
post-tax loss/profit. If the compound annual
growth rate in revenue shifted downward by
1% (2019: Nil), the post-tax loss (2019: profit)
would be approximately USD436,000 higher
(2019: Nil). The higher the compound annual
growth rate in revenue, the higher the fair
value and the lower/higher post-tax loss/profit.

(iv) The Group has determined that prices in
comparable recent arm'’s length transactions
approximate the fair value of the unlisted
equity security at the end of the reporting
period.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities measured at amortised costs

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current
financial assets, including trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposit and loan to an
associate, and current financial liabilities,
including trade and bill payables, accruals
and other payables, lease liabilities and
bank borrowings approximate their fair
values due to their short maturities. The
carrying amounts of non-current other
receivables, other payables, lease liabilities
and bank borrowings approximate their fair
values which are estimated based on the
discounted cash flows.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group has no financial assets and financial
liabilities, which is subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

4.1 Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different from previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned.

4.2 Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses
these estimates at each reporting date.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables and contract assets

The loss allowance for trade and other receivables
and contract assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be required. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. When the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income
tax charges in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.5 Recoverability of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment. Goodwill and other non-
financial assets, mainly including property, plant
and equipment, other intangible assets and right-
of-use assets, as well as investments accounted for
using the equity method, for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less
costs to sell. These calculations require the use of
judgments and estimates.

Judgment is required to identify any impairment
indicators existing for any of the Group's
goodwill, other non-financial assets to determine
appropriate impairment approaches, i.e., fair
value less costs of disposal or value in use, for
impairment review purposes, and to select key
assumptions applied in the adopted valuation
models, including discounted cash flows and
market approach. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment
could materially affect the result of the impairment
test and in turn affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the key assumptions
applied, it may be necessary to take additional
impairment charge to the consolidated income
statement.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of the Group that are not quoted or actively
traded in the market involves significant amounts
of accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates and assumptions; and could affect the
carrying amount of these assets within the next
financial year. For the investments in unlisted
investee companies and the investment in an
unlisted fund where there are no active trade
markets, the Group estimates the fair value of
these investments with reference to the fair values
of the underlying investments held by the investee
companies, such as those provided by the financial
and market information. It also employs valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants
including those based on share of net asset value
of the investees, recent comparable arm’s length
transactions and discounted cash flow model.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the information reviewed by the CODM that
are used to making strategic decisions. The CODM is
identified as the Executive Directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the CODM
assessed the performance of the Group by reviewing
the results of four reportable segments: CAM, rapid
verification systems and software, cloud services and
IC solutions, which is different from the segment
categorisation in the prior year and interim period ended
30 June 2020 in order to align the segment review with
the restructured internal management and reporting
structure. The segment information of comparative
period has been restated to conform to the current
period categorisation.

CAM - development and sales of security products (CAM
and mPOS devices) that enable secure distribution and
delivery of digital content to television and secure mobile
payment transaction respectively.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Rapid verification systems and software — development
and sales of rapid hardware-based verification systems
and software.

Cloud services — provision of cloud services, including
cloud platform services and its related supporting
services.

IC solutions — research, development and sales of IC
products and related design services.

The CODM reviews the performance of the Group
on a regular basis and reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. The CODM assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of segment
results, including adjusted operating loss of the relevant
operating segments. Expenses, where appropriate,
are allocated to operating segments with reference to
revenue contributions of respective segments. Finance
income, finance costs and unallocated income and
expenses are not included in the result for each operating
segment that is reviewed by the Group’s CODM.

Segment assets consist primarily of goodwill, other
intangible assets, investments accounted for using the
equity method, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, inventories, trade and other receivables,
contract assets and prepayments and loan to an associate
but exclude deferred income tax assets, property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, income tax
recoverable, cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
deposit and corporate and unallocated assets.

Information relating to segment liabilities is not disclosed
as such information is not regularly reported to the
CODM.

Other information provided to the CODM is measured
in a manner consistent with that as adopted for the
consolidated statement of financial position contained
herein.
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PEER &) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
PRIEER ERER
% ZREERMG ERH RRAR o]
Rapid
verification
systems and Cloud IC
CAM software services solutions Total
ET ES ET ES ES
UsD Usb UsD UsbD UsD
BE-—ZT-THF For the year ended
+ZA=+—HIEFE 31 December 2020
PaN= Segment revenue
SNEB I ER External revenue 23,488,870 - 2,834,122 11,466,789 37,789,781
W s TR B Timing of revenue
recognition
R ERER At a point in time 23,488,870 = - 6,365,021 29,853,891
1% — RIS RERR Over time = - 2,834,122 5,101,768 7,935,890
23,488,870 - 2,834,122 11,466,789 37,789,781
DEBFELE Segment results 5,654,224 7,295,534 291,152  (2,822,147) 10,418,763
BE-Z2-N%F For the year ended
+=ZA=+—HIEEE 31 December 2019
(RE5) (as restated)
pak=il & Segment revenue
HNEBIY AR External revenue 27,989,736 10,109,984 = - 38,099,720
LAt 2 T R B Timing of revenue
recognition
RIS At a point in time 27,989,736 10,109,984 = - 38,099,720
panziE Segment results 4,818,591 21,814,071 - (3,667,790) 22,964,872
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5 SEER @ 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
R F SRER
REF  REGESHG ERE RRF R e
Rapid
verification
systems and Cloud IC
CAM software services solutions Total
ET ET ET E ET
UsD usD UsD usD UsD

BE-ZE-ZEF+-HA=+—H Asat31December 2020
IHEE

HEE Segment assets 16,076,752 51,189,856 3,241,343 80,203,293 150,711,244

D

R-ZZE—NF+=HA=+—H Asat31December 2019

(&=5) (as restated)
DEEE Segment assets 19,280,703 58,906,221 - 3,213,657 81,400,581
E0 A N\ Ay /8 M A =] ST A e
Ehtﬁ\:. DEPEE R FTERIAT (E51E), BRI KA HRE A reconciliation of reportable segment results to (loss)/
DEPEERBEEMBRNT

profit before income tax and reportable segment assets
to total assets is provided as follows:

BE+-HA=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—B-EF —ZT-NF

2020 2019

ETT E

UsD UusD

WMEDEEE Reporting segment results 10,418,763 22,964,872

RNARANDERAT - F58 Corporate and unallocated expenses, net (11,094,992) (11,660,446)

K (B18) /w75 Operating (loss)/profit (676,229) 11,304,426

BB - FEE Finance income, net 308,786 583,727
DG EAERAARS Share of net loss of investments accounted

A& FEE for using the equity method (4,587,420) (266,833)

BRETISBLAT (B518) B F (Loss)/profit before income tax (4,954,863) 11,621,320
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5 2IERE)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December

—E-EHF —E-NEF

2020 2019

=TT E

UsD UsD

AREDHPEE Reportable segment assets 150,711,244 81,400,581

BIEFSHEE Deferred income tax assets 5,055,497 3,218,233

M - BB R Property, plant and equipment 14,755,055 3,152,061

FREEE Right-of-use assets 488,623 1,041,791

AU Bl FTAS AT Income tax recoverable 317,791 116,543

BeRIREZEY Cash and cash equivalents 46,482,190 70,902,673

SRR BRI TFR Restricted bank deposit = 519,266

NAIRKRDEEEE Corporate and unallocated assets 14,718,380 17,117,789
FEMBRRROBEE Total assets per consolidated statement of

financial position 232,528,780 177,468,937
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HMWA RStz - F58 6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS,
NET
F AR EAD U R Eoqth e - RN ¢ Other income and other gains, net recognised during the

year is as follows:

BE+-HA=t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

TECEE —E-NEF
2020 2019
=T T
UsD Usb
Hl A Other income
BT 4 B Government grants 16,190,149 2,385,038
HAth Others 4,501 37,754
16,194,650 2,422,792
Hibizs - B8 Other gains, net
[EH (E518), W8 Exchange (loss)/gains, net (716,490) 193,012
FER AR BRI A T ERE Fair value gain on contingent consideration
payable - 1,507,404
RIELEMB AR AR Gain on deemed disposals of subsidiaries
GEEEGYC), (Note 33(f) and (g)) 157,771 22,777,730
BRAEH Sl & QAR Gain on deemed disposal of an associate
(MizE10(b)) (Note 10(b)) 5,777,586 =
EEE R R RERN M Forfeiture of other payable to an associate
I FIE 1,528,884 -
FERBREATEAERSN Net fair value losses on financial assets at fair
S REEMN AT EEIREEE value through profit or loss (Note 3.3(a))
(Pff3E3.3(a)) (3,018,619) (5,036,482)

3,729,132 19,441,664
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7 BRUHEEBEINRX 7 EXPENSES BY NATURE
SABTHMEERA]  [FEEZ] - [HERSHE
T [—BERAREY I REREANEEY REFE

BINHHAT : expenses”, “general and administrative expenses” and

Expenses included “cost of sales”, “research and
development expenses”, “selling and distribution

“net impairment losses on financial and contract assets”
are analysed as follows:

BE+=-HA=t—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

b —ZT-NF
2020 2019
T T
Usb UsD
ZERT S Auditors’ remuneration
— AR — Audit services 471,000 506,502
— IR B RIS — Non-audit services 26,260 87,752
EHFEMA Cost of inventories sold 20,300,793 19,003,767
EERMNAX (BEEZHE) Employee benefits expenses (including directors’

(MizE8) emoluments) (Note 8) 14,467,200 15,527,697
SRERRHER IC testing fee 8,564,083 2,035,449
YIE - BB KRBT E (M3E15)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(Note 15) 2,507,805 591,348
%2 BRI EABRAR X (FisE16) Expenses relating to short-term leases (Note 16) 1,966,373 2,112,154
FEREEER Legal and professional fees 1,721,457 1,278,060
MRS 5 R E AR A R AR Other research and development cost paid to

universities 1,575,404 459,960
N S LY SN B Office supplies and utilities 1,132,442 1,002,002
IR R BERY Travelling and entertainment expenses 1,312,068 1,785,182
FErEFRE Royalty expenses 892,660 1,062,981
B A R RFFRI & R i, License fee and technical supporting fee paid to an

& (Mizr36(b)) associate (Note 36(b)) 868,143 =
HibmR EE#E (HH5E17) Amortisation of other intangible assets (Note 17) 607,652 463,039
FREESENE (WiE16) Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16) 420,107 369,743
&K Advertising costs 264,618 367,269
H iR Other taxes 175,128 221,861
Z R RIE M A HEERIEREHE Provision for impairment of trade receivables and

(Fft5E20) contract assets (Note 20) 86,391 19,971
HEWE - BE KR EEE Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 48,779 53,591
& B S E R R Loss on disposals of other intangible assets 35,060 =
FERERE Provision for impairment of inventories 10,846 1,163,024
Hith Others 935,523 548,398
HEKA - AERX - HER Total cost of sales, research and development

AHEFAE  —RRITERX expenses, selling and distribution expenses,

RemkatEE 2 RE general and administrative expenses and net

SRR impairment losses on financial and contract assets 58,389,792 48,659,750
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8

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BE+-A=1+t—RHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—EEH —E—hF

2020 2019

E ES

UsD UusD

TE - He kHM=ER Wages, salaries and other allowances 10,059,583 10,674,685
B TEAL Discretionary bonuses 3,202,649 3,278,506
VAR 53 /5 1 1 57 A Share-based compensation - 39,742
RIAERN — REH-REHE Retirement benefit — defined contribution plans 1,204,968 1,534,764
14,467,200 15,527,697

(a)

RKER — REHEEE

ARRRRAPEMNMMERF AT ERAMH#ETEEK
EIRREMEFTENKE - AEBERB AR
BHeE T BEDLERER - MERFEHEK
VEERIMNERSHERREMNNE-FE
£ - BREENENRGEIBEMRKEER ISP
BERRE -

AEEERFEEERE 2 MBHIERTREFTE
(M&EEE])  ZFFERABUIFEATEN
SEHRKE S - RIFBEEFE > ARBERERE
BRBHMEREREIERNEBRANS % E
Amst SR - AR E KRS H35141,500
BT (ML) RER - RREHNHSEBRIE
g - WHERBHRA ARRD BREMHEER -

B bt st BIERSN
BMELE -

INER B3 fm R R I R IR TR

(a)

Retirement benefit — defined contribution
plans

The Company'’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The Group
contributes a certain percentage of the salaries of the
subsidiaries” employees, and has no further obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-
managed retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, the Group and its employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions were subject to a cap of Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$") 1,500 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. No forfeited contributions are available to
reduce contributions payable in the future.

The Group has no material obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond contributions to the
above schemes.
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8 EERAMFAX (BRESZM)@®

(b) HEESHAL

FR - AEELARSFALEEEMERRR
MEE3IFPIDM =R (ZF—NF =R &
F o RFRAERNTHRTME (ZF-NF : BE)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the

highest in the Group for the year include three
(2019: three) directors whose emolument is

ATHBESIT - reflected in the analysis shown in Note 39. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2019:
two) individuals during the year are as follows:

BE+-A=t—BHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-EHF ZE-NF
2020 2019
ETT E
UsD UsD

ERTE - R REDEN Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 729,246 153,298

BEIEAT Discretionary bonuses - 38,906

RINEH — FREHNRETE Retirement benefit- defined contribution plan 3,707 17,193

732,953 209,397

5L R A0 28 Sl R B 1 S T SRS AT R F A
T (ZZ-NF:8) -

No inducement fee nor compensation for loss of
office has paid to or receivable by any of these
individuals (2019: Nil).
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8 EERFBEX(BEEEMS) @ 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)
(Continued)
(b) HEAEZEFHAL(E) (b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
e mgERT - The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BE+-HA=+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—ECEH —T-hF
2020 2019
MeEE Emolument bands
21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to Nil to
(FHERZTE128,98957T) USD128,989) - 2
2,000,001,% 722,500,000 HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (equivalent
BT (F8E 7 257,978 T to USD257,978 to USD322,472)
%322,47237T) 1 =
3,500,001, 24,000,000 HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 (equivalent
BT (FEE 451,462 7T to USD451,462 to USD515,956)
Z%515,95637T) 1 =
2 2
9 REWA - FHE 9 FINANCE INCOME, NET
BEt+t=-A=+t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—ECEF —E-NF
2020 2019
= T
UsD UsD
AEWA Finance income
S el U e ! ColiinafyTs onbar daTioda gyt Sl U2 5
AL A A Finance cost
HEaBEMF SR (MEE16) Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 16) (28,050) (44,526)
RITERBF SR Interest expense on bank borrowings (185,260) (134,315)
LA AN Finance cost (213,310) (178,841)

MEWA > FH Finance income, net 308,786 583,727
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10 EREREARNIRE

Al MIREERZRAREL AR  MAEEEESL
PIRAKBEEERE - AREMKHGERERBRR
TREXME - ARSI SRR RERELA -
BENTNRXERERET XEREE

NTAREER_FT_TFT_A=+—HHEBEERQ
H

10

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2020. The entities listed below have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are
held directly by the Group. The country of incorporation
or registration is also their principal place of business,
and the proportion of ownership interest is the same
as the proportion of voting rights held. The English
names of the associates are directly translated from their
Chinese names.

BRLR $E1% /HRATER ERRREAMM BEME HEAE HEE
Place of business/ Measurement
Name of entity country of incorporation % of ownership interest Nature of relationship method Carrying amount
Z8SRE CENF ZR0RE CTNE
2020 2019 2020 2019
% % £7 £7
% % usp USD
HERTETHAERAR( LEET]) HE 34.94% U9% BERF(ZENE Bai 142,798 520,559
(Fi3(a)) BEand)
Shanghai Qingge Digital Technology Co,,  The PRC Associate (2019: Associate) Equity method
Ltd. ("Shanghai Qingge”) (Note (a))
LSRR RRERAERAA hE 2.75% 0919% BERA(CZ-NE: BEE 51189856 42,999,190
(MIBEMT (LS GERRERAR) BELF)
([B&% L)) ()
S2C Limited (previously named as S2C The PRC Associate (2019: Associate) Equity method
Shanghai Co., Ltd.) (“52C Shanghai”)
(Note (b))
RIS AREERAR il 9.09% 099% BEAR(ZF-NE: Bk 1467045 -
(TR () FRERRATE
NENEREE)
Shenzhen Giga Design Automation Co,, Ltd ~ The PRC Associate (2019: Financial Equity method
("Giga") (Note (c) asset at FVPL)
LEEMEESRERAA hE 49.00% 10000% HEAR(ZT-nE: EaE 311387 -
(B ]) (Bt ) HEAR)
Shanghai SMIT Xinxin Semiconductor Co.,  The PRC Associate (2019: Subsidiary) Equity method
Limited ("SMIT Xinxin") (Note (d))
FRREEARNREAR
Total investments accounted for using the equity method 69,176,985 43519,749
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ARHERE (&®)

EEER

RZT—NAFRANA - BNER CFRY) AR AR ([SMIT
wIN) AR &R B ARYS,590,0007T (FH5774810,239%
TO)IRER EEBIA34.94% AR - Bt - SMITRYIRA %
BEREDBEATE)  MZBREBEALEENBER
ET o

BRGLE

RZB-NF+ZA=++tB  AEERETBUREE
S ﬁﬁz:~ CREBUREEREMARBMEREGHE

AREBRIG /’i&éﬁm/\/\ﬁﬁﬁaw 821,0007T (1HERK)
44,411,000%7T) ° —NF+ZA=+—HZTKXS

F AEER BRI >%HX$EEE1OO%TIZ%§49 19% -+ I
9&%% HHE - FB  AEERERAL DFNREBESUEAD
FEENE - MREERAZERBMEAR (AARERY
FPEEEARFEN) HRBESHARME * ZRF
BARVIFRIREE -

BB

RZZ-_TENA=+—H0 BEELLSRETBIRE
HFNXEWE #EREMEAN LEATHEARS
522,911,000 (#5514 4976,221,000%7T) - RZZE=_ZF
NE=Z+—BXRZTHKE  AEBRBERT 80 RER
49.19% MV %E29.75% » RIFHEREERBR L LEH
MEEE’JLI&( SEEHER)5,472, M AERTTR AR BiRE Wam R P
R RN EM B E K ERE305, 172X TEENHE

=85 -

10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Note:

(a)

Shanghai Qingge

On 9 May 2019, SMIT Group Limited (“SMIT Shenzhen”)
invested in 34.94% equity interest of Shanghai Qingge
for a cash consideration of RMB5,590,000 (equivalent to
UsD810,239). As a consequence, SMIT Shenzhen gained
significant influence over this investment and the investment
was classified as an associate of the Group.

S2C Shanghai

On 27 December 2019, the Group entered into a capital
injection agreement with certain independent investors
which agreed to contribute a total of RMB309,821,000
(equivalent to approximately USD44,411,000) into S2C
Shanghai, an indirectly-held subsidiary of the Company.
Upon the completion of the transaction on 31 December
2019, the Group's equity interest in S2C Shanghai decreased
from 100% to 49.19% with a loss of control. On the same
day, the Group's retained interest over S2C Shanghai was
remeasured to its fair value, which became the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
such retained interest as an associate because the Group has
significant influence over S2C Shanghai.

On 31 August 2020, S2C Shanghai entered into a capital
injection agreement with certain independent investors which
agreed to contribute a total of RMB522,911,000 (equivalent
to approximately USD76,221,000) into S2C Shanghai. Upon
the completion of the transaction on 31 August 2020, the
Group's equity interest in S2C Shanghai decreased from
49.19% to 29.75%. An amount of USD5,472,414 resulting
from gain on deemed disposal of the Group’s equity interest
in S2C Shanghai was recognised in the consolidated income
statement of the Group and an amount of USD305,172
previously recognised in other comprehensive income was
reclassified to profit or loss.



172

FF3RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIMIZR AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 FERAESRZEARNKRE @)

BiEE - ()

()

PTG

RZZ=ZE—F=+—08  SMITHYIERIEIE AL E
REESGEBOE (ARAR) ST LE S - BigHS
SMITZRIIE B S A& 5t & AR #90,000,0007T (18
£M12,997,328% ) - RZZEZTF—A=T—HEKXR
1% SMITRYIB S IR E AR 0.99% 18 %£9.09% -
BHERER TR MM RRES 2 — « Bt - SMITERYIE
T TF A=+ BREBRCHMABEEATESD  BK
WARLKATEENEEAF - FABEEBERERATEA
RNSMEERATEEREEREREARNRE -

TSR

RZZZZTF=A=+—8 ' SMTRINEEFBLIREET
SRS RS RSB REEREABRMTNAFEE
AR ¥50,000,0007T (185747,057,063%7T) + LAMREL50%
&4 - AR ASMITRYIZ 3R € AR 1,000,0007T (1%
AI141,0003%7T) + IRERBIBURE 1 % R HE - RZT=F
FZA=Z+—BRETERE  ARBEREHESHRER
100% TFEZEA9% » WhEZESIE - RIE - AEERBEME
IHR B 56,915,922 XU A K AT EEHTE - ik
BRZIERBE AT (ARAEEURMSTEERATEN)
HRBERSOARMS - 22T EAVSHERREE

10

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

()

Giga

On 31 January 2020, SMIT Shenzhen entered into a capital
injection agreement with Shenzhen Giga Hongtai Hongxin
Share Investment Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership),
according to the agreement, SMIT Shenzhen agreed
to contribute a total of RMB90,000,000 (equivalent to
USsD12,997,328) into Giga. Upon the completion of the
transaction on 31 January 2020, SMIT Shenzhen'’s equity
interest in Giga increased from 0.99% to 9.09% and
SMIT has appointed one out of five directors of Giga.
Consequently, SMIT Shenzhen had significant influence
over Giga from 31 January 2020 whereby Giga became
an associate of the Group and a transfer to investments
accounted for using the equity method was made from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss at its fair
value on the same day.

SMIT Xinxin

On 31 March 2020, SMIT Shenzhen entered into an equity
transfer agreement with certain independent investors
which agreed to contribute a total of RMB50,000,000
(equivalent to USD7,057,063) into SMIT Xinxin for 50% of
the equity interest and pay RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately USD141,000) by cash to SMIT Shenzhen for
1% equity interest in SMIT Xinxin. Upon the completion
of the transaction on 31 March 2020, the Group's equity
interest in SMIT Xinxin decreased from 100% to 49% with
a loss of control. On the same day, the Group’s retained
interest of USD6,915,922 over SMIT Xinxin was remeasured
to its fair value, which became the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for such retained
interest as an associate because the Group has significant
influence over SMIT Xinxin.
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AT B A AR IR E B -

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Set out below is the movement of investments accounted
for using the equity method:

ko =53 —E-NEF
2020 2019
ETT E
UsD UusD
n— As at 1 January 43,519,749
NE Additions 19,913,250 43,809,429
HE B IRIEEREATEARAS  Transfer from financial assets at FVPL
A E (F:3.3() (Note 3.3(a)) 1,444,147 =
RIEHE R K= Gain on deemed disposal 5,472,414 =
P& N R &8 Share of loss of associates (4,587,420) (266,833)
FrEE 2 EEE Share of other comprehensive loss 2,431,975 =
SHER R B IR 5 A Elimination of unrealised profit (192,730) =
B E =R Currency translation difference 1,175,600 (22,847)
R+=ZA=+—8~ As at 31 December 69,176,985 43,519,749
() UTAREBNBEARN_ZT_TF+=_A=

TARBEZALFENMBERESE - A
SENGEAMBANK MGEERERETERX -
BELREE  ARMEATARNHEE—_ZT %
FHZA=+—RIEFERKE -

Set out below is the summarised financial
information for an associate of the Group as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2020 which
is material to both the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
income statement. Comparative amounts are nil
as the associate was acquired by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

RERBRERBR Summarised consolidated statement of
financial position

—EIEF —E-NF
2020 2019
ES Ew
UsD UuspD
MEEE Current assets 110,861,911 <
IEMBNEE Non-current assets 34,579,228 =
mBaE Current liabilities (2,013,566) =
EERE Net assets 143,427,573 =
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10

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(%&) (i) (Continued)
SERREE IR Reconciliation to carrying amount
—E-EHE —ZE—hF
2020 2019
ETT E
UsD Usb
AEFE Net assets 143,427,573 =
AEBEALET Group's share in USD 13,037,566 =
PGS Add: Goodwill 3,587,862 =
B EBR AR IR S A Less: Elimination of unrealised profit (1,954,974)
BREE Carrying amount 14,670,454 =
REZENERME Summarised consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
ETT E
UsD UsD
e Revenue 28,932,420 -
FAEE Loss for the year (15,132,684) =
Ema2mEE Other comprehensive loss (1,207,314) =
FREHEEELRE Total comprehensive loss for the year (16,339,998) =
AEE LI E AR EE Group's share of loss of associates (594,112) =




10 ERAERZEARNKRE @)

(ii)

AT RAREE

PERNFIR - E-_TE+ A=

T BERBEZALFENMBERNRE - &4
REBOEREMIBIRRRBERX °
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(i) Set out below is the summarised financial
information for an associate of the Group as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2020 which
is material to the Group’s consolidated statement

of financial position only.

HEMBERRRUE Summarised consolidated statement of
financial position
—ECEF —E-NF

2020 2019

En Ew

Usb uUsp
MEEE Current assets 138,037,503 51,632,254
EREBEE Non-current assets 16,493,228 10,486,731
mENaE Current liabilities (9,404,052) (9,658,794)
e TEN=K= Non-current liabilities (9,530,628) (63,287)
EEZRE Net assets 135,596,051 52,396,904
SREREENH R Reconciliation to carrying amount

—ECEHF —E-NF

2020 2019

E E

UsD usb
BEFE Net assets 135,596,051 52,396,904
AEBEFEET Group's share in USD 40,339,825 25,059,257
o e Add: Goodwill 10,850,031 17,939,933
BREE Carrying amount 51,189,856 42,999,190
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10 FERAESRZEARNKRE @)

(ii)

(iii)

10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
(&) (i) (Continued)
FEEERERBE Summarised consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
—ECERF —E-NF
2020 2019
ES T
UsD UsD
Was Revenue 19,386,472 8,544,204
FriaF (E8) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,592,208 (687,526)
Hip 2wz, (EE) Other comprehensive gain/(loss) 7,424,403 (564,664)
FANEMEF,(E58) %%  Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year 9,016,611 (1,252,190)
AN B Pl Bt 2 A B RO 5 A Group's share of profit of associates 203,534 =

NTRASENBRERAR _E_TF+_A=
T-ARBEZALSFENUMBENNE - Eﬁ
REBNGEREREERX - BELKDHE -
RBMERRRRBE_Z_TF+_HA=+— EI
LIEFE R

(iii)

Set out below is the summarised financial
information for an associate of the Group as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2020 which
is material to the Group’s consolidated income
statement only. Comparative amounts are nil as
the associate was acquired by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

RERBRRERBR Summarised consolidated statement of
financial position
2020 2019
ETT E
UsD UspD
MENEE Current assets 25,315,003 =
EREEE Non-current assets 847,889 =
PEN=NE Current liabilities (19,826,613) =
EEFE Net assets 6,336,279 =
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(iii)

(iv)
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(&) (iii) (Continued)
B AR EE ¥ R Reconciliation to carrying amount
ft et 22 —TNEF
2020 2019
ET e
UsbD Usb
BEFE Net assets 6,336,279 -
AEBETEET Group's share in USD 3,104,777 =
- e Add: Goodwill 69,100 -
BREE Carrying amount 3,173,877 =
REZENERHE Summarised consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
—ECEF —T-NF
2020 2019
T E 7
UsD UsD
& Revenue 531,615 =
FABEREAEEBEES Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year (8,353,893) =
REE TG E & R BRI Group's share of profit of associates (3,990,338) =

B bSPTIR BRI B A RIS

AEB IR (iv)

£ AR ARRAIB & R R A S

GEMBRRRBR

In addition to the interests in associates disclosed
above, the Group also has interests in an associate
that are accounted for using the equity method.

Summarised consolidated statement of

financial position

—ECEF —TNF
2020 2019
ET o
UsbD usbD

EVFIEISE PN N2 Aggregate carrying amount of an individually
BRERE immaterial associate 142,798 520,559

AREBE ML EENEE Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of

loss (206,504) (280,406)
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11 HEBAT

FERR-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HZETEMNBLAH
FIANT o BRIFERBFATE - BRIXEEMBAERANERR
EEBREAHHEBERERSLIERARRRFEZRE
o EMARHEMBER O EE T RE XM -

11 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020
are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are
held by the Group, and the proportion of ownership
interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group.
The country of incorporation or registration is also their
principal place of business.

EMRIL A E R BRITR
ERAE EEERER TEER BRBREFE ERRBEREE
Particulars of
Place of incorporation issued and fully Direct and indirect
Name of entity and kind of legal entity Principal activities paid share capital ownership
ZECEE
2020
%
EERE:
Directly held:
Bl (%) BRAF BE - BRAH HERBRRAMZ 2 150,010,000/ 100
(TEtAEE] EE AR R (ZZ—N% : 100)
SMIT Holdings (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of CAM and other security HK$150,010,000 100 (2019: 100)
("SMIT HK") company products and related materials
SMIT Digital GmbH ®E - BRAR HEERERRmPOSHE K 25,000B0T 100
Hitk2Em (ZZ—N%F: 100)
SMIT Digital GmbH Germany, limited liability Sales of CAM and mPOS devices EUR25,000 100 (2019: 100)
company and other security products
SMIT Systemic Limited EBERLEE REAZK (E 100
(ZZ—N%F: 100)
SMIT Systemic Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding UsD1 100 (2019: 100)
52C Holding Corporation EBEAEE RERR 56,859% T 95.43
(ZZ—% : 95.43)
$2C Holding Corporation British Virgin Islands Investment holding USD56,859 95.43(2019: 95.43)
BEREE
Indirectly held:
SMITRI el BREAAR MEREERER - AR #220,000,0007C 100
mPOSH I & 858 fR 5 85 (ZZ—N% :100)
SMIT Shenzhen The PRC, limited liability Research and development and RMB220,000,000 100 (2019: 100)

company

sales of CAM, mPOS devices and
blockchain servers
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11 BT E)

11 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) e (@) Non-controlling interests
MRZZBZZF+_A=+—8  REEFZRE As at 31 December 2020, the total non-controlling
iy uﬁﬁf%z 342,185% 7T (ZE— N5 : 1,967,240 interests of the Group was USD2,342,185 (2019:
EL) R-BEBF+_A=+—R " rEERK USD1,967,240). As at 31 December 2020, the
BEHAEEMmME EEKB’HH REZHNEA Group re-assessed whether the subsidiary with
RIMEEMAE AREERKRATEHAIEERNE non-controlling interests is considered material
HREEN T EZA B AT to the Group based on its relative size in terms of
total assets, total liabilities and loss before income
tax.
TXHIWREBE-_T—NFR_Z_TF+= Set out below are the summarised unaudited
A=+ —BLEFEHEERETREZAS2C financial information of S2C Holding Corporation
Holding Corporation B W ## 5Epk B B R4S B2 B since completion of acquisition which has material
BERME - non-controlling interests for the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2020.
MBERREHE Summarised statement of financial position
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
k823 —T-NF
2020 2019
E5 27T
UsbD UusbD
MENEEE Current assets 16,659 10,000
REEERE Current net assets 16,659 10,000
IERBEE Non-current assets 51,189,856 42,999,190
FRBEERE Non-current net assets 51,189,856 42,999,190
BEEFE Net assets 51,206,515 43,009,190
R FEIE iR Accumulated non-controlling interests 2,342,185 1,967,240
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11 MBAF @ 11 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) FEEpEss (48) (@) Non-controlling interests (Continued)
2EHRBEREE Summarised statement of comprehensive
income

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—ECEF —E—NF
2020 2019
=TT E
UsD UsD
Wz Revenue - 10,710,893
B Aa Fl Profit for the period 5,987,779 37,618,721
Hib 2 mEmis Other comprehensive income 2,209,546 122,927
2HEINZETE Total comprehensive income 8,197,325 37,741,648
A BE T FEPEAR R A A 55 Profit allocated to non-controlling interests 374,945 1,726,303
= A pe =}
HREREREME Summarised consolidated cash flows
BZE+-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—ECEF —E-NF
2020 2019
ET E 7
UsD UsD
KEEFSEIRERE Cash flows from operating activities = (225,622)
KEFSMBRESRE Cash flows from investing activities = (34,715)
BEEHFEESRE Cash flows from financing activities = (362,227)
REeERESEEYENFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents = (622,564)

A EERREEANRRIFEEHEATNEER

The information above was the amount before
inter-company eliminations.
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12 FisHiER

AEBMMNFIEEFRMN EENE THEA R REE
ANAE B EAEE E ET KR AR EMEH
ETAENSHRMEE - ZEERBHYERN=_Z=F
FE-_T - —F=FHERNZE15%NTFREEMSEH
([EEMBRD EERE ([RIRMCEEERE]) -
HE_Z-_ZF+_A=-t+—HULFEER%ZEEER
MERBEFRANCEMBRREAR15% (22—
£ :15%) °

BE_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE ERBEFAR
FTERTUEFIR16.5% (ZZT—LF ¢ 16.5%) MBI R
REENGHBE - HINEFIMBBTRBASELE
FEBRRNIRBEIDE - 2B LEED - RIBFAMGE
FERBUE AN - HERBRBITHERREAEMRS -

12

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Certain subsidiary and associate of the Group established
in the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone and Shanghai
have obtained approval from the respective in-charge
tax authorities in the PRC as High/New Technology
Enterprises as defined under the New Enterprise
Income Tax Law. Such entities are entitled to a reduced
preferential enterprise income tax (“EIT") rate at 15%
("HNTE Preferential Tax Rate”) for a 3-year period from
2020 to 2022. An EIT tax rate at 15% (2019: 15%) was
applied to the assessable profit of these entities for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Hong Kong
profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the
applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

BE+-A=1+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—BoBE —TNEF
2020 2019
ET e
UsbD Usb
BEAFRAS 75 Current income tax
— BIEAFRS 3 — Current income tax
R ERTISH PRC corporate income tax - 325
EINRIA Overseas tax = 2,558
BEBNISH Hong Kong profits tax - 172,471
—RAFERETE — Under-provision in prior years 11,295 57,013
o la e BRI RER O NSNS S U220 222 el
EIEFTISHL (Mi3E24) Deferred income tax (Note 24)
—REE — Current year (1,792,875) (1,192,063)
— R RS B 2 HERRIRIE — Derecognition of deferred income tax
ST EE assets previously recognised 260,488 258,705
Cod T e TR e ol D ST SN D DR (933,358)_
FriSBiig R Income tax credit (1,521,092) (700,991)
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12 P8BSR (5 12 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)
REERFSHA (BR) (HfMBIEEERETR - The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax
EiRETER T E AR A E RN E A5G I A B A differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
R EME using the domestic tax rate applicable to profits of the

Group's subsidiaries as follows:

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-EF —T-NHF
2020 2019
ETT E
UsD UsD
BRETIERLAT (B518), B F (Loss)/profit before income tax (4,954,863) 11,621,320
REARSEERMELSEMA  Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to
B AB R ERTIE profits in the respective countries (765,553) 2,119,627
BERT WA Income not subject to tax (1,287,257) (4,133,639)
AAHB A Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,173,308 1,147,485
FriSfiEsE — MR Income tax benefit — super deduction (1,231,584) (693,333)
W EERIELEFE B ER Tax loss for which no deferred tax asset was
THIEE 18 recognised 318,211 543,151
IR ERER ST T B ERIRAE Derecognition of deferred income tax assets
S EE previously recognised 260,488 258,705
BEFEREBETR Under-provision in prior years 11,295 57,013
FrigBiE e Income tax credit (1,521,092) (700,991)

BHE T TFE+_A=1+—HI-FENINEFEER
HEAE155% (ZZ—NF  18.2%) ° WA ThHRAR
AIREMBARRNE BRRNEFIKEES) -

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was 15.5% (2019: 18.2%).
The decrease is caused by a change in the profitability
of the Company and its subsidiaries in the respective
countries.
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BT R (&)

BREBE(PEARKMBEERETOR) - R BEKZES
BRERINEIREE SRS BN 10% NI o
ZREA_TEN\F-—A-AERERWEAR -_FTL
FHZA=T—RERRBEWEN - fih BHEIEHIRES
PR RDE R BBV E - R RABERIEN
BBE - RAKEME - BHAHED5%H10% e
it - R B —TZTN\F-A—BEMRELRN @ ~NEE
AR BRI B 7% 5 MY B 2 R AT 0 Tk MO BR B A TR AN
B o FEBIM 24357

R (58, BF

13.1 &K
BREX (BER),/ BFRAAREE ABGERE
(E518),/ S5 Mk A B 217 @I A N AE S 15 L

o
RTE -

12

13

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding tax on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. Details are
disclosed in Note 24.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
13.1 Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share are calculated by
dividing the (loss)/profit of the Group attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue.

BE+-A=+—-BHLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-EHF ZE-NF
2020 2019
KRARER AFEMG (B518), % F]  (Loss)profit attributable to owners
(ZE7T) of the Company (USD) (3,707,652) 10,602,142
BRIT SRR INETHEE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue 318,771,496 317,657,782
EFREX (EER) BF (ExT) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (USD) (0.012) 0.033
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13 SR (B8) B @)

13.2 #8

BhiEE (B8 BAEBABRRTEINER
BintE 1588 - AR FTE AT BE A B EERUE R
TRROEERMAE - piERENS - RREB

PR T (B FE 2 BTV AR D
B (RERFESRFITERE

2B R ATIR AT
E ) BT B

B PISHEERASFIERRSEERTHORND
A - AMELNEEZETROBAE ST ATER

MAETEBIERD T - A3
EF -

BEkEE (BR)

13 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

13.2 Diluted

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share are calculated
by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For the
share options, the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the
share options less the number of shares that could
have been issued at fair value (determined as the
average market price per share for the respective
year) for the same total proceeds is the number of
shares issued for no consideration. The resulting
number of shares issued for no consideration
is included in the weighted average number of
ordinary shares as the denominator for calculating
diluted (loss)/earnings per share.

BE+-HA=+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-EHF ZE-NF
2020 2019
ANATEB AN (B518),  (Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the
w ) (7T) Company (USD) (3,707,652) 10,602,142
BT RRANETHEH Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue 318,771,496 317,657,782
SRR A SRR (P 5E) Adjustments for share options (Note) = 786,292
Wt (B518), BFW Adjusted weighted average number of
KRR I AR N T3 B ordinary shares for diluted (loss)/earnings
A O NN 318,771,496 318,444,074
TR EE (F518),/ B 5| (327T) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (USD) (0.012) 0.033

W

BE_Z_ZTHE+_A=1— Etiftﬁxﬁ&é@ﬂéﬁﬁlﬂx

%ZKES?E@ R - BTSN AEE

BREE RESERIE

Note:

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December

2020 was the same as basic loss per share since all potential

ordinary shares are anti-dilutive.
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14 KRE 14 DIVIDENDS
BE+-—A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
b amp 32 —TNF
2020 2019
e ET
usD usD
FRARHIR S EA%0.01 87T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.01
(FBZER#10.00137T) (equivalent to approximately USD0.001)
(ZE—NF : 0018 (2019: HK$0.01 (equivalent to
(FBER40.0013%E7T)) approximately USD0.001)) per share 411,405 410,139

BHE-_ZT-hE+_A=t+—BHLEENRHRE S
408,159 7T (BA%0.0178 7T (FAZER#0.0013%T))
ERZZEZZFIN(ZT—NF : 405,414% 7T (B8R
0.0187L (FBERA0.001%m))) - HEZZ=ZTF+
ZA=Z+—BHUEFENRERKREATR0.01BT (BE
MR#0.0013%7T) © BRBAEREA411,405% 7T - B AR
ARG BRMBRERATASRE - IWiEH AR ETEH
BERMEESE  HYER T _TF+_A=1+—H
REREMBRETRAEMES -

The final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019 amounted to USD408,159 (HK$0.01
(equivalent to approximately USD0.001) per share)
(2019: USD405,414 (HK$0.01 (equivalent to
approximately USD0.001) per share)) was paid in
2020. A final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2020 of HK$0.01 (equivalent to
approximately USD0.001) per share, amounted to
a total dividend of USD411,405 will be proposed
at the upcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. This proposed final dividend is expected
to be an appropriation from share premium
and is not reflected as a dividend payable in
the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2020.
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15 Y%  BERRE 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HA-
HENELEE HERRE AE &t
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
£ E5 7 7 7
Usb UsD Usp usp
RZB-N\F+=A=+—-H At 31 December 2018
B Cost 2,651,553 3,134,470 327,511 6,113,534
ZEtiE Accumulated depreciation (2,294,434) (1,910,630) (172,576) (4,377,640)
REFE Net book amount 357,119 1,223,840 154,935 1,735,894
BE-Z-h%F Year ended 31 December 2019
tZA=+—-HILEE
FUREFE Opening net book amount 357,119 1,223,840 154,935 1,735,894
RE Additions 1,320,939 733,519 75,506 2,129,964
HE Disposals (13,216) (38,353) (5,299) (56,868)
e (H7) Depreciation (Note 7) (181,389) (350,453) (59,506) (591,348)
BIELEMBAR (HzE33() Deemed disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 33(f)) = (38,042) = (38,042)
ERmE =S Currency translation differences 5,606 (32,299) (846) (27,539)
FEREEFE Closing net book amount 1,489,059 1,498,212 164,790 3,152,061
R-ZE-NE+ZA=+—-H At 31 December 2019
PR Cost 3,849,917 3,492,672 382,346 7,724,935
BitinE Accumulated depreciation (2,360,858) (1,994,460) (217,556) (4,572,874)
REFE Net book amount 1,489,059 1,498,212 164,790 3,152,061
BEE_ZT_ZF Year ended 31 December 2020
+-A=+—-HLEE
FUREFE Opening net book amount 1,489,059 1,498,212 164,790 3,152,061
RNE Additions 1,209,319 7,712,373 = 8,921,692
B gk Transfer from inventories = 4,999,737 = 4,999,737
HE Disposals (8,014) (54,187) - (62,201)
E (ME7) Depreciation (Note 7) (409,595) (2,068,454) (29,756) (2,507,805)
RIELEMBAR (H7E33(g))  Deemed disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 33(g)) (693,210) (17,953) (49,577) (760,740)
EHEED Currency translation differences 75,371 931,731 5,209 1,012,311
FREEFE Closing net book amount 1,662,930 13,001,459 90,666 14,755,055
R-B-BF+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2020
A Cost 3,981,893 16,190,850 341,944 20,514,687
ZEtNE Accumulated depreciation (2,318,963) (3,189,391) (251,278) (5,759,632)
IREFE Net book amount 1,662,930 13,001,459 90,666 14,755,055
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15 Y13 - BB R&RE @) 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
FTATSHERR A  [HEREZ]  [HEERIHERAZ IR Depreciation as included in “cost of sales”, “research
[—MRITHRZ I ITES AT and development expenses”, “selling and distribution

16

expenses” and “general and administrative expenses” is
analysed as follows:

BE+-HA=+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-EF —T-NF
2020 2019
ET ET
Usb usD
HEMRAK Cost of sales 1,251,185 69,606
RS Research and development expenses 783,364 183,023
HE RO HEFX Selling and distribution expenses 2,996 23,513
— R R AT S General and administrative expenses 470,260 315,206
2,507,805 591,348
HE 16 LEASES
(i) RESHBERTREZNEE ()  Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position:
Rt+t=—A=+-—8
As at 31 December
—ECEF —E-NEF
2020 2019
ETT E
UsD UusD
EREEE Right-of-use assets
B Buildings 488,623 1,041,791
HEasE Lease liabilities
nE Current 510,786 449,178
SEMRE Non-current 190,790 658,318
701,576 1,107,496
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=T—HILFEFIEFH Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
BEER87,215%T (ZF— N4 : 1,501,269% ended 31 December 2020 were USD87,215 (2019:

) 2

UsD1,501,269).
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16 #HE(®)

(ii)

(iii)

NMRERERERNEH

(if)

16 LEASES (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement:

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019
ET 2T
UsbD Usb
FREEENEER (KI5E7) Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets (Note 7)

SHERAR Cost of sales 91,287 14,971
HERDHAS Selling and distribution expenses 15,397 11,227
—MRITE R X General and administrative expenses 273,593 343,545
R Research and development expenses 39,830 -
420,107 369,743

FERY (GTABERA) Interest expense (included in finance cost)
(Bt3F9) (Note 9) 28,050 44,526
HIDHATA S ARIMRI S (F5E7) Expense relating to short-term leases (Note 7) 1,966,373 2,112,154

é,ti E_EF+_A=+—HLEFEHEHN
BEemb#EsEA2,251,116E T (ZE—NF
2,406,751 7T) ©

REBENEEERE R E IR

AEBHEZENRAZRRE - BBEH—RE
EFHIR6EAZE3IF - MEMRFIZERER - 2
ZEZ TR KGNS - REBEARANEE
BEZ ERERI - BEBHETHEINERZLH -
HEBETSRIEERIER -

(iii)

The total cash outflow for leases for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was USD2,251,116
(2019: USD2,406,751).

The Group's leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices and warehouses.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 6 months to 3 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
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17 HttEEEE 17 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B E A fE R &5t
Computer License use
software rights Total
ES £ T
usD usD usDp
R=-Z2—N\E+=-A=+—H At31December 2018
%N Cost 3,684,820 4,644,000 8,328,820
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (3,249,701) (25,800) (3,275,501)
REFE Net book amount 435,119 4,618,200 5,053,319
BEZZ—h&F Year ended 31 December 2019
TZA=t+—HLEE
FYREFE Opening net book amount 435,119 4,618,200 5,053,319
NE Additions 199,940 = 199,940
#aE (fEE7) Amortisation (Note 7) (153,439) (309,600) (463,039)
RIEHEMB AR (Ki5E33(f) Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (88,743) (4,308,600) (4,397,343)
(Note 33(f))
EikiRE xR Currency translation differences 3,417 = 3,417
FEREEFE Closing net book amount 396,294 = 396,294
MR-ZZ—-NFE+=-A=+—H At31December 2019
R Cost 3,871,598 = 3,871,598
REtiTE Accumulated depreciation (3,475,304) = (3,475,304)
REFE Net book amount 396,294 = 396,294
BE_ZT_FF Year ended 31 December 2020
+-A=+—HLEE
FREFEE Opening net book amount 396,294 - 396,294
AE (MIFE) Additions (Note) 1,953,003 30,914,645 32,867,648
HE Disposals (35,060) - (35,060)
B (ME7) Amortisation (Note 7) (270,635) (337,017) (607,652)
ERRE R Currency translation differences 37,872 10,043 47,915
FRREFE Closing net book amount 2,081,474 30,587,671 32,669,145
R-ZZE-ZFF+=-HA=+—H At31December 2020
BN Cost 4,664,159 30,927,416 35,591,575
ZEE Accumulated depreciation (2,582,685) (339,745) (2,922,430)

REFE Net book amount 2,081,474 30,587,671 32,669,145
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17

18

HtEEEE (&)

ETATHERAK ] - [HEM | THEE RS HA ] R
[—RRRATBR S | OB AT LA T

17

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Amortisation included “cost of sales”, “research and
development expenses”, “selling and distribution
expenses” and “general and administrative expenses”
are analysed as follows:

BE+-HA=+—-HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—ECEF —E-NEF

2020 2019

*T E 7

UsD UsD

HEFES Research and development expenses 585,322 422,043

HERDHEAX Selling and distribution expenses - 1,501

— R R AT S General and administrative expenses 22,330 39,495

607,652 463,039

B eE - Note:

BRREZE T _EF+ A=+ —HLFERSHTAIEAE Except for the license use rights of USD30,914,645 acquired during

30,914,645% T4 - ABEMBAE TEETEMME - RALZER
XEEWE AR RBEEEFRMARNOFS - BERREEL
WA &M FE2.7(PRE D B B AR -

BE_T_THE+-_A=+-RALFENTECEREKERR
RITE %i%m&ﬂ@éﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁs‘zﬁﬂ%@dm(Mﬁzse(b»m/\ﬁfﬁ%
200,000,0007T (#8%7429,804,33057T) °

the year ended 31 December 2020, research and development
expenses are not generally capitalised as they are primary considered
as expenditures to upgrade existing technical knowhow, and do not
fulfil the strict capitalisation criteria as listed out in Note 2.7(c).

The addition during the year ended 31 December 2020 included an
amount of RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to USD29,804,330) paid to
Giga (Note 36(b)) for a license use right for the IC solutions business.

7E 18 INVENTORIES
Rt+—B=+=H
As at 31 December

—ECEFE —E-NEF

2020 2019

ES Eiw

UsD Usb

RS Raw materials 4,976,320 10,400,701
e S ) Work in progress 1,356,855 2,257,324
BURY SR Finished goods 2,750,099 4,452,196
9,083,274 17,110,221
B FERERE Less: Provision for impairment of inventories (3,850,438) (3,584,848)
5,232,836 13,525,373

( E_T-TE+ A=+ —HIFE  BRRARX
WA ASEER AN TFEXAA20,293,277F T (=
—JL5 : 19,003,7673E7T) °

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to USD20,293,277
(2019: USD19,003,767) for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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19 RERESNERMTA 19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
®+=B=+-—H
As at 31 December
—ECERF —E—NF
2020 2019
ES T
UsD UusD
RBAREHERARNEE Assets as per consolidated statement of
financial position
L SER AT RS MEE Financial assets at amortised cost
— E 5 WA — Trade receivables 4,759,020 7,304,130
— EE R HEMEREIE — Notes and other receivables 24,447,200 3,278,461
—BTHERNRNER — Loan to an associate = 5,035,836
— ZREIRITFER — Restricted bank deposit = 519,266
—BERBSEEY — Cash and cash equivalents 46,482,190 70,902,673
EE S e T S .. T 75688410 87,040,366
BEBHIEAFEARMNSREE Financal assets at fair value through profit or loss
— BEREREATEARDY — Financial assets at fair value through
,,,,,,, eReEE . poftorles ... 11679240 14,596,569
87,367,650 101,636,935
KEAREMBERRARNAE Liabilities as per consolidated statement of
financial position
REHEKAT RN SREE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
— B S ENFIARENEE — Trade and bills payables 2,671,291 9,220,640
— Rt E R RHAEFRIE — Accruals and other payables 2,919,472 4,714,754
— RITIE — Bank borrowings 38,149,582 -
—HEaE — Lease liabilities 701,576 1,107,496

44,441,921 15,042,890
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20 EZRHMERFE  SRNEERERM 20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
FRIE CONTRACT ASSETS AND PREPAYMENTS
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-EF ZE-NF
2020 2019
BiaE E EY
Note UsD UsD
E=HEFERFAE Trade receivables from third parties (a) 6,105,631 6,357,934
BEsE T 2 5 MR Trade receivable from a related party
(Fit3E36(e) (Note 36(e)) @ - S50
Bt A RE S EWGRIE Trade receivables from associates
(B=E36(e)) (Note 36(e)) (@) 699,181 2,541,942
BREE Contract assets (@) 322,940 -
B BBEBFIEREKEE  Less: Provision for impairment of trade
B E receivables and contract assets (2,048,048) (1,954,107)
BIRWHIEREHNEE Trade receivables and contract
—¥®  assets—net 5,079,704 7,304,130
BYE=ATENREAE Prepayments to third parties (b) 8,588,029 4,708,149
-Gl /NCI LN B ] Prepayment to an associate
(MsE36(1) (Note 36(f)) (b) 1,977,043 =
AN Notes receivable (b) 62,953 135,994
FE=F ke KEMEWFIE Deposits and other receivables from
third parties (b) 23,769,492 2,035,368
B e M H A FEUGRIA Deposit and other receivables from
(FfF5E36() related parties (Note 36(f)) (b) 614,754 522,747
B N A H M FEUEIR Other receivables from associates
(Mf3E36(f) (Note 36(f)) (b) - 584,352
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 35,012,271 7,986,610
S - JEBNEAEE S Less: Non-current portion (1,493,975) (1,174,419)

38,598,000 14,116,321
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B 5 R H MBI

FRIE (8)

- BRNEERAMN

(R
(@) BIERBFERANEE

RIZBEZZEE+-A=+—H ERBEZEBHNEFEUK

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

CONTRACT ASSETS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Note:
(a) Trade receivables and contract assets

As at 31 December 2020, the ageing analysis of the trade

HERERDTAT - receivables based on invoice date is as follows:
R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December

ZB-BF —ZE-NEF
2020 2019
T E
uUsD Usb
30 KA Within 30 days 2,354,729 3,449,092
31260K 31 to 60 days 1,369,524 1,987,818
61Z290K 61 to 90 days 85,791 373,062
91E180K 91 to 180 days 781,216 702,199
181E365K 181 to 365 days 87,788 1,033,196
HiB365K Over 365 days 2,125,764 1,712,870
6,804,812 9,258,237

AEEBHREFARANEERERFHOEBIT

Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment of the
trade receivables and contract assets are as follows:

R+=B=+-—H
As at 31 December

—EoEF —E-NF

2020 2019

ES S

UsbD usbD

®—A—8 As at 1 January 1,954,107 1,981,441
B BHE Provision for impairment 86,391 19,971
BHmE = Currency translation differences 7,550 (47,305)
R+=-—A=+—H As at 31 December 2,048,048 1,954,107

RAZEERRBOAEZEREFEREOEENREE -
REBY ERZEERTAEMBERRKEMERENREA
B -

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and contract assets. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these

balances.
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20 BEFREMENRNIE SRNEERAEAN 20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
FRIE () CONTRACT ASSETS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
st - (88) Note: (Continued)
@) B 5 REEIE R A LA E (8) (a) Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
FEBMESERRERA N EENERERE AT EME - The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
WATHNEMEETE - and contract assets approximate their fair values and are

denominated in the following currencies:

R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—B-EF —Z-hEF
2020 2019
ET E
uUsD UsbD
AREE RMB 2,221,282 4,498,689
E usb 2,574,770 2,515,834
Hith Others 283,652 289,607
5,079,704 7,304,130
(b) FENFE - ERERE KR ERGRIE (b) Prepayments, notes receivable and other receivables
AEBBEAFKIE - BRERREEIGRENEREEELR The carrying amounts of the Group's prepayments, notes
FERE - WEZATHESHE : receivable and other receivables approximate their fair values

and are mainly denominated in the following currencies:

R+=A=+—~
As at 31 December

—ECEF —Z-hEF

2020 2019

ES e

Usb usD

AR RMB 31,403,590 5,460,410
eI usb 3,338,552 2,063,130
Hit Others 270,129 463,070

35,012,271 7,986,610
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20 EFREMEWRTRIE SHEERTEN 20

FRIE (8)

BiRE : (A8

()  FEFFUE - EARE KAt EUGRIE ()

RZT-ZTF+-_A=+—8 " BFFE=FBARESE
BERERERRRT REBNTENREKAT,711,461F T
(Z2—NF &) MBE=FHEMERZEFERERREHE
15 B B BRI BRI BT AR 122,039,300t (FASH
18,703,628%7T) (ZT—NF « &) HIFIE »

HAREWFIRF W BBEE E - AEE L ER A E TR

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
CONTRACT ASSETS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b) Prepayments, notes receivable and other receivables
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, prepayments to third parties
include prepaid service costs in relation to the IC solutions
business of USD7,711,461 (2019: Nil) while other receivables
from third parties include receivable from Shenzhen
Municipal Government of RMB122,039,300 (equivalent to
USD18,703,628) (2019: Nil) in relation to the national science

and technology project.

Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The Group

VERYEIR - does not hold any collateral as security.
21 ERBHRERAFEARNEREE 21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
A+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December

—ECEF —E-NF

2020 2019

En Ew

UsD UsD

FEEMES (MiFE@)) Unlisted fund (Note (a)) 689,748 814,534
HEETRAF S Unlisted equity securities

(HHEED) ~ (0~ (d) * (e) ~ (FR(g)) (Note (b), (0), (d), (e), () and (g)) 10,989,492 13,782,035

11,679,240 14,596,569
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21 EEERBAFEARNEREE (&)

BEE

RIEEMEESIIRE

RZZE—+EFMANRBE  XEBEBRE15000RERE
B2RAEBRRMN —RIELMES (HRHASESEM)
%% 1,500,000 T - AFEEAFESKEIRA (KT

33)  BE-ZT-_TF+-_A=1+—HLLFE AFEEE
124,786 7T (Z T — N4 : 623,065570) REGA W RA
TR o

REILRHE CRYD BRATE ([ ]) WRE

R FUREN I EMBRARESFERIL (—RRPEE
ﬂﬁﬁkiﬁ’\]AﬁT CEBRETENRFEE —UABRERFE)
M8.89% I tE - MBI REER B EZ ARAFA LT - Al
ZREARARE SO BN EZF8%MF BUARE
CHBREER - R-_ZF_FTF+_H=1t—H EAFEE
MEIFARTE(ME33) KT (ZE-NF+_A=1—
BH:F)-

RFRIEF SR RERARQR (DRINET ) igE

RZZE-N\FZAKBENIE ETRABHENRINGFE
#93. 4%%5 CRARIRNPBIEMKY - EEEEFREHE
FiBA  HBETREBEBITENRFIECR - ZIRE
EARAZEMEB AR SMITRYIERYIEF TR IR E
BYRFENEAEEEGT  TRAEEINHREAR
20 E BT (B #%93,166,000%7T) I EBF10% M F

BRARECWEE FIAER - R—E-_TF+_A=+—
B EAFESEREIB/ARATE(RHE33) AT (ZS—
HhE+=-A=+—8 :2,866,890%) - HE_T_TF+

ZH=t+—HILFE - A F{EFE2,893,833%T (=T~
F ) RNIRE MR NHER

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note:

(a)

Investment in an unlisted fund

On 6 April 2017, the Group made an investment of
USD1,500,000 in an unlisted fund by way of a subscription
for 15,000 non-voting participating redeemable shares, which
are registered in the Cayman Islands. The fair value is within
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). During year ended
31 December 2020, a fair value loss of USD124,786 (2019:
USD623,065) is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Investment in Mainsweb Technology (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (“Mainsweb")

The unlisted equity security acquired in 2017 represents 8.89%
interest in Mainsweb, a company incorporated in the PRC
being principally engaged in the operation of a one-stop cross-
border e-commerce platform in the PRC. The investment is
redeemable at the consideration paid by the Group plus an
interest income of 8% per annum less dividends received if
Mainsweb is unable to be listed within 5 years from the date
of investment. As at 31 December 2020, the fair value within
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3) is nil (31 December
2019: Nil).

Investment in StorArt Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd
(“StorArt")

The unlisted equity security acquired in February 2018
represents approximately 3.4% interest in StorArt, a
company incorporated in the PRC being principally engaged
in development of flash memory main controller integrated
circuits which are mainly supplied to the communications,
consumer electronics and data processing industries. The
investment is redeemable in the event of any of the prescribed
conditions set out in the investment agreement signed
between SMIT Shenzhen, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and StorArt at the consideration of RMB20 million
(equivalent to approximately USD3,166,000) paid by the Group
plus an interest income of 10% per annum less dividends
received. As at 31 December 2020, the fair value within level
3 of the fair value hierarchy (see Note 3.3) is nil (31 December
2019: USD2,866,890). During year ended 31 December 2020,
a fair value loss of USD2,893,833 (2019: Nil) is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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21 EEERBAFEARNEMEE (&)

BEE

(#%)

FAIBOXPAY International Inc. ([ &F 1) B9 &

RZZE-NFNA=+—H  AREIA#EK(E1,800,0005
TOREBETE=R) WERFEHSEMEZNARISMIT
Investment Limited ([ SMIT Investment ) Bk ETE R « 15
SMIT Investment#910.11%#%5 < SMIT Investment & — &%
BERAR  BREEPEAMBARRESTXNL8.37% K
REMIRE - &F XNRALNBE N RBIRHER RAKE
BREEP - ARANTES - ARATERERRREER
et ([E A ]) IMEESMIT Investment M E = o

R=ZF—NE/NA+LEH  SMIT Investment 2 BB 5 Ik R
FISMIT InvestmentP#F & F 2 (B LR mE A TR E
BEEER - REETRE - AARFMFETFARESR
1% B I EIFAHSMIT Investment(EAIfG1E - R=_ZT-ZTF+
—A=+—H  A¥ME2,063,938E T (=ZE—NEFE+=A
=+—H :2,063,938%7T) EAFESEREIFA (RHKE
33) BEZZ-_ZF+A=T+—BILFE  ATELE
B8 (ZT—NF : ATEEE3,536,0623%7T) °

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(d)

Investment in IBOXPAY International Inc. (“iBoxpay”)

On 31 August 2018, the Company has acquired unlisted
preference shares of SMIT Investment Limited (“SMIT
Investment”), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
at a total consideration of USD1,800,000 from certain third
parties, representing approximately 10.11% interest in
SMIT Investment. SMIT Investment is an investment holding
company which holds, through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
an investment in approximately 8.37% equity interest
of iBoxpay. iBoxpay is leading mobile payment services
provider and an existing customer of the Group. Mr. Huang
Xueliang (“Mr. Huang"), the executive director, the CEO and
controlling shareholder of the Company is also the director of
SMIT Investment.

On 17 June 2019, SMIT Investment has completed a
repurchase of its preference shares from certain of its
shareholders by way of distribution of the preference
shares of iBoxpay originally held by SMIT Investment. Upon
completion of this repurchase, the Company held less than
1% equity interest of iBoxpay and did not hold any equity
interest of SMIT Investment. As at 31 December 2020, the fair
value of USD2,063,938 (31 December 2019: USD2,063,938)
was within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see Note 3.3).
There was no change in fair value during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: fair value loss of USD3,536,062).
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21 EEERBAFEARNEREE (&)

BEE

€D
#Sensel, Inc. ([ Sensel ])#)#% &

RZZT—/N\FEZANR ' ARAAZENB LA REMEERE
H#aSensel ZEHETHN—H(EBEBEGZ) ((BEBE
WaE)]) - TR T ¥ Sensel#92,000,000E ST &  Sensel &
—RUEEREMOBLBERMOA] - BEEIEER
5 ZRMWRBOEAR - BE T ENELIERE RN
P - R FTHE - BMEBERB(ERBEHZE)N
153X RRE T 2,000,000 3% 7T AT EEHARK Sensel & B AR & SE A% )
AIAH R

RZZT—N\E+—ANA  ANEBRERZEERE ([FE
A&t ]) - BB E Sensel EAR ([REBE D E—#=
F%5,000,000% TR E o [ERT - FSensel TN —F—

F= AHBEKEEREMN2,000,0003 7T A AR F G ZHER

MR SREB B e R AR R R Sensel B AL - MRIEEAR
BE  BREBMXNOARERFREER TH2HFIRAER

1+ FSensel LIRERBLERR - REBETTHKE - BMESIES
E#EEE R G Sensel #79.22 % 1S ©

RZZTZZTHF_RA+—B  ENEARBRERERT B
B E Sensel (B i - #E— TR 741,497 ETTHIRE ©
BREEETHE  EHESREEEETEEEF Senseld)
9.1% %5 ©

R-Z-FE+-_A=+—H  A¥{#E8,159,259% (=

T-NE+-A=+—8 :7,417,762% ) ERAFEEH
FEIMA(RWE33) - BEZZ_TF+=-_A=+—HIF
B - iRARERAERN A FELEES) -

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(e)

Investment in Sensel, Inc. (“Sensel”)

On 8 February 2018, SMIT HK, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, completed a USD2,000,000 investment
in Sensel pursuant to a note purchase agreement entered
into between, among others, SMIT HK and Sensel (the
“Note Purchase Agreement”). Sensel is an advanced sensory
technology company based in the United States, which owns
the pressure grid technology that combines industry-leading
performance and the extra dimension of control in the form
of force sensitivity. Upon completion of the transaction, SMIT
HK subscribed for a USD2,000,000 promissory note which
may be converted into common or preferred shares of Sensel
pursuant to the terms of the Note Purchase Agreement.

On 9 November 2018, SMIT HK completed a further
USD5,000,000 investment in Sensel by way of preferred
stock purchase (the “Stock Purchase”) pursuant to a stock
purchase agreement (the “Stock Purchase Agreement”).
Simultaneously, the USD2,000,000 convertible promissory
note issued by Sensel and previously subscribed by SMIT HK
in February 2018 was deemed converted into preferred shares
in Sensel at completion of the Stock Purchase, and the entire
amount owed to SMIT HK under such convertible promissory
note was tendered to Sensel in exchange for preferred stock
pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement. Upon completion
of the Stock Purchase, SMIT HK held approximately 9.22%
interest in Sensel on fully diluted basis.

On 11 February 2020, SMIT HK completed a further
USD741,497 investment in Sensel by way of preferred
stock purchase pursuant to a stock purchase agreement.
Upon completion of the Stock Purchase, SMIT HK held
approximately 9.1% interest in Sensel on fully diluted basis.

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of USD8,159,259 (31
December 2019: USD7,417,762) was within level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy (see Note 3.3). During the year ended 31
December 2020, there was no change in fair value recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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21 EEERBAFEARNEMEE (&)

BEE

(#%)

RIBGINEIRE

RZZFE—AFREA=Z+—8  SMITFRIIUNBREARE
10,000,0007T (F854 1,466,964 7T) M5 = H K EE A E
FERAC S KA BB AR ED0.99% RRAE o Bk 4 K L MY
NE)EBERFIRHEEDAKIRARRE -

RZZZZF—A=+—8 ' SMITRIFT L EE W « &
it - SMITRIIE BRSNS HEE ARE90,000,0007T
(%M 12,997,328%7T) - RZZ=TF—A=+—H=K
R 5%  SMITRYIF BTN AR EER 0.99% 32 £ 9.09%
MSMITEZERSHMMEEES 2 — « Bt - SMTAEINBE=
TE—A=+—BREBTHMEEATEN B
WA K AR LR E DR (FE10) ©

=

=

RETRMEERAR ([E1742)) MRE

RZZ_ZTF+—A+NA  SMITRIINARBEARE
5,000,001 T (% 1752,8313 7T ) YEE R P BIAEM A /Y
NERITAL R 10% MR HE - BITLR EERFRETH BER
f% °

RZZ=ZZF+=-A=+—8 " 2F#766,295ETERA
FESHEILRA(RME33) BE-_Z-TF+=-A=1
—HILFE - RERERAERNAFELEZE -

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

V)

Investment in Giga

On 21 May 2019, SMIT Shenzhen has acquired 0.99%
equity interest of Giga, a company incorporated in the PRC,
at a total consideration of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
USD1,466,964) from a third party. Giga and its subsidiaries
are mainly engaged in the provision of EDA back-end

solutions.

On 31 January 2020, SMIT Shenzhen entered into a capital
injection agreement which agreed to contribute a total of
RMB90,000,000 (equivalent to USD12,997,328) into Giga.
Upon the completion of the transaction on 31 January 2020,
SMIT Shenzhen'’s equity interest in Giga increased from 0.99%
10 9.09% and SMIT has appointed one out of five directors of
Giga. Consequently, SMIT Shenzhen had significant influence
over Giga from 31 January 2020 whereby Giga became an
associate of the Group (Note 10).

Investment in Xinxingji Technology Co., Ltd (“Xinxingji”)

On 19 November 2020, SMIT Shenzhen acquired 10% equity
interest of Xinxingji, a company incorporated in the PRC,
at a total consideration of RMB5,000,001 (equivalent to
USD752,831). Xinxingji are mainly engaged in the provision
of IC design services.

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of USD766,295
was within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see Note 3.3).
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no
change in fair value recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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22

23

ZREIRITER

R-T-TE+-A=+—0  EESRHBTER
—BNF 519,266 5) RS ERITES A E
AREBRITRANIERG -

R-F—h&+= A=+— BNFRHRTERAERE
FIE13%HMIAE - R=E—h&F+=A=+—AH
FRHIBTEROE AR ATEEE - LUARE
5 -

22 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT

As at 31 December 2020, no restricted bank deposit
(2019: USD519,266) was held in designated bank
accounts as collateral for banking facilities of the Group.

Restricted bank deposit as at 31 December 2019 earned
interests at fixed rate of 1.3%. The carrying amount
of restricted bank deposit as at 31 December 2019
approximates its fair value and is denominated in RMB.

HeRBEEEEY 23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-EF —T—NEF
2020 2019
ES Ew
UsD Usb
RITIRE Cash at banks 46,444,588 70,863,724
FERE Cash on hand 37,602 38,949
46,482,190 70,902,673

£6 RS SENOERERRATFERE - LUTH
EREHE

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December

—ECEF —E-NF

2020 2019

=TT e

uUsD usD

= usD 13,244,720 40,230,894
AR RMB 26,531,890 27,235,434
BT HK$ 4,979,155 1,439,724
BT EUR 1,692,088 1,894,696
Efth Others 34,337 101,925

46,482,190 70,902,673
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RERBAESEEY @)

PEAFHARBETHEAALBRAEME - Kifn - iR
B (R B AR LTI INE B IR IRG]) & (AEFE - EFE R AT
EERMRT)  AEEMEBEREEREHAREIINESE
BEOERIT BAREHBAEME « BHARZERE
MRS KIS S EYHERTE A26,464,370% T (=&
— U5 1 27,162,520 7T) ©

R_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—8 KEEAEE32,167,949
ET(ZZT—N% :57,631,503%7T) IR RIS HE
WRE (ZZT— 4 519,266%7T) (KtsF22) R
B RERETRRENRITRE - MEBESNHHE
ZEINEE I o

ESEFrIS B

EIEFSHREERABAINWAT ¢

23

24

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)

RMB maintained in the PRC is not freely convertible into
other currencies. However, under the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through authorised banks
to conduct foreign exchange business in the PRC.
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents to
which these restrictions apply is USD26,464,370 (2019:
UsD27,162,520).

As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposit of the Group amounting to
UsD32,167,949 (2019: USD57,631,503) and nil (2019:
USD519,266) (Note 22) were deposited with banks in
the PRC where the remittance of funds is subject to
foreign exchange control.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities
is as follows:

R+=—HA=+—8
As at 31 December
—ECEH —E-NF
2020 2019
ES Eiw
UsD usb
REFTEREE Deferred income tax assets:
—#R12E A RNER — to be realised within 12 months 784,869 764,325
— BRI 218 BB EIR — to be realised after more than 12 months 4,270,628 2,453,908
5,055,497 3,218,233
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24 EFEFRBH (#) 24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
BEFBHREMES)FEMT - The net movement on the deferred income tax account
is as follows:
R+=H=+—~H
As at 31 December
g 33 —E-NEF
2020 2019
ETT E
UsD Usb
K—H—H At 1 January 3,218,233 2,077,959
ARG B (FE12) Credited to consolidated profit or loss (Note 12) 1,532,387 933,358
BIEHEKB AR (MEE33(f) Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33(f)) = 255,704
BEMHmE =T Currency translation differences 304,877 (48,788)
w+=—A=+—8 At 31 December 5,055,497 3,218,233
RIERIBEERBENE S CREBEHE —BBH X Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities without
FER AR EEER) AT - taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows:

BEFSTHEE : Deferred income tax assets:
nEHE
nE BE HEEE Hith =)
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Provisions Tax losses Other Total
£y £y ES £y E
Usb UsD Usb UsD Usb
R=ZZF-NE—R—H At 1 January 2019 5,945 1,067,711 1,639,751 74,558 2,787,965
RIEHEMBAR Deemed disposal of subsidiaries = (134,074) (256,512) = (390,586)
(k8)/FAGEER (Charged)/credited to consolidated
profit or loss 2,812) 215,790 710,812 (54,362) 869,428
BRBEEE Currency translation differences (48) (13,247) (34,791) (488) (48,574)
RZZE—NF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2019 3,085 1,136,180 2,059,260 19,708 3,218,233
R-E-ZF-A—H At 1 January 2020 3,085 1,136,180 2,059,260 19,708 3,218,233
AR E) AR Credited/(charged) to
consolidated profit or loss 5,127 425,492 1,121,661 (19,893) 1,532,387
ERHEER Currency translation differences 19 103,782 200,891 185 304,877
RZZ-FFE+-HA=+—-H  At31December 2020 8,231 1,665,454 3,381,812 = 5,055,497
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24 EIEFTEH (@)

RIEFTS A E DB EE T IBBERER - ML 8
BARERHZFNEEEAEEIRR - NEBEWEH
4,308,926 T (ZZF—NF : 2,709,57537T) Ry E518HE
RIRIEFT1STH B 7E860,891% T (ZZE— L4 : 549,381
FEIT) o RERFHIERE2,260,371%T (ZT— N F
1,221,213% ) WEER B S - Mg THEBEENE
E-T_AF(ZE—NEF: ZZEN\F)(BFEER)
B9~ B g m e

R-BE-TF+-_A=+—8 AEEFENBEAR]H
KEZE A FEIEINEMAR S IZR A RIRREB AR (AR
RIEILATS R B EBEL1,061,0005 7T (ZT—h4F
1,248,000 7T) ¥4 AR% 136,190,000 T (FHE R4
21,211,000 7m) (ZZE—14F : AR¥155,482,0007T
(FEE R %24,964,000%7T) ) - TEARZZ A F 15 A+ E
MEARRBIERILER:  BRBEEEEHEINES
FRAER - TERIURARARBEHEZINERES -

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of USD860,891 (2019: USD549,381) in respect of losses
amounting to USD4,308,926 (2019: USD2,709,575).
Unrecognised tax losses of USD2,260,371 (2019:
UsD1,221,213) have no expiry date and the remaining
tax losses will expire at various dates up to and including
2029 (2019: 2028).

As at 31 December 2020, the retained earnings of the
Group's PRC subsidiary not yet remitted to holding
companies incorporated outside of the PRC, for
which deferred income tax liability of approximately
UsSD1,061,000 (2019: USD1,248,000) had not been
provided, were approximately RMB136,190,000
(equivalent to approximately USD21,211,000) (2019:
RMB155,482,000 (equivalent to approximately
USD24,964,000)). Such earnings are expected to be
retained by the PRC subsidiary for reinvestment purposes
and would not be remitted to a foreign investor in the
foreseeable future based on management’s estimation of
overseas funding requirements.

RIS AR Deferred income tax liabilities:
HERERTE WBERKEE Hity a5
Decelerated Acquired
tax intangible
depreciation assets Other Total
E ET ET ET
Usb UsD UsD uUsD
RZE-hFE—H—H At 1 January 2019 3,685 692,730 13,591 710,006
W B AR Disposal of subsidiaries - (646,290) = (646,290)
FTAGRAER Credited to consolidated
profit or loss (3,685) (46,440) (13,805) (63,930)
ERnEEE Currency translation differences = = 214 214

RZEB-NER=-ZF-FF At 31 December 2019 and 2020
Tz =Tr=E - - - -
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25 HE 25 GOODWILL
TR R
"\ REEE Y
(BEE (i) (BFEE(ii)) a5t
Rapid
verification
systems and
CAM software
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) Total
ES ET ET
uUsb UsD uUsD
RZZE—NF—A—H At 1 January 2019 6,255,130 15,896,824 22,151,954

RIEHEMBRE (FHEE33(f) Deemed disposal of subsidiaries

(Note 33(f))

= (15,896,824)  (15,896,824)

BEHmEEE Currency translation differences (101,321) - (101,321)
RZZF-hHE+ZA=1+—HK At31December 2019 and

—F=FF—A-H 1 January 2020 6,153,809 - 6,153,809
BmEEE Currency translation differences 425,634 - 425,634
R-ZB-_ZTF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2020 6,579,443 - 6,579,443

BiRE -

AR#42,930,000 T BREUARTANR _TTRFMA
WEESMITRYIFE U & a0 - WA ERATEAEY - 5
BSRBBESMITRIIFTEEE BN BHRREENRZERH - 1©
—E-TE+-A=+—R AEBMEEEEURERES
WReEESMN ([REeEEBM ) EITRN RET T ESE
A °

Note:

Goodwill of RMB42,930,000 arose from the application of
acquisition accounting to the acquisition of SMIT Shenzhen
by the Company in April 2005 and has indefinite useful
lives. The goodwill amount relates to the value of expected
future economic benefits of the business operated by SMIT
Shenzhen. As at 31 December 2020, management of the
Group had conducted a review of the cash-generating unit
("CGU") of CAM business and determined that there is no

impairment of the goodwill.
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25 BHE @)

BifeE - ()

0]

(i)

()

ReEt EUMARESEDREERBEMBEXEE - &
SEERAEEEEMANREDFRRENMBERENTA
REMERRK20% (ZF—1F : 20%) WEERE - 5A
MBRR R ABAI R R R MR ERREG A AN AERR -
BE_Z_TFT A=+ -HLFE  KANKSEIERE
BERRR (AAFEAMNESFEBRREE) B0% (ZF—
NF 2 0%) - AFHHNRHASRETIEMA0% (ZF—N
F 1 0%) MIERIEITIER - ZHIRMIEE B KA
TEHPHREK - WEMBARANERDRIEBERRRE
BRSNS ERNIBEEITEE -

HEE-Z-2F+ - A=+—HILFEMNBERE LF50(E
EHE - RSB DAEBEREE - WERE_T_FTF+
ZAZt - RLEEFEMNTRARSEAFREEXSF TR 1E
B AR mE RN EREE -

15,896,824 T B R BB ARLZ (BB) AR AR (AR
A AR R=ZF—NF+—ARES2C - WHEEERT]
RS - RE SR S2CATAT & S5 M TR H AR SRS B R 25
B -

R-Z-AE+ZA=+—8  A5EHEREHBRRE
RS EEERIELE - EPAENIRRRE R AR5
REEEEMMEE - Bt - TH#R15,896,824E A
£ AEMREREHNRETTE 2R (KTE33() °

25 GOODWILL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

0]

(ii)

(Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and a discount rate
of 20% (2019: 20%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks related to the relevant operation. The
revenue growth CAGR (i.e. compound annual growth rate
over the five-year projection period) used is 0% (2019: 0%)
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 0%
(2019: 0%). The volume of sales in each period is the main
driver for revenue and costs. The growth in revenue and the
relevant costs are estimated based on past performance and
management's expectations for the market development.

If the discount rate for the year ended 31 December 2020
had been increased by 50 basis points, the recoverable
amount would still exceed its carrying amount. If the
forecasted revenue growth CAGR for the year ended 31
December 2020 had been lowered by one percentage point,
the recoverable amounts would still exceed its carrying

amount.

Goodwill of USD15,896,824 arose from the acquisition
of S2C by SMIT Systemic (HK) Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, in November 2018 and has indefinite useful lives.
The goodwill amount relates to the value of expected future
economic benefits of the business operated by S2C.

On 31 December 2019, there was a deemed disposal of S2C
Shanghai, an indirectly held subsidiary of the Group, to which
the goodwill in relation to rapid verification systems and
software business CGU was attributed. As a result, goodwill
of USD15,896,824 was derecognised and included in the
calculation of gain on deemed disposal (Note 33(f)).
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26

IR R BR 178 26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
ZiEREE ZBEREE B0 E
No of Normal value
ordinary of ordinary Share
shares shares premium
E 7T
UsD usD
JETE ¢ Authorised:
%*ﬁ—ﬂi—ﬂ —A8 - Ordinary share of USD0.00002 each
—NEFRZZTF at 1 January 2019, 31 December
+_H:+—E| 2019 and 2020
FRXEE0.00002 F T HY L EAX 2,500,000,000 50,000 =
?"ﬁ&%@&i : Issued and fully paid:

—ET-hF—AF—H At 1 January 2019 316,293,725 6,326 100,982,947
T‘Iﬁﬁﬁﬂx% (Mf7Ea) Exercise of share options (Note a) 1,924,136 38 928,234
RZT—NFRARN Dividends relating to 2018 paid in

—\FHBARES June 2019 = = (405,414)
R=ZF-AF+=A=+-—H At 31 December 2019 318,217,861 6,364 101,505,767
’_ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂg (K¥zEa) Exercise of share options (Note a) 1,273,000 26 544,923
RZZBZZFXAIKM Dividends relating to 2019 paid in

—E-hEFHEERE June 2020 - - (408,159)
R=Z2-EF+=-HA=+—H As 31 December 2020 319,490,861 6,390 101,642,531
BisE - Note:

(a)

TR AR

REBEE-T-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE 1,273,000
Bt (ZT—ALF + 1,924,13610 BEARHE) 1T A RBAR
7]1,273,000/% (ZZT—N4F : 1,924,136/%) @k - RER
189,639 L (=T —h4F : 78,4453 L) » HAp263TT (=
T—NEF 38K TT) st ARA - M&E#2189,613F L (=F
—NEF : 78,4073 L) st AR & ERR Bt - 355,310%
T (ZZ—NF : 849,827%7T) B B ARGD REREA K
BEBRERNEER R-T-_TF+=-A=+—8"
22,973,388 (ZZT— L4 : 37,782,554) (D FEARAE( M AR AT
(KF3E32.1) ©

l:l/\

(a)

Exercise of share options

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 1,273,000 options
(2019: 1,924,136 options) were exercised to subscribe for
1,273,000 ordinary shares (2019: 1,924,136 shares) in
the Company at a consideration of USD189,639 (2019:
USD78,445) of which USD26 (2019: USD38) was credited
to share capital and the balance of USD189,613 (2019:
USD78,407) was credited to the share premium account. An
amount of USD355,310 (2019: USD849,827) was therefore,
as a result, transferred from the share-based payment reserve
to the share premium account. As at 31 December 2020,
there were in total 22,973,388 options (2019: 37,782,554)

remained outstanding (Note 32.1).
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BE R

WRIB A SR B T AR B A T8 2 =] ([ A0 BB a8
AR EEERANNRTE - PENBERREF
ARBEEEVMBRRATEE AEEEBIRY
BENEN10%BIEETERGRE (RIFZARE
EEZEREMRAN50%) o R EITEARIRA]
REBRRERENBEAEERARER  EALK
RASBERBRAE - BREFHRINVE O
ZERFBISAEEMRS  BEBREREBRT
RBERNBERRE =R AES - TAEERR
PRETFUDIK

EXTEBHFETITUARBTEMNBARBASF
EREREEN - NFEES ARLRREE
BEATFRHBREEALAERMES - P EK
BARKETEAGEE  TERBRHEHERRG
BrEATENEARBRAE  HAELSKRERS
BERERIE  WEFTAHMESHETE AT
EERBRENFREHTE LR MRS
25%) °

27 RESERVES

(a)

Statutory reserve

According to the provisions of the articles of
association of the Group's subsidiaries located in
the PRC (“PRC subsidiaries”), the PRC subsidiaries
shall first set aside 10% of the entity's profit
attributable to owners after tax as indicated
in their statutory financial statements for the
statutory surplus reserve (except where the reserve
has reached 50% of the entity’s registered share
capital) in each year. The PRC subsidiaries may also
make appropriations from its profit attributable
to shareholders to discretionary surplus reserve,
provided it is approved by a resolution passed in
a shareholders’ general meeting. These reserves
cannot be used for purposes other than those for
which they are created and are not distributable as
cash dividends without the prior approval obtained
from shareholders in a shareholders’ general
meeting under specific circumstances.

When the statutory surplus reserve is not
sufficient to make good for any losses of the PRC
subsidiaries from previous years, the current year
profit attributable to owners shall be used to make
good the losses before any allocations are set aside
for the statutory surplus reserve. The statutory
surplus reserve, the discretionary surplus reserve
and the share premium of the PRC subsidiaries
may be converted into share capital of the PRC
subsidiaries provided it is approved by a resolution
passed in a shareholders’ general meeting and
meets other regulatory requirements with the
provision that the ending balance of the statutory
surplus reserve does not fall below 25% of the
registered share capital.
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27 @#E@E

(b)

(@

LU n BER AV R # G

RZZEZNFZR  AEEHEN—BERMDE
B ([ZZ=EZN\FRMHEME]) KState Micro
Technology Corporation ([ SMIT Corporation |) (7
—E-hE+—A+=BxREHA([EA]) AT
REE QRN REERAR) [#%16,936,1350%
LR (EIFABAR) - IR EI3T - R
Z-TFNA  EF2((E=GHHEEBZ
TENFROFE - ST T BEREE N
16,523,0600% £33,459, 195 E@A - R —-F
——FZf  BESHAEBIT _ZTT\ERDE
2| - EHEITR L BARE B & — 253 n6,160,000
f% 239,619,195 % A% o

—E-RFENATHRA  EAREEMN—FH - K
A RBESMIT Corporation®) ZE T NFRRH 1S
RERAFEEABREE (BRARESER
IAEtEl L) - W Z SRR R E L B THERT -

AR AR AR RERNR HFBRIE32K
& o
NG

REHE B RNEAGFEERE WA BRROEIM

N

27 RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

(@]

Share-based payment reserve

In February 2008, the Group adopted a share plan
("2008 Share Plan”) and State Micro Technology
Corporation (“SMIT Corporation”), the ultimate
holding company of companies of the Group
before the completion of a reorganisation on
13 November 2015 (“Reorganisation”), reserved
16,936,135 ordinary shares, split adjusted, for
issuance under the plan. In September 2010, the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved an
amendment to the 2008 Share Plan to increase
the number of ordinary shares for issuance by
16,523,060 to 33,459,195 ordinary shares.
In February 2011, the Board approved an
amendment to the 2008 Share Plan to further
increase the number of ordinary shares for
issuance by 6,160,000 to 39,619,195 ordinary
shares.

On 15 September 2015, the Company assumed
the 2008 Share Plan of SMIT Corporation as the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Plan”) as part of the Reorganisation with certain
modifications of the terms of such options.

Details of the equity settled share-based
transactions are disclosed in Note 32.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve as at each reporting date

represented the additional contributions received
from the shareholders.
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27 @E@E

28

(d)

(e)

Bt

NEBH A HFERIERERMEAMNB QRN
ZIRME{E68,077,551 Xt EBEANKBARNA
HEREEEZFHEE -

B 7 i

BEEBINZEERESNELZRNEM2EK
R (AP EE2.5(c) i) Rt s A B SB  t
it o R EENHERBEFEREN N RER

Eo

BESRARERENR

27 RESERVES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the carrying amount of
investment in subsidiaries of USD68,077,551
acquired as a result of the Reorganisation and
the carrying amount of combined capital of the
acquired subsidiaries.

Exchange reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of the
foreign controlled entity are recognised in other
comprehensive income as described in Note 2.5(c)
and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity.
The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss
when the net investment is disposed of.

28 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

R+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
i ZE-NF
2020 2019
ET Z7T
UsbD usbD
ENE=HRESHIE Trade payables to third parties 2,671,291 6,757,116
fEER S N A E 5708 (5£36(e))  Trade payable to associates (Note 36(e)) = 732,639
FEREE Bills payables = 1,730,885
2,671,291 9,220,640
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28 BESEMNRERENSESE @) 28

RIBZBF+-RA=+—H REZEQHHEFHE
NFE M ENRIBERRRESTAT -

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the ageing analysis of the
trade and bills payables based on invoice date is as

follows:

Rt+t=—A=+-—8

As at 31 December
—E-EHF —E-NEF
2020 2019
=T T
UsD Usb
30 KAA Less than 30 days 2,178,924 8,295,499
31£90K 31 to 90 days 420,723 243,137
91£180K 91 to 180 days 543 -
181£365K 181 to 365 days 2,151 632,208
HBiE365K Over 365 days 68,950 49,796
2,671,291 9,220,640

AEEEZRNFIBERENREOREERRL X FER

& WATIIEKEE :

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and

bills payables approximate their fair values and are
denominated in the following currencies:

R+=—B=+—H

As at 31 December
= —t
2020 2019
ES e
Usb usp
AR RMB 1,875,490 8,413,259
EIT, usD 795,801 807,381
2,671,291 9,220,640




FF$RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
Bl AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

211

e MR R MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 EFERARHMENRERENEE 29 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES
®+=B=+-—H
As at 31 December
—EEH —E—hF

2020 2019

E ES

UsD UusD
fEEHE B @I Accrued employee benefits expenses 3,542,413 3,813,450
et EGERE Accrued royalty fee 971,014 1,065,079
H b e HIE Other taxes payables 183,636 115,136
HoA et BERE 5 510E (K5E36(f)  Other payable to a related party (Note 36(f)) 172,680 =
Hoith A~ B 2 N B F0E (M 5E36(f)) Other payables to associates (Note 36(f)) = 2,388,883
Hith Others 1,775,778 1,260,792
B RARAMBHARE  Acrualsand otherpayables 6.645521 8,643,340
W SEmEE S Less: Non-current portion (49,810) (47,612)
MENER Current portion 6,595,711 8,595,728
EHEE () Contract liabilities (Note (i)) 5,574,074 433,121
BfaE - Note:
(i) BREHEERERHKE (i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

BEt-A=+—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—ECEF —Z-hEF
2020 2019
E37 ET
Usb Usp

BERFIEHEEGEHHOFERIKE  Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at beginning of the year 279,740 605,262
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29 ErERAREMESRERESNERE @) 29 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

RNEE T E R N H A e U BRE (E B A A FEME The carrying amounts of the Group's accruals and
A WATHIEEE other payables approximate their fair values and are

denominated in the following currencies:

®+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December

—E-EHF ZE-NF

2020 2019

ETT E

UsD UsD

ARK RMB 5,023,623 3,569,862
= usD 618,575 3,459,716
ity Others 1,003,323 1,613,762
6,645,521 8,643,340

30 EZEWRA 30 DEFERRED INCOME
®+=A=+-—H
As at 31 December

—EB-EfF ZE-NF

2020 2019

ETT e

UsD UsD

iR AU #7 BY Deferred government grants 52,476,854 34,290,519
W IERENE D Less: Non-current portion (30,370,279) (7,560,012)

mENED S Current portion 22,106,575 26,730,507
RZEBEZZTF+ZA=1+—H ' Z#HREFEFREFREK As at 31 December 2020, the balance includes deferred
MAZERBEREREAXNIEROEERFROARE government grants of approximately RMB283,000,000
283,000,0007C (=ZF— NG : AK%¥210,000,0007T) (2019: RMB210,000,000) (equivalent to approximately
(1 & # 443,000,000 7T (ZZ— 14 : 30,000,000 UsSD43,000,000 (2019: USD30,000,000)) from the
Emx))c B - BEXRYTEHRFAEBMARE PRC Central Government for the implementation of
122,000,000 T HIFRIE (FHEF4719,000,0003%7T) © several national science and technology project. Out of

which, an amount of RMB122,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately USD19,000,000) is to be received from
Shenzhen Municipal Government.

FEEWARBREEAARESE - The carrying amount of deferred income is denominated
in RMB.
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31 RITEM

31 BANK BORROWINGS

R+t=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—ECEF —T-NF
2020 2019
E E
UsD UsD
JEENEA Non-current
BITER - AR (ffka) Bank loans, unsecured (Notea) 13793314 -
BNHA Current
IRITER - HEIF (FMizEakb) Bank loans, secured (Note a and b) 22,823,678 =
IRITE - EEA (WiTa) Bank loans, unsecured (Note a) 1,532,590 =
I e . Ty 24,356,268 @~ 000000 -
38,149,582 -

R-ZB-TE+-A=+—8 RITERNEBRFNERE
F3.92% °

RZZZTF+-A=+—8 ' BRRT1TE7,662,953% T
EREREERIN - HAETERIEIUARRREHARIE
REERENBEAERELRR -

Note:

(a)

The effective annual interest rate of bank loans as at 31
December 2020 was 3.92% per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, bank loans were secured by
both corporate guarantee given by the Company and
personal guarantee by Mr. Huang except for bank loans of
USD7,662,953 which were secured by Mr. Huang only.
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31 SBITER & 31 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
AEEHEREZBLAT : The Group's borrowings were repayable as follows:
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—_ ? —= ﬂE :?7j-|4£'5
2020 2019
=T e
UsbD Uspb
—F A Within 1 year 24,356,268 -
—FEWF Between 1 and 2 year 3,065,180 =
MEE=F Between 2 and 3 year 10,728,134 =
38,149,582 -
B EMER RO IR R E IR R FTE TR B K A HAET The above amounts due are based on the scheduled

repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

REBERITEFNREBET AT EEGHE The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings

are denominated in the following currencies:

R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—ECEF —T-hF
2020 2019
ET E
UsD usD
AR RMB 35,249,582 =
X usD 2,900,000 =
38,149,582 =
R-B-ZTER_FB-HNE+-_A=+—H ~X&EE7] As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's available
R NARRARITERREDT ¢ and undrawn bank loan facilities were as follows:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—g-%F  —TNF
2020 2019
%T E
UsD Usb

AIE A R AR R E B R Total available and undrawn facilities 30,491,086 16,136,005
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32 UEREELURMAERNIRS 32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

32.1 BB 32.1 Share options

“ZEENE - AEERBT T N\FERH
HE HER-_ZB-TFEAART——F_A

HEITIER] ©

—E-RAFNAT+HRBE - EAEEAN—HS - K
A AIMBRESMIT Corporation ) —ZZE NFRDETE]
RERAFEERBRESTE - EARBESMIT
Corporationf) ZZEZNFRHFTEINBREMS -
EEREHRAAREE A EREST S0 E ERE
FIEREE ST NFROFERR - HEPE
SMIT Corporationf) F1 /A 1R il FE (S B B ¥ A A &)
RIBRA o P RE AR 1T 68 T 31 TR AR 9 A5 E SMIT
Corporation MR B AR QA RIKIIRG - BEEE
B HEEY G A F(EHY1,573,000% T (HME2EE
B) AAME DR —RIEEENBET NG o

RAT72,574, 775 EBRHE R LEITERZ
T RNFE=ZANATR - WEERITEBRED
HEBRBE A AAEEIERETENRBEER
PEr % 558,470,40618 - REBIZ—E-_ZTF K
—E-NFF+-A=Z+—BLFE  TEREH
KA E R IRERT BI B R BRI N AR -

In February 2008, the Group adopted the 2008
Share Plan and subsequently amended on
September 2010 and February 2011.

On 15 September 2015, the Company assumed
the 2008 Share Plan of SMIT Corporation as
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as part of the
Reorganisation. In connection with the assumption
of the 2008 Share Plan of SMIT Corporation by
the Company, all options transferred to the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme shall carry the same
terms as the 2008 Share Plan, except that all
references therein to SMIT Corporation shall be
modified to be references to the Company. The
shares issued upon the exercise of options will
change from shares of SMIT Corporation to shares
of the Company. The incremental fair value of the
relevant options of approximately USD1,573,000
which are all fully vested, as a result of the
modification were charged to profit or loss on a
one-off basis.

On 6 March 2016, the capitalisation issue of
72,574,775 ordinary shares of the Company
was completed, upon which the number of
outstanding share options was adjusted to
58,470,406 pursuant to the anti-dilution
arrangement in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
No additional options have been granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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32 DREREEURGAERNTS (&) 32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
32.1 BBIRE (&) 32.1 Share options (Continued)
HRARBERBERETESIRENERESEN The details of the options granted for Pre-IPO
R Share Option Scheme are as follows:
REXAH
RYEER
EEN RERAH

BREHE BRFERN
No. of options EREHE
pertaining to No. of options

employees pertaining to

and directors advisors at AN RTRES

REHAH EHAH at the date of the date of e Remaining Remaining
Original date of grant Date of modification modification modification Exercise price  contractual life  vesting period
ZZZ\$=ANA “Z-RFNRTARA 0.01%T i TERE
9 March 2008 15 September 2015 3,201,000 225,000 UsD0.01 Expired Fully vested
ZEENELAZ A ZZ-RENATER 0.04%TT k] THHE
26 July 2009 15 September 2015 4,183,000 1,070,000 USD0.04 Expired Fully vested
—T-T5=RAA ZZ-R¥NATEA 0.04%TT B TU5E
5 March 2010 15 September 2015 3,051,000 600,000 UsD0.04 Expired Fully vested
“E2-ZENA-A “Z-RFNATAR 0.54%T 0.7% s
1 September 2010 15 September 2015 7,940,065 162,000 USD0.54 0.7 years Fully vested
“3-TE+-A=t-R ZE-AFAATAER 0.75%7T PES THGE
31 December 2010 15 September 2015 1,734,500 - UsD0.75 2 years Fully vested
—E—5-ANH “Z-R¥NATERA 0.75%T 23% o5
8 January 2011 15 September 2015 371,769 - UsD0.75 2.3 years Fully vested
=T ] —ZZ-nENATEA 1,067 245 TaGE
1 March 2011 15 September 2015 5,125,850 20,000 USD1.06 2.4 years Fully vested
=T e e “Z-n¥NATER 0.54%T 258 THEE
1 March 2011 15 September 2015 - 371,768 UsDO0.54 2.5 years Fully vested
—E-_f=f-H “Z-R¥NA+ER 121%7 25% Pt
1 March 2012 15 September 2015 - 21,142 UsD1.21 2.5 years Fully vested
“Z-ZFNA=T1H —E-RENATEA 0.52%7 356 TUEE

30 September 2012 15 September 2015 2,913,750 - USD0.52 3.5 years Fully vested
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32 LEREEURMDAERNRS (&) 32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

32.1 BIRHE (&) 32.1 Share options (Continued)

RERBH
BFEER

£ RERAH

BREHR RYERN

No. of options BREHE

pertaining to No. of options

employees pertaining to
and directors advisors at BTENER BTRES
REHEH BRAH at the date of the date of N3 Remaining Remaining
Original date of grant Date of modification modification modification Exercise price  contractual life  vesting period
ZZ-=£=f-H “Z-RENATER 0.62%TT 41E TEGE
1 March 2013 15 September 2015 - 116,188 UsD0.62 4.1 years Fully vested
“Z-=%)\R-H “Z-R¥NATER 0.56% 7T 455 FHHE
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 1,362,396 79,186 UsD0.56 4.5 years Fully vested
“2-=%/\RA-A “T-RENATARA 0.56%7T 495 ot il
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 734,616 - UsD0.56 4.9 years Fully vested
“Z-=%\A-H “Z-RENATER 0.14%T 4.9% s
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 4,433,290 - UsD0.14 4.9 years Fully vested
“Z-mE=R-H “Z-RENATER 0.39%7T 5.5% rE5E
1 March 2014 15 September 2015 - 81,340 UsD0.39 5.5 years Fully vested
“2-“#=f-H “2-RENATEA 122%7 25% oyt
1 March 2012 15 September 2015 - 14,742 UsD1.22 2.5 years Fully vested
—E2-—EnA=tA —Z-RFNATARA 0.62%T 356 TaEE
30 September 2012 15 September 2015 416,250 - USD0.62 3.5 years Fully vested
“Z2-=%=j-H —Z-EFAATER 0.62%7 415 TH5E
1 March 2013 15 September 2015 - 69,696 UsD0.62 4.1 years Fully vested
“2=£/\A-A “E2-nFNATEA 0567 455 TH5E
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 892,604 120,814 USD0.56 4.5 years Fully vested
—Z-[§¥=R-A —Z-n¥NATER 041%ET 5.5 TEEE
1 March 2014 15 September 2015 - 104,544 USD0.41 5.5 years Fully vested
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32 UHZEEURMAERNRS @) 32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
32.1 B (8) 32.1 Share options (Continued)
m AT AR 2L B B E) AR R I 1917 (R (B Movements in the number of share options
R outstanding and their related weighted average

exercise prices are as follows:

R+=B=+-8
As at 31 December
ZEBCEF —E-NF
2020 2019
piit: 4 ontE
BREHA FHTEE EkEA FTTEE
Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average
[Em B Expiry date Share Options  Exercise Price  Share Options Exercise Price
ES E
Usb usb
RER AR Balance as at beginning
of the year 37,782,554 0.67 40,319,288 0.63
BRAFEERRMETE  Pre-IPO Share Plan
B8/ s R Share options forfeited/
cancelled (13,536,166) 0.57 (612,598) 0.04
BT R Share options exercised (1,273,000) 0.15 (1,924,136) 0.04
RERM L Balance as at year end 22,973,388 0.65 37,782,554 0.67
22,973,388 (ZZE— L4 : 37,782,55417) & Out of the 22,973,388 outstanding options
RITHEERAEFR - 22,973,388 (ZF—NF - (2019: 37,782,554), 22,973,388 options (2019:
37,782,5541% ) BEARIERR] T11f - RZTTF 37,782,554) were exercisable. Options exercised
TER BB BUR IMEFHEER0.15% T (= in 2020 resulted in 1,273,000 (2019: 1,924,136)
T—NF ¢ 0.043%7T) 171,273,000 (=T — shares being issued at a weighted average price
FUEF £ 1,924,136%) X fn - 1T I EAR R INAEF of USDO0.15 (2019: USD0.04) each. The related
HRE BTN 0.15FT (ZE—NF : FRER weighted average share price at the time of

30.043%7T) ° exercise was USD0.15 (2019: USD0.04 per share).
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32 LRESREHURO/EBRNRS (5) 32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

32.1 BIRHE (&) 32.1 Share options (Continued)
RERBARITEBIRER EW B 8 R1TEE Share options outstanding at the end of the year
R have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

W+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
ZECZEF —T-hF
2020 2019

BRBRE BiRERE
ERITRE BREHE EATRE ielhe 2 24=

Exercise price Exercise price
in USD per Number of in USD per Number of
[Eim B Expiry date share option  share options share option share options

BRARBERRGTE Pre-IPO Share Plan

“E-TF/\R=1H 30 August 2020 - - 0.54 11,505,483
ZE-TF+ZA=+NB 29 December 2020 - - 0.75 2,030,683
—E-—F—HXH 6 January 2021 0.75 548,781 0.75 548,781
—T-—%-_A-++tAH 27 February 2021 1.07 274,390 1.07 274,390
—ZT-—F%-A=-++AH 27 February 2021 0.54 7,776,567 0.54 7,776,567
“T-—#-A-+)NH 28 February 2022 1.22 348,197 1.22 348,197
—EZ-FARAZ+ANA 29 September 2022 0.62 4,147,732 0.62 4,147,732
—EZ=FZAZ+)/\H 28 February 2023 0.62 274,390 0.62 274,390
ZEZ=FtA=+—H 31 July 2023 0.56 1,084,394 0.56 1,084,394
—E-=%tA=+—H 31 July 2023 0.14 8,308,547 0.14 9,517,547
—Z-ME-_A=-1+/\H 28 February 2024 0.41 210,390 0.41 274,390

22,973,388 37,782,554
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33 REREER

(a)

BRETISBLAT (B518) ImFIE
Ea)

BEEmE

33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

BEW (a)

Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before

income tax to cash generated from

operations:
BET-A=t—-HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
bt 223 —ENF
2020 2019
{53 E 7 E
Note usD Usb
BrETISRLAT (B518),/ 5 A (Loss)/profit before income tax (4,954,863) 11,621,320
BATEBEL AR Adjustments for:
BEWNFEE Finance income, net 9 (308,786) (583,727)
PAR 1 B ETR A 5R Share-based payment 8 = 39,742
B HRUGIERA N EERE Provision for impairment of trade receivables
s and contract assets 7 86,391 19,971
FERERE Provision for impairment of inventories 7 10,846 1,163,024
e AR ERHEM Forfeiture of other payable to an associate
e FUR 6 1,528,884 -
HEME - HE R&EER Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 7 48,779 53,591
T EH B EEE Loss on disposals of other intangible assets 7 35,060 =
W - BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 7 2,507,805 591,348
Hh AR & i Amortisation of other intangible assets 7 607,652 463,039
FERESERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7 420,107 369,743
BIEHERB AR Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries 6 (157,771) (22,777,730)
BIEL BB ARl Gain on deemed disposal of an associate 6 (5,777,586) -
iR E AR ERNEE Share of loss of an investment accounted
for using equity method 10 4,587,420 266,833
FBEREATFEARENE Fair value losses on financial assets at fair
EEMNTERE value through profit or loss 6 3,018,619 5,036,482
ERNRAREB LT EREE Fair value gain on contingent consideration
payable 6 - (1,507,404)
HEMSARER G EZERE  Elimination of unrealised profit from sales to
ARG E R %85 an investment accounted for using equity
method 10 192,730 -
1,845,287 (5,243,768)
EEESY Changes in working capital:
—-FE — Inventories 4,188,612 (5,819,681)
— B 5 RHEMFERGR —Trade and other receivables, contract assets
/::\%\’7 BENEMNE /TAI,E and prepayments (24,293,994) (347,740)
— B 5 RHEMPERNFRIEA — Trade and other payables (10,975,049) 20,608,090
AHAaE — Contract liabilities 5,106,397 (139,207)
— BEEBA - Deferred income 18,186,335 23,052,872
L (FrA),/ FisR$ Cash (used in)/generated from operations (5,942,412) 32,110,566
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33 REREER &) 33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) HEBREREXRANLEEVE  BMENKE (b) In the consolidated statement of cash
FriSFIEELE ¢ flows, proceeds from disposals of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—BCEF —E-NEF
2020 2019
=T T
UsD UuspD
ARmE A (FdsE15) Net book amount (Note 15) 62,201 56,368
HEME - BE REE Loss on disposals of property, plant and
&8 equipment (48,779) (53,591)
HENE -  BERRHE Proceeds from disposals of property,
Fr8RIE plant and equipment 13,422 3,277
(00 HERERERANHEEMBILEEMES (0 In the consolidated statement of cash
=HIFEIE flows, proceeds from disposals of other

intangible assets comprise:

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-EF —ZTNEF

2020 2019

S S

UsbD Usb

AREDFE (FFE17) Net book amount (Note 17) 35,060 =
HEH M EERE Loss on disposals of other intangible assets (35,060) =

HEHMEREERERE Proceeds from disposals of other intangible
assets - =
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REREBER (1) 33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(d) REITEBEEEENHER (d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities
IRITHEM HEAE &5
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
£ £ T
UsD UsD UsD
R-ZE—NF—A—H At 1 January 2019 5,335,126 67,005 5,402,131
Bemne Cash flows (5,340,668) (294,597) (5,635,265)
EAHE Lease additions - 1,501,269 1,501,269
FERX Interest expense - 44,526 44,526
MEEET Lease modification = (95,067) (95,067)
RIEHEMB AR Deemed disposal of subsidiaries
(PI&E33(F) (Note 33(f)) - (101,421) (101,421)
HNEE 2 Foreign exchange adjustments 5,542 (14,219) (8,677)
R=ZF—NAFE+=-A=+—H At31December2019 and
E—ZE-_ZH—-HF—H 1 January 2020 - 1,107,496 1,107,496
HeRe Cash flows 36,179,074 (284,743) 35,894,331
EAREE Lease additions - 87,215 87,215
FMEMAX Interest expense - 28,050 28,050
HEERT Lease modification - (261,434) (261,434)
SNFE Foreign exchange adjustments 1,970,508 24,992 1,995,500
R-—ZB-ZF+=-A=+—H At31December 2020 38,149,582 701,576 38,851,158

(e)

FTEFRERS (e)
REFEFNMTEEIHRERS

o  WBEREEE (1) &

o BIFHEMBARMAREREREEARN
®E (33 ~ (@) °

Major non-cash transactions

The Group has the following major non-cash
transactions:

° Acquisition of right-of-use assets (Note 16);
and
o Deemed disposal of subsidiaries in exchange

for investments in accounted for using the
equity method (Note 33(f),(g)).
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33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

BHEREER @)

f) RIEBE-—IFEHREHERBRT
BREZ—NF+_AZ+EtHNTEH=H B
Bk /iﬂ METEZFIREEREE R EETT

B e R-ZE—HhE+-_A=+—BXHEK

fé Z’K%.*ﬁrﬁm/uxxm\

49.19% -
mAR/EBERF -

B REREEE
HETBRASEREEZENB QR

()

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries in 2019

Pursuant to a capital injection agreement dated 27
December 2019, S2C Shanghai agreed to allot and
issue shares to certain third-party investors. Upon
completion of the transaction on 31 December
2019, the equity interest of S2C Shanghai held by
the Group was diluted to 49.19% and no longer
be an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary and
became an associate of the Group.

MaE ETT
Note UsD
BRI E849.19% Fair value of 49.19% equity interest
LRG3 AN of S2C Shanghai 42,999,190
HERY Direct expenses (108,974)
42,890,216
B HEEEFE Less: net assets disposed of
W - BB R Property, plant and equipment 15 (38,042)
B Goodwill 25 (15,896,824)
EmEEEE Other intangible assets 17 (4,397,343)
FREEE Right-of-use assets (101,360)
FE Inventories (897,129)
B 5N ERTE Trade receivables (2,245,837)
At FEMGRIE R TR FE Other receivables and prepayments (4,383,228)
BeRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents (3,873,804)
ESREMFIE Trade payables 2,717,374
FEETE R E AT F08 Accruals and other payables 8,440,465
FEEFTSFBE Deferred income tax liabilities 24 255,704
ABHEE Contract liabilities 161,413
HEaE Lease liabilities 33(d) 101,421
FERFSHL Income tax payable 1,765
VARR (9 /2 EE R R G Share-based payment reserve 39,742
PRV S 12 B B E 5 Exchange reserve released upon deemed disposal 3,197
RIEHEMB AR AU Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries 6 22,777,730
BRIEHEEENR SR L F58 Net cash outflow arising from the deemed disposal
Be MIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,873,804
HERAY Direct expenses 108,974

3,982,778
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33 BEREER ®

(9)

R-B-EEREHENEAR

BEEHR T _TF=A=+—HrREE:E
& - SMITRYIR B A T B LI E E [ BT
& DAY RS B RGEN TR B 50 % AR RE -+ DA KX [RISMITOR
YIZATER & AU BTN 1 % I X5 TERK
& - ANEEPIFA BB S BE R EE49%
ETBRASEERZENBAR - Ak Ak

Py

el

o

I
>

33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(9)

Deemed disposal of a subsidiary in 2020

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement dated
31 March 2020, SMIT Shenzhen agreed certain
independent investors to contribute into SMIT
XinXin for 50% of the equity interest and pay cash
to SMIT Shenzhen for 1% equity interest in SMIT
Xinxin. Upon completion of the transaction, the
equity interest of SMIT Xinxin held by the Group
was diluted to 49% and no longer be a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary and became an associate
of the Group.

B 5 =T
Note uUsD
BRI 49% AR EHY A S E Fair value of 49% equity interest of SMIT Xinxin 6,915,922
RERE Cash consideration 141,141
7,057,063
B B EEEFE Less: net assets disposed of
ReERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents (28,241,833)
oAb FE R IE R T RIE Other receivables and prepayments (581,636)
YIE - R KR AEFE (7E15)  Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 15) (760,740)
FERTERER Trade payables 21,696
FEET B A R EoAth FE A< /I8 Accruals and other payables 22,635,321
FMRVE L & 18 B Bl /9 FE Exchange reserve released upon deemed disposal 27,900
RIEH BB R TR Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary 6 157,771
BRIEHEEENHR SR L F8 Net cash outflow arising from the deemed disposal
EHERE MREEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 28,241,833
B BWERERE Less: cash consideration received (141,141)

28,100,692
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34 HAHEE 34 CONTINGENCIES
RZZZTF+ZA=1+—08 ' ZEBRARRWHET The Group and the Company did not have any material
MERIABE(ZZT—NEF  £8) - contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
35 EIE 35 COMMITMENTS
(a) REHERE (@) Operating lease commitments
AEERBATRECEHERZEEZEARA The Group leases various offices and warehouses
EREE HEHNKME=SF - under non-cancellable operating lease agreements

with lease terms between two to three years.

AEBEGZE \Hfﬁﬁm@ﬁﬁﬁé;ﬁé MR EA R K The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for
BEBERI  E—SFFF2HMF16 - these leases, except for short-term and low-value

leases, see Note 16 for further information.

KEHE R NARRKIEEEMZ@zENT The future aggregate minimum lease payments
under the operating lease agreement are as
follows:

R+=BA=+—~H
As at 31 December
—BoEE —E-NEF
2020 2019
ET e
usD usb

TEMR1EF Within one year 694,743 840,884

(b) BEAEIE (b) Capital commitments

RIBERREETNEABEAB L BREREEE Significant capital expenditure contracted for at

EWT the end of the reporting period but not recognised

as liabilities is as follows:

B+=B=+-—H
As at 31 December
SE L —T-NE
2020 2019
ET T
UsD UuspD

W - WE KREE Property, plant and equipment - 2,430,477
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36 BAMELRS

(a)

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BARGEVBRRABEREEI  EFERA/ T (a)
FHEARARARBE_S-_TFR_T—NF
ToA=t - RLFEEAREFERSNEE

Ak

BB nE B8

Name of the related parties

TEXRED

Principal business activities

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the directors are of the view
that the following individuals and companies are
related parties who had transactions with the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019:

BEAKENRR
Relationship with the Group

SINEEE (RZB-2F
=R+t HEHE)
Mr. Gao Songtao (resigned on

27 March 2020)
Rl¥nE (RZZ2ZZF
=R T+tEREEME)
Mr. Liu Yang (appointed on
27 March 2020)
EREE
Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen
\EAE
Mr. Huang

BEX BRI
Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun

EVATF 4
Mr. Shuai Hongyu

SEERE

Mr. Jin Yufeng

AR E

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
REGRE

Mr. Zhang Junjie

AT EEHR B R AT

Shenzhen State Micro Science and

Technology Co. Ltd.

N/A

TEH
N/A
TEH
N/A

TEH
N/A

TEH
N/A

TiER

N/A

TEM

N/A

iE

N/A

LB HRAE

Research and development of
integrated circuit design

ARBIFNTESR

Non-executive director of the Company

ARAFFTES

Non-executive director of the Company

ARRIFFRITES

Non-executive director of the Company

ARABITES - BRENITE RIERRER

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company

ARARTEERERIBE

Executive director and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company

AARBTEEREREET

Executive director and the Chief Operating
Officer of the Company

BUES

Independent Director

BUES

Independent Director

BIES

Independent Director

BARAIMTES - BFENITE RIERAR RS

Controlled by executive director, the CEO and
controlling shareholder of the Company
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36 BEEELRZ (E)

(a)

BARGEVBRRABWEEIN
FHEARARARBE_Z_ZFR_T—NF
TZA=t-RALFEEARERFER SR

7 (&)

BMBEnE B8

Name of the related parties

wE=ERAE T @)

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the directors are of the view
that the following individuals and companies are
related parties who had transactions with the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2020

and 2019: (Continued)

ETEERED

Principal business activities

BEASE R
Relationship with the Group

AEFERRRIREERE
R BRAR]
(DRIBFER])

Shenzhen Digital TV National
Engineering Laboratory Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Digital TV")

FBEHMEERRERAF
(I EgEs)

Shanghai Guo Wei Industrial
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Guo Wei")

SMIT Investment Limited

SMIT Investment Limited

ESS T

iBoxpay

N2 FERRRBRAF

Shenzhen iIBOXPAY Information
Technology Co., Ltd.

INEIEE
Shanghai Qingge

BRTLE
S2C Shanghai

BTN T
Giga
B
SMIT Xinxin

HFECRREERNTE
KERHE

Research, development, production
and sales of products related to
digital TV

BFEmMMNEKREE

Research, development, and sales of
electronic products

REER

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

BB IRGHER

Mobile payment service provider

PR RIHE

Research and development and sales
of smart door lock

BRIRERE R B R RIS

Research and development and sales
of rapid verification systems and
software

RIEEDABIGIRR AR

Provision of EDA back-end solutions

FEEBOE KRS

Research and development and
services of semiconductors

ARFHITES - BRITE RIEBRRER
RURRESE

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the
director of this company

ARBRITES - EREANTE RERRR A
UNGIE 2

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the
director of this company

ARAIITES - BFENTE KRR
RERRES

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the
director of this company

ARBRNITES - HREANTE RIERER
REZBBNES

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the
director of the related party

ARAIMITES - BRENTE KRR
RERNRES

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the
director of this company

LN

Associate

i UNG

Associate

b MK S\

HHP (=)AN Ej
Associate
AN

Associate
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

7R 5 [ £ R

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated

financial statements, the following transactions
were undertaken by the Group with related

parties:

BE+-A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-EF ZT-NEF
2020 2019
=T e
UsbD Usb
LY MR AR A A Operating lease payments and the costs and
MERBNCERERNRK fees relating to air-conditioning and public
MEBEARALEEN utilities in respect of properties of Shenzhen
PR AN 2 A State Micro Science and Technology Co. Ltd. = (175,590)
ERIIBFEROYERB R Operating lease payments and the costs and
CERENRRBEZEHK  fees relating to air-conditioning and public
NHEZENRARER utilities in respect of properties of Shenzhen
Digital TV (2,021,975) (1,532,424)
RN YEEBNEEL  Operating lease payments in respect of
HERRK properties of Shanghai Guo Wei (51,279) =
mREYIETEERHEAR AR Sales of mPOS devices to Shenzhen iBOXPAY
$HEmMPOSHE Information Technology Co., Ltd. - 803,282
MBES EHERKE Sales of IC products to S2C Shanghai
Edn 6,365,021
M EEEIEEREREM  Sales of CAM products to Shanghai Qingge 543,887 41,174
mEBEE 8N —XKEBAR  Purchase of goods from a subsidiary of S2C
HBEEMm Shanghai 1,080 L
HMEBRL DS MAHFAIER  License fee and technical supporting fee paid
Rt RE to S2C Shanghai 868,143 =
B AEE R EE Purchases of intangible assets from Giga 29,804,330 =

%55 TR B RS 7B E M ER RIFKE
T

These transactions are conducted at prices and
terms mutually agreed by the relevant parties.



FF3RE ANNUAL REPORT 2020
230 EI#%ZRARAT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

eV BRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 BEEEARS (@)

(0 EEREEEZHMH

TRERERRAITRIFNTEETARGRER
B - SNRENEREREHESREZHMIIR

s

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

() Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive) and senior management. The

compensation paid or payable to key management

for employee services is shown below:

BE+-HA=t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—ECEF —TNF
2020 2019
ET e
UsbD Uusb
HEAH ¢  ZMREYETR Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,202,289 1,528,609
BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 394,864 411,675
RIRER) — REHEREE Retirement benefit — defined contribution plans 26,921 58,529
2,624,074 1,998,813
(d) REBERWIRE (d) Investments in related parties
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
i ZE-NF
2020 2019
ETT e
UsbD usb
RETFZAEE (Bi5E21(d))  Investment in iBoxpay (Note 21(d)) 2,063,938 2,063,938
PRI E (BH5E21(F)  Investment in Giga (Note 21(f)) = 1,433,445
2,063,938 3,497,383
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36 BEEEARS (@)

(e)

REHERRBE M2 FRELR

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(e) Year-end balances arising from sales and
purchases of goods

R+=—A=+-—8
As at 31 December
—E-EF —ZE-NEF
2020 2019
Bzt ES E»
Note UsD Usb
RaEE T B 2 IR Trade receivable from a related party
(MzE20) (Note 20) 0) - 358,361
SNEI= o) A G Trade receivables from associates
(B1%E20) (Note 20) (i) 699,181 2,541,942
JEREE AR E 5 FIE Trade payables to associates
(fg7£28) (Note 28) (iii) = 732,639
BIRE - Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

RIZB-NF+ZA=1+—HNEKRREEZEREY
RYBFEEMRERARNHEERS - ARHER
B E AR - BAURMIEE A B R TE
B B IE UL BARSE T IV TORIEH B -

R NE+-A=+—BNEKFETBRAY
BEN L8R S2C Japan Corporation &R 5 » 15
REERHENERIE  MR_T_TF+=-A=
T-AOEKFIBEEEREY DEERNHEERS
REHE B HAZ 180 A BIHA o EINGRIBRYIEE R IR
RAFFILE. o BE R R W& R R IBIE L B o

SRR AT AT - EAREANTERE
HER RIS -

(ii)

(iii)

The receivable as at 31 December 2019 arises
mainly from sale transactions to Shenzhen iBOXPAY
Information Technology Co., Ltd. and is due six
months after the date of sales. The receivable
is unsecured in nature and bear no interest. No
provisions are held against receivables from related
parties.

The receivables as at 31 December 2019 arise
mainly from sale transactions to S2C Shanghai and
S2C Japan Corporation and are due on six months
after the date of sales while the receivable as at 31
December 2020 arise mainly from sales transaction to
Shanghai Qingge and are due on 180 days after the
date of sales. The receivables are unsecured in nature
and bear no interest. No provisions are held against
receivables from associates.

The amount is due sixty days after the date of
purchase. The payable is unsecured in nature and
bear no interest.
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36 BEEELRZ (E)

()

EARARE S R BtE ARV E H ARk

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(f) Non-trade balances with related parties
and associates

®+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December

it g 22 —h&F

2020 2019

k=3 ETT e

Note uUsD Usb

SRR F %S (Ki5E20)  Deposit to a related party (Note 20) (i) 541,141 449,296
JFEURBAE: T U (MI5E20)  Receivables from related parties

(Note 20) (ii) 73,613 73,451

JE Y B 25 N B3R 8 (B9 5E20) Receivables from associates (Note 20) (i) = 584,352

BN Ti‘ﬁiﬁm Prepayment to an associate

(P¥&E20) (Note 20) (iii) 1,977,043 -

MEE A RER Loan to an associate (iv) - 5,035,836

JE1SF BAES Efy’(lﬁ (Mf7£29)  Payable to a related party (Note 29) (ii) (172,680) =

JRE (<B4 N B E (FEEE29) Payables to associates (Note 29) (i) = (2,388,883)

SEHARYIBF
HHE -

BREXMNEABZE - BUAARE

(i) R FERTRARE T RS AR BIEM REEEE

AEEEE - ijxLA%EaﬂE o FEU  FE 1 BRI
T REERANRIBRAEER L8 RARERE
@iy  FRAEEEN T —REL R A ORTA B RN &
2
vy RZFE-NAFTZA=T—HAAEERRAERNE
HESEENTERS @ WAAREEHE - MBEE AT
ERAEER £ ERAR=EANEER - ZRER

BE_Z_TFT_A=+—RULFELS

The amount represents rental deposit paid to
Shenzhen Digital TV denominated in RMB.

(ii) The carrying amounts of amount due from/to related
parties and associates approximate their fair values
and are mainly denominated in USD. The amounts
due from/to related parties and associates are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

(iii) The amount represents prepaid license fee and
technical supporting fee to an associate.

(iv) The carrying amount of loan to an associate as at 31
December 2019 approximated its fair value and is
denominated in RMB. The loan to an associate was
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable within
three months. The amount was settled during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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BEMRSE

RZZB-—F—A=++8  SMITEY - FIEZRE M
REREEEARAR ([HBEEM]) « BRERFI
MRFEIRESIEEESBERAR BULE=F) I LA B
F O NBERRI L EEFIERREAIERESED
XEREGE) ([H£2)]) ESNEZEZRIHKEEER
FRINEENNBRRETRERE RIBHEERY -
BIBEAERZEER  TECBARESVIZ TEEESH
BAEAREI100E8T BERMNIS3EEXET) - £+
SMITFEIIIEHEARKEI6HEE T (HHERHS /8%
JL)  (RESARHER36% °

37 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 27 January 2021, SMIT Shenzhen, Shenzhen
Hongtai Guowei Share Investment Management Limited
("Hongtai Guowei”), Mr. Huang, and Shenzhen Angel
Investment Guide Fund Limited, an independent third
party, entered into a partnership agreement in relation
to the establishment and management of Shenzhen
Hongtai Angel Share Investment Fund Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Fund”). The primary objective of the
Fund is to engage in angel investments in, and provide
management services to, start-up companies operating
in innovative technology sectors. Pursuant to the terms
of the partnership agreement, the initial total capital
contribution by all partners to the Fund will be RMB100
million (equivalent to approximately USD15.3 million),
out of which RMB36 million (equivalent to approximately
USD5.5 million) will be contributed by SMIT Shenzhen
which accounted for 36% of equity interests in the Fund.
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38 ARTFMBRRRREEEE 38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
R+=-A=+-—8
As at 31 December
—ECEE —E-NF
2020 2019
ES ZT
UsD UspD
EE ASSETS
IRBEE Non-current assets
RETBRRIRIRE Investment in subsidiaries 70,118,103 70,118,103
FREREATEAN Financial assets at fair value through
TRIEE profit or loss 2,063,938 2,063,938
72,182,041 72,182,041
REBEE Current assets
JE S BfT B A R FE Amounts due from subsidiaries 37,183,851 39,118,725
SENEE Prepayments 18,703 18,703
Re MR EEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,739,056 1,836,910
39,941,610 40,974,338

wmEE Total assets 112,123,651 113,156,379
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38 AATMBMRRERRFHEEE (&)

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
ZBoBE —TNF
2020 2019
k=g =TT B
Note usD Usb
EEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
ANTHEEAEGER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
A&z Share capital 6,390 6,364
gt Share premium (a) 101,642,531 101,505,767
VARG (R B R R R G Share-based payment reserve (a) 1,728,425 1,728,425
Evay i Accumulated losses () (4,849,103) (3,809,945)
#wmm  Totalequity S [ el
=l Liabilities
REEE Current liabilities
FEETE R E A ET 5B Accruals and other payables 605,812 736,172
ER—RKM B A RIFKRIE Amount due to a subsidiary 12,989,596 12,989,596
waf®  Totalliabilites ULl (el
BEZREE Total equity and liabilities 112,123,651 113,156,379
RATHBERRETIHEEEN S -_—F=HA-+x The statement of financial position of the Company was
AitaETRARE - approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021
and were signed on its behalf.
FE - Huang Xueliang Loong, Manfred Man-tsun
=FER & B Chairman Director



236

maS

B %5 ¥ 2% MY &

FE % ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BEIMIZR AR AT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 AATMBMRRRRFHESE (&)

(a)

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
AR AR D (@) Reserve movement of the Company
N8P REEF
BRenE ERSRERE (RFHEE)
Retained
Share-based earnings/
payment  (accumulated
Share premium reserve losses)
ET ET ET
usD UsD usD
R=-ZB-NFE—A—H At 1 January 2019 100,982,947 1,728,425 593,452
Loss and total comprehensive loss
FAEEMEEERERE for the year = = (4,403,397)
TR R Exercise of share options 928,234 = =
ZE-AFRRARN Dividends relating to 2018 paid in
ZT—)\FHEBRE May 2019 (405,414) = =
R-B-AFE+=A=+—H At31December 2019 101,505,767 1,728,425 (3,809,945)
Bp Representing:
i Reserves 101,095,628 1,728,425 (3,809,945)
T -NEFEERERE 2019 final dividend proposed 410,139 = =
101,505,767 1,728,425 (3,809,945)
R-ZZE-ZF—-HA—H At 1 January 2020 101,505,767 1,728,425 (3,809,945)
Loss and total comprehensive loss
FAEEMEEEREE for the year = = (1,039,158)
TR AR Exercise of share options 544,923 - =
ZECRERARN Dividends relating to 2019 paid in
ZE-NFEBRE June 2020 (408,159) - -
R-ZE-ZF+-A=+—H At31December 2020 101,642,531 1,728,425 (4,849,103)
Bp Representing:
& Reserves 101,231,126 1,728,425 (4,849,103)
TECTEEZAPRE 2020 final dividend proposed 411,405 - -
101,642,531 1,728,425 (4,849,103)
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39 ESEFRERER (FE(ATMEMG) (F 39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
622F) 3831k (AT (HEEEFH (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
BER)BA) (5£622GE) kREB LHRA 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
HREWHRE) ORDINANCE (CAP. 622) AND COMPANIES

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) EENSHREEREHN (@) Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments

KARESFHBEINAT The remuneration of the directors of the Company
is set out below:

BECZRECRST-BLER
Year ended 31 December 2020

RERALTS,
HfpERIf -4 PEES
SREE HNETEZRE MAESE RS R4
#4 n ¥ BERL  AERE (WEE) BRIELFH CHAEKNEN  HEHEIER Bit
Emoluments paid or

Remuneration  receivable in respect of
paid or  director's other services
Estimated receivable  in connection with the Employer's

money value inrespect  management of the  contribution to
ofother  ofaccepting  affairs of the company  a retirement
Discretionary Housing benefits office as or its subsidiary benefit
Name Fees Salaries bonuses  allowance (Note (a)) director undertaking scheme Total
A £7 £7 £7 T E3 £7 T A
ush Usp Usp s usb ush s usb ush
g% Executive director
R (M5E0) Mr. Huang (Note (o)) 24,000 387,893 128212 - - - o 4618 544,783
BIRRE Mr. Shuai Hongyu 24,000 354628 128644 - 145 = - 6,850 514,267
E3C v Mr. Loong, Manfred Mansun 24,000 339407 96,204 - - - - 4618 464,229
FaEs Non-executive directors
BEnt Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen 24,000 - - - - - - - 24,000
BINERSE (HEQ)  Mr. GaoSongtao (Note () - - - - - - - - -
Bk (M) Mr. Liu Yang (Note (d) - = = = = - = = =
BUFHES Independent non-executive
directors
Rikhrk Mr. Zhang Junjie 24,000 - - - - - - - 24,000
BRRAE Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 24,000 - - - - - - - 24,000
SRERE Mr. Jin Yufeng 24,000 - - - - - - - 24,000
168,000 1,081,928 353,120 - 145 - - 16,086 1,619,219
(a) HEtmEremaEiBEgE - (a) Other benefits include leave pay and share option.
(b) ZEENABARRERWITE  UENERWNTES (b) The director is also the CEO of the Company, no
EAYE B8 B4k B o separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of
the CEO has been made.
(© FZEFN _ZT_TF=A_t+tHEME- (0 The director resigned on 27 March 2020.
(d) HEEN T _TF-A-_T++tAEZRITR_ZT= (d) The director appointed on 27 March 2020 and

—F=ZA=THBEHE - resigned on 25 March 2021.
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39 EEMmRER (FE(ATKRG) (F
622%) 383 % - (A7 (RBEEF %

R RA) (5£622GE) REB LEHAA

BREMNEE) @

it

(a) EEKSREEEFMH (B

il

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622) AND COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(@) Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments (Continued)

HE-Z-NEt-A=t-BLEE
Year ended 31 December 2019

RERRAT
T
ERit  HBREERE MHESERRE  RAENH
1% fie #e B [iR#E eHEE(NEE)  ElciEiEH RhetbtEi i &
Emoluments paid or
receivable in respect of
director's other services
Estimated money  Remuneration paid in connection with the Employer's
value of other orreceivablein  management of the affds  contribution
Discretionary Housing benefts  respect of accepting of the company orts o a refirement
Name Fees Salaries bonuses allowance (Note (a)) office as director subsiciary undertaking  benefit scheme Total
7 #7 # #r £ # E # #
Ush Ush s s s s Usp Ush s
i £ Executive director
Fik () . Huzng (Note (1) 24000 387,686 18203 = 5 - - 4615 544,504
St Mr. Shuai Hongyu 24,000 349373 107,766 - 145 - - 12,000 493,284
BT Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun 24,000 339205 9,152 - - - - 4615 16399
FIES Non-executive directors
SORRE(RG)  Mr ZengZhije (Note () 10,000 - - - - - - = 10,000
FE i Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen 24,000 - - - - = = = 24,000
BIMERE(RHG)  Mr.Gao Songtao (Note () = = = = = = = = =
BUufEs Independent non-executive directors
Feiie Mr. Zhang Junje 24,000 - - - - - - - 24,000
izt M. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 24,000 - - - - - - = 24,000
438kE Mr.Jin Yufeng 24,000 - - - - - = - 24,000
178,000 1,076,284 31 - 145 - - 1,30 1,607,780

(@ HRNSEEHREERE -

() HEFTARARERHITE  LEAEFATEH

BE L BB R -

(@ FEFER-ZT-NAFRA-THBHE-

(d) FZEER-_T-_TF-_A-++tHEHT-

(a) Other benefits include leave pay and share option.

(b) The director is also the CEO of the Company, no
separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of
the CEO has been made.

(0) The director resigned on 20 May 2019.

(d) The director resigned on 27 March 2020.
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39 EEFBERER (FB(DAEHE) (F
622EF) £3831% - (AT (HEEERH
BB (F622GE) REB LHEL
BHEMNEE) @

(b)

(@

(e)

(f)

EERMEF

o E o YN E S R PN
BARM IR E S SR ER (=T
HE ) o

EERRER

REE-_Z-_TF+_A=+—HIEE @&
FIRAR EEREMS A FTEEERAHE (22— R
FoME) o

MERHESREMAETE=1RE

BHE-_Z-_ZBFE+_-_A=1+—BILFE  AQ7F
WERNERBRESREMZNRETFERNE=H
(ZE—NEF ) -

ENERES  XESEFEAERERE
ESERENERNERN  BUERREM
REHNER

RERRBE_ZT_ZF+_A=+—HLEE
ERARELEFEENES  SEFEHEDEA
ERErEEEFAEENERNER  BUERK
HZ 5 (ZF—NF: &) -

ERERS  RPERENTNERER

RERRBE_T_ZF+_A=+—HULFE
ERRELEFERARRRERRFHT AARRF
EERETERSIMEREERNERMEAQAF]
EBERNEER S - ZHRAH (ZT—NF
&) e

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622) AND COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(b)

(@]

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiaries undertaking (2019: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as
compensation for the early termination of the
appointment during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available directors’ services
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were
made available in favour of directors, body
corporates controlled by and connected entities
with such directors subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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BE+-A=t—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

ZECEF ZE-hEF —Z-N\F —E—tF —E-RF
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Wi Revenue 37,789,781 38,099,720 41,318,578 91,780,923 59,053,896
HEMA Cost of sales (24,478,340)  (22,824,996)  (27,641,807)  (59,277,526)  (35,596,258)
EF Gross profit 13,311,441 15,274,724 13,676,771 32,503,397 23,457,638
BrETSHAT (B518),/ % F (Loss),/profit before income tax (4,954,863) 11,621,320 (277,783) 14,031,227 7,379,349
FishiER,/(FX%) Income tax credit,” (expense) 1,521,092 700,991 1,593,307 (2,932,359) 121,237
FRER Profit for the year (3,433,771) 12,322,311 1,315,524 11,098,868 7,500,586
AT B I8 fE{h Profit is attributable to:
RARHEBA Owners of the Company (3,707,652) 10,602,142 1,317,734 11,098,868 7,500,586
ElS 2 S Non-controlling interests 273,881 1,720,169 (2,210) - -
(3.433,771) 12,322,311 1,315,524 11,098,868 7,500,586
R+=—A=+-H
As at 31 December
“E-EF —EZ-hEF —E-N\F —E—+F —E-XEF
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
BEE Total assets 232,528,780 177,468,937 140,918,711 131,683,031 109,431,711
RRAEB AERS Equity attributable to owners
by of the Company 123,967,697 121,634,110 112,018,954 114,331,589 99,092,678
FEE R R Non-controlling interests 2,342,185 1,967,240 240,480 = =
Bk Total equity 126,309,882 123,601,350 112,259,434 114,331,589 99,092,678
FS= Total liabilities 106,218,898 53,867,587 28,659,277 17,351,442 10,339,033
BER AR Total equity and liabilities 232,528,780 177,468,937 140,918,711 131,683,031 109,431,711
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